
MEETING AGENDA ' 
MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

SEPTEMBER 12,2016,7:00 P.M. 

I .  Approval of the minutes of the August 22,2016 regular meeting of the City Council. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the August 25,2016 special meeting of the City Council. 

3. Proclamation: September 17th through 23rd 2016 proclaimed "Constitution Week". 

4. Proclamation: September 2017 "Gynecologic Cancer Awareness Month". 

5. Consideration: Resolution appointing Kelly Hulsey to the Tree Commission, to serve without 
compensation through September 12,20 19. 

6. Consideration: Resolution appointing Elizabeth Poynor to the Tree Commission, to serve without 
compensation through September 12,20 19, 

7. Consideration: Resolution reappointing Penny Page to the Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to serve without 
compensation through October 30,2020, 

8. Consideration: Resolution reappointing Max Pulliam to the Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to serve without 
compensation through October 30,2020. 

9. Consideration: Resolution rejdcting all bids (B-20160804-132) with respect to the construction of a new 
public safety training building at the Public Works complex. 

10. Consideration: Resolution ratifying the engagement of Richard Riley Simpson under the supervision of 
Brasfield & Gorrie (Resolution No. 2016-095) to perform moisture abatement exploration services at the 
Emmet O'Neal Library building in relation to the ongoing service agreement previously authorized 
(Resolution Nos. 20 16-058). 

I. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of three agreements between the City and Alabama 
Department of Transportation with respect to the bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for the Old Brook 
Trail bridge (#0 12869) over Little Shades Creek and Canterbury Road bridge (#002873) over Watkins 
Creek: 

a. Right-of-way Agreement 
b. Preliminary Engineering Agreement 
c. Utility and Construction Agreement 

12. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution authorizes the execution of an Agreement for Services 
between the City and Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham with respect to an 80% 
APPLE-funded Mountain Brook Sidewalks Feasibility Study. 

13. Consideration: Resolution declaring certain property surplus and authorizing its sale or disposition. 

14. Consideration: Resolution approving the lunch time conditional use application for Ice House at 2708 
Culver Road submitted by Tom Sheffer. 

15. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a settlement agreement with respect to the Alabama 
Furniture Market, LLC v. City of Alabaster, et. al. Circuit Court of Shelby County, AL - CV 12-90033 I. 



MEETING AGENDA ' 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBER (ROOM A108) 
56 CHURCH STREET 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, AL 35213 

SEPTEMBER 12,2016,7:00 P.M. 

16. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a professional services agreement between the City 
and Sain Associates for construction, engineering and inspection services with respect to the Phase 9 
sidewalk project. 

17. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of an auditing services addendum to the master 
agreement (Resolution No. 20 16-1 10 adopted August 22,20 16) between the City and Public Resource 
Management Alliance Corporation with respect to the City's tax and license administration. 

18. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution/renewal of two ground leases with respect to the 
English Village public parking lots. 

19. Consideration: Resolution authorizing the execution of a professional services agreement between the City 
and Gresham, Smith & Partners with respect to the design and administration of the bridge reconstruction 
and rehabilitation for the Old Brook Trail bridge (#012869) over Little Shades Creek and Canterbury Road 
bridge (#002873) over Watkins Creek. 

20. Consideration: Ordinance repealing Ordinance No. 1693 and prohibiting smoking in certain enclosed and 
outdoor public places in the City. 

2 1. Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance adopting the City's fiscal 2017 budget. I 

22. Consideration: Ordinance increasing the salary (1-112%) of the City Manager effective October 4,2016 
and amending the related employment agreement. 

23. Consideration: Resolution increasing the salary schedule for all classified and unclassified employees by 1- 
IR% effective October 4,2016 and increasing the compensation for contract security services for the 
City's Public Works facilities (Resolution No. 2013-146) by 1-,14!% effective October 4,201 6. 

24. Public hearing: Consideration of an ordinance amending Sec. 129-295 of the City Code regarding open 
houses, home tours, and special events in residential zoning districts. 

25. Consideration: Ordinance amending Chapter 14 of the City Code with respect to the building permit fee 
for non-residential construction permits (increased by $I per S1,000 of construction value to be paid to the 
State of Alabama to fund the Construction Industry Crafi Training program to be administered by the 
Alabama Craft Training Board pursuant to Act 2015-308 of the Alabama Legislature). 

26. Announcement: The next regular meeting of the City Council is September 26,2016, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. 

27. Comments from residents. 

28. Adjourn. 



Minute Book 88 

MOUNTAIN BROOK CITY COUNCIL 
PRE-MEETING DISCUSSION 

AUGUST 22,201 6 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the Pre-council 
Room (A106) of City Hall at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, the 22nd day of August, 2016. The Council President 
called the meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorneys Whit Colvin and Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City 
Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. AGENDA 

1. Lease renewal for two parking lots in English Village-Keith Arendall and Sam Gaston (Appendix 
1). 

2. Conditional Use for MPower (Pilates) at 2419 Canterbury Road-Dana I-Iazen (Appendix 2). 

Summary of concerns expressed by the Mayor and members of the City Council: 
Limited parking during the lunch time frame 
Similar businesses in the immediate vicinity that likely will want a similar conditional 
use approval, if granted 

Emma Suttles (applicant) suggested a class starting at 1:30 p.m. (still early enough to 
accommodate parents with school-age children). The Council President suggested that the 
applicant and Ms. Hazen meet regarding the later class and revisit the City Council on September 
12. 

3. Restroom for Mountain Brook Elementary playing field-Shanda Williams (Appendix 3). 

It has been determined that the 

Norman Johnson, architect, suggested that the City engage a landscape architect to advise the City 
regarding the most suitable location and also aesthetics 

Because the specifications must be changed (move the building out of the flood way), the project 
will have to be re-bid. 

Shanda Williams will proceed with engaging an electrician to wire the scoreboard and will work 
with a landscape architect before finalizing the site and rebidding the project. 

Faye Clark, representing the garden club that donated the funds for the park bench, stated that the 
proposed new location is acceptable. If another location is determined necessary, the garden club 
can live with the City relocating the park bench. 

There were no bids for the initial invitation to bid so nothing to reject. 

4. Smoking Ordinance-Steve Stine (Appendix 4). 

August 22.2016 



IVIinutc Book 88 

Issues addressed in the proposed draft include: 
The ordinance does not apply to private property 
Exceptions for enclosed locations include residential properties and cigar bars 
A cigar bar is a location ~vlvhere the primary activity includes the sale of cigars and 
tobacco products 
The draft ordinance includes less stringent definitions that have been suggested in the 
model ordinance. If issues arise later, the definitions can be revised as detennined 
appropriate. 
Persons may smoke outside on public property so long as they maintain a twenty foot 
spacing between others at the public property 
No smoking signs are not required under the ordinance 
Designated smoking areas are not required under the ordinance 
The exemption for private clubs remains in the draft ordinance 
There was some debate about definition (5) Enclosed, specifically in reference to "at least 
hvo sides by walls . . ." 
Because this ordinance has not been considered in regular session previously, it will 
require unanimous consent for immediate consideration 

5. Review of the matters to be considered at the fonnal [7 p.m.] meeting. 

6. Executive session 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, it was moved by Council President 
Pro Tempore Pritchard that the City Council convene in executive session to discuss a matter involving a real 
estate negotiation. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith. The City Attorney certified that 
the subject of the executive session is allowed pursuant to the Open Meetings Act. Then, upon the question 
being put and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith declared that the motion carried by a vote of 5-0 and then asked that the 
members of the audience be excused. She also announced that the City Council shall reconvene upon 
conclusion of the executive session at approximately 7 p.m. in the Council Chamber. 

2. CE RTIFICATIOS 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on August 22,2016, and that the meeting was duly 
called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting. 

City Clerk 

August 22.20 16 



Minute Book 88 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

AUGUST 22,2016 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in public session in the City Mall 
Council Chamber at 7:00 p.m. on Monday, the 22nd day of August, 201 6. The Council President called the 
meeting to order and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present : Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 
Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Absent: None 

Also present were City Attorneys Whit Colvin and Steve Stine, City Manager Sam Gaston and City 
Clerk Steven Boone. 

The City CounciI President stated that a quorum was present and that the meeting was open for the 
transaction of business. 

1. RECOGNITION OF GUESTS 

Council President Smith recognized Boy Scout Alex Stokes of Troop 63 (St. Peter's) in attendance for 
his Comtnunications rnerit badge. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

Council President Smith then announced that the following matters will be considered at one time on 
the consent agenda provided no one in attendance objects: 

Approval of the minutes of the August 8,201 6 regular meeting of the City Council 

2016-106 September 20 16 proclaimed "Myositis Awareness Month" Exhibit 1 
Proclamation 

2016-107 Accept the professional services proposal of FBAC Fontenot Exhibit 2, 
Benefits & Actuarial Consulting for the actuarial valuation and Appendix 1 
disclosure services required by GASB 45 or [early 
implementation of] GASB 75 with respect to the City's other 
post-employment benefit plan (retiree medical insurance) 

2016-108 Authorize the execution of a professional services agreement Exhibit 3, 
between the City and Skipper Consulting for a traffic and Appendix 2 
pedestrian study of Vine Street, Dexter Avenue and Church 
Street 

2016-109 Set a public hearing on September 12,2016 at 7 p.m. to Exhibit 4 
consider an ordinance amending Sec. 129-295 of the City Code 
regarding open houses, home tours, and special events in 
residential zoning districts 

, August 22,2016 



hlinutc Book 88 

2016-110 Authorize the execution of a revenue enhancement and auditing Exhibit 5, 
services agreements between the City and Public Resource Appendix 3 
Management Alliance Corporation with respect to the revenue 
enhancement services 

2016-111 Declare two (2) Police Chevrolet Tahoe's surplus and authorize Exhibit 6 
their sale to Livingston Parish, Louisiana Sheriffs Office in 
consideration of one dollar ($1.00) 

Thereupon, the foregoing minutes, proclamation and resolutions were introduced by Council President 
Smith and their immediate adoption was moved by Council President Pro Tempore Pritchard. The minutes, 
proclamation and resolutions were then considered by the City Council. Council member Womack seconded 
the motion to adopt the foregoing minutes, proclamation and resolutions. Then, upon the question being put 
and the roll called, the vote was recorded as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd Shelton 
Alice Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said Council minutes, proclamation (No. 2016-106) 
and resolutions (Nos. 2016-107 through 2016-1 1 1) are adopted by a vote of 5-0 and as evidence thereof she 
signed the same. 

3, CONSIDERATION OF AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 1693 AND 
PROIiIBITING SMOKING IN CERTAIN ENCLOSED PLACES AND CERTAIN OUTDOOR 
PUBLIC PLACES IN THE CITY (EXHIBIT 7) 

The ordinance was introduced in writing by Council President Smith who then invited questions and 
comments from the audience. 

Leslie Brown of 133 Cherry Street asked how a situation should be handled when someone is [legally] 
smoking at an outdoor public location and other:'non-smokers enter the same area. Mr. Stine responded that 
once someone else enters the public area, it is the smoker's responsibility to stop othenvise they will be in 
violation of the ordinance. The non-smoker@) may request that the put out their smoke or call the police to 
enforce the ordinance. 

There being no comments or discussion, Council President Smith called for a motion. Council 
President Pro Tempore Pritchard made a motion that all rules and regulations which, unless suspended, would 
prevent the immediate consideration and adoption of said ordinance be suspended, and that unanimous consent 
to the immediate consideration of said ordinance is given and that the reading of the ordinance at length be 
waived. The motion was seconded by Council President Smith and was carried, as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: Jack D. Carl 

The Council President Smith declared the motion failed by a vote of 4-1. This matter may be 
reconsidered on September f 2'20 16. 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS REGARDING THE NEXT REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL 



Minute Book 88 347 

Council President Smith announced that the next meeting of the Mountain Brook City Council will be 
held on Monday, September 12,2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chamber of City Hall located at 56 Church 
Street, Mountain Brook, AL 35213. Please visit the City's web site (www.~ntnbrook.org) for more 
information. 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting. 

6. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct transcript of the regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama held at 
City Hall, Council Chamber (Room Af 08) on A u y s t  22,2016, and that the meeting was duly called and held 
in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and that a quorum 
was present. 

City Clerk 

WIIEHEAS, "Myositis" is a general term describing a number of Idiopathic lnfla~nmatory 
Myopathies, which arc life-threatening, rare diseases and thought to be autoitn~nune in nature causing muscle 
weakness, inflammation, pain, skin rashes, lung disease, impairment in swallowing, and fatigue; and 

\\l-IEREAS, There is no cure for any fonn of Myositis and only limited treatment options, which can 
have life-alteritlg side effects, and due to the rarity of Myositis, there is often a delay in diagnosis or 
misdiagnosis causing a delay in potentially cITectiwc treatments that may lead to pennanent musclc loss; and 

IYIIEREAS, Education for patients, caregivers, and hcalthcare providers is important to the overall 
health of patients; and 

WIIEREAS, Myositis can affect both children and adults of all ages with symptoms often developing 
slowly while often mimicking other less-rare diseases; and 

IVlIEREAS, Myositis affects every aspect of patients' lives including emotional, physical, 
relationships, and financial, patients deserve emotional support, financial assistance, and understanding; and 

\\l.IEREAS, Raising awareness and funding are important factors in advancing research and 
developing nen-, less-damaging treatments with the goal of a cure for Myositis; and 

IWIEREAS, Congress passed a house resolution in 2006 proclaiming September 21st as National 
Myositis Awareness Day; and 

IjrIIEREAS, CITY OF MOUNTAIS BROOK would like to join Congress and Myositis Support 
and Understanding Association in raising awareness of Myositis. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor of the City of Mountain Brook, do hereby 
proclaim that September 20 t 6, be observed as 

MYOSITIS AWARENESS M0NTI.I 

August 22,20 16 



Minute Book 88 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

AUGUST 25,2016 

the City 
to order 

The City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama met in special public session at City Hall of 
of Mountain Brook on Tuesday, the 25th day of August 2016, at 5 0 0  p.m. The meeting was then called 
by the Council President and the roll was called with the following results: 

Present: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Absent: Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Also present were City Manager Sam Gaston and City Clerk Steven Boone. 

1. CONSIDERATION OF A RESOLUTION (NO. 2016-112) CANVASSING THE RESULTS OF 
THE AUGUST 23,2016 GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION (APPENDIX 1) 

The following resolution was introduced in writing by Council President Smith and considered by the 
City Council: 

L 

RESOLUTION NO, 2016-112 

RESOLUTION CANVASSING THE RESULTS OF THE AUGUST 23,2016, 
CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK GENERAL MUNICIPAL ELECTION 

WHEREAS, the general election for the City of Mountain Brook was duly and legally held on Tuesday, 
August 23,2016, as provided by law, and 

WHEREAS, the municipal governing body of the City of Mountain Brook met on this 25th day of 
August 2016, a quorum thereof of being present, at 5 o'clock p.m., and has canvassed the returns, and has 
ascertained and determined the number of votes received by each candidate, and 

WHEREAS, said municipal governing body has ascertained and determined the results of said election 
summarized as follows [Appendix I]: 

I:\Minuts & AgcndmKouncilV016UOI60825 Minutes Election Canvms.doc August 25,2016 



Minute Book 88 

Mountnin 
Brookwood Brook Mountain 

St. Luke's Baptist Comm. Brook Cherokee 
Episcopal City Hall  Church Church Elem. Bend Efem. Absentec Totnl - .  

01 02 03 04 05 06 
City Council Place 2 
Philip Black 200 329 157 157 107 136 18 1,104 

Provisional 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
63.6% 

Vincent J. 
Schilleci, I11 59 74 107 7 1 28 62 8 409 

Provisional 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
23.5% 

Tripp Watson 26 84 30 26 2 1 32 6 225 
Provisional 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Registered voters 2,240 3,929 3,24 1 3,436 1,611 2,104 NIA 16,561 
Voter turn-out 12.7% 12.4% 9.1% 7.4% 9.7% 10.9% AX4 I 0.5%, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that: 

1. Philip Black received a majority of the vote cast for the office of City Council Place No. 2 and is 
hereby declared duly elected to that office for the four (4) year term beginning on the first Monday in 
November 20 16. 

It was moved by Council member Shelton that the rmlution canvassing the election results be passed. 
The motion for adoption of the resolution was seconded by Council member Womack and upon the question, the 
vote thereon was as follows: 

Ayes: Virginia C. Smith, Council President 
William S. Pritchard, 111, Council President Pro Tempore 
Jack D. Carl 
Lloyd C. Shelton 
Alice B. Womack 

Nays: None 

Council President Smith thereupon declared that said resolution (no. 2016-1 12) is adopted by a vote of 5 - 4  
and as evidence thereof she signed the same and the elected officials issued a certificate of election (Exhibit I). 

2. ADJOURNMENT 

There being no fbrther business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned the 
meeting. The next regular meeting of the City Council is scheduled for Monday, September 12,2016, at 7 p.m. in 
the Council Chambers of City Hall. 

3. CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, certify the above is a true and 
correct synopsis of the discussion from the meeting of the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama held at City Hall, Pre-Council Room (A106) on August 25,2016, and that the meeting was duly 

J:\Minutcs & AgcndasU30unclK016\2~160825 Minutes Election Canvas.& August 25,201 6 



Minute Book 88 367 

called and held in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama and bylaws of the City and 
that no formal action or votes were conducted at said meeting. 

There being no fbrther business to come before the City Council, Council President Smith adjourned 
the meeting. The next regular meeting of the City Council is scheduled for Monday, September 12,2016, at 7 p.m. 
in the Council Chambers of City Hall. 

City Clerk 

EXHIBIT I 

CERTIFICATE OF ELECTION 

STATE OF ALABAMA 

JEFFERSON COWTI' 

CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

The undersigned hereby certify that tfle official canvass of the votes cast 
in the general municipal election held in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabaman, 
on August 23,2016, shows that Philip Black was duly elected to the oflice of 
City Council Place No. 2 of the City of Mountain Bmk,  Alabama for the four 
(4) year t e i  commencing on the f rst Monday of November, 2016. 

Adopted pursuant to the requirements of Sections 1 1-46-20 et seq. of the 
Alabama Code of 1975, as amended, this 25th day of August 2016. 

-- 

Virginia C. Smith, Council President 

William S. Pritchard, 111, 
Council President f 1-0 Tempore 

Jack D. Carl, Council Member 

Lloyd C. Shelton, Council Member 

Alice B. Womack, Council Member 

August 25,201 6 



PROCLAMATION 

WI.IEREAS, The Constitution of the united States of America, the guardian ol  
our lihertics, embodies the principles of limited govcrnrncnt in a Republic dcdicatcd to 
rule by law; and 

W-IEREAS, September 17,2016, rnarlzs the t-wo hundred twenty-ninth 
annivcrsary of the framing of the Constitution of the Unitcd Statcs of America by the 
Constitutional Convention, providing a historic opportunity for all Americans to 
remember the achicvemcnts of our Founding Fathcrs and to reflect on thc actions of 
Americans who for the past 229 years have defined the words of the Constitution by 
exercising thcir rights and responsibilities as citizens; and 

WI-EREAS, It is fitting and proper to accord official recognition to this 
magnificent document and its memorable annivcrsary, and to the patriotic celebration 
that which will commemorate it; and 

mIEREAS, Public Law 915 guarantees the issuing of a each year 
by the President of the Unitcd Statcs o l  America designating Scptcrnbcr 17th through 
23rd as Constitution Wcch; 

NOW, TI-IEREFORE, I, Lawrcncc T. Odcn, by virtue of the authority vested in 
me as PIiayor of the City of Mountain Brooh, do hereby proclaim the weclz of Scptcmhcr 
17th through 23' 2016, as 

CONSTITUTION WEEK 

and encourage all rcsidcnts to recognize and appreciate the importance of this enduring 
document to our nation and maffirm our commitment to the rights and rc~~onsibilitics 
of citizenship in this great nation, study the Constitution, and reflcct on the privilege of 
being an American with all the rights and responsibilities which that privilege involves. 

IN PQIThTESS WHEREOF, I havc hcrcunto set my 
hand and caused the Seal of thc City of Mountain 
Broolz to be affixed thc 12th day o l  Scptcmbcr of 
the year of our Lorcl2016 and of the InJependcnct? 
of the United Statcs of America, the 240th. 

Lawrence T. Odcn, Mayor 



By the gotwnmr &Uiz6anza 
7 s  $tpm$er 17,2016. m=r@ & 229rh cnrriienarj. o f t k  q n t q  o j t h  Cnwtiiulion uf 

tlk 'Lhu&dStsrw of)hertcu a: I& Co.7irrrut10rr;tlContenrwn, prordq ;t huturic oppvrrunrryfirafl 
f ncricaru lo mnm6er !fir a6-u ofuur Founding Fa&s a d t o  r<ficr on I& actwnr 4;4nurir~nr 
u160 for th part 22Pjtan h i e  &f;ned& uwrdr 4th C' ta tut tb j  6y w r y  r h r  qhu and 
rtpnn6lli tus a dzutnr; a d  

4 

WE-, r t 2  Conititutton i l f i d a m c n t a 4  prediuurtdon gmwwrrr 6y 'S* tai q k .  ' m;l@ 
ntcrns  ' untfer~ranrziy of the Cun~tiruiwn ~ndrt~f iomhtrr<an r u t n t t ; l f c h r  af t b f i r w t p ~ m r  couztp 
n n d r b  ritu htafib of it3 p p u h c ;  and 

Constitution Week 
irr Ikr Sure ofJIbbm, admcnnqt alrctiirms r4 rttqnitr  ndupprrriatc rhc rmprtonrt oJdis em;iufiw 
d~vncnt la  our nation a n d r r f !  u ~ c o m * r ~ t  LO & " p h  1driplmsi$ii7tLv Ufcikizcns&p 1s t k  
gnat nation. I ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ t c ' . r i ; Y & . . & ~ - & ! ! f l &  Grfam g&&, Jsei,x{onb&M-'' 
o r p n ~ u ~ t o ~ . i  bring ari=tn.s tqctkr  to ctk6rdrr ardrcficr upn thr Crmr:~rurrirn andconduct r ~ r m ~ n i r r  ~ n d  
prrgrumr in honor of our fovndng donrnwnt i 22916 annic~rrury~ 

* 

+en t k h ~ H i n d r t r r s i t h t  tjrcat SraCof th t  

Ofue of t i e  pcvmorar  rfir Shre C~plrorirr tr& C i ~ y  



GYNECOLOGIC CANCER AWARENESS MONTH PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, during National GynecoIo@c Cancer Awareness Month, we honor those we have 

lost, show our support for women who bravely carry on the fight against gynecologic (gyn) cancers, and 

take action to lessen the tragic toll these cancers take on families across our Nation; and 

WHEREAS, gyn cancers arc among the leading cancer ltillers of women in the United States, and 

more than 98,000 women will be diagnosed, and more than 30,000 women will die &om these diseases 

this year and the absence ther leave in our hearts will be deeply felt forever; and 

WHEREAS, the "A State of Teal" initiative brings awareness of all gyn cancers to the people 

throughout the State of Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being of women in our city and state are enhanced by 
increased awareness of gyn cancers and their symptoms and treatments; and 

WHEREAS, it is critical for women, physicians and aII hedthcare to recognize the rislz 

factors and symptoms of gyn conccrs and to remember the importance of early detection in preventing and 

treating these diseases; and 

WHEREAS, continued progress in the battle against gyn cancers requires increased awareness 

and education, and aII educators, service providers, researchers and advocacy groups are urged to work 

together to inform more women about these cancers and to educate women in thc City of Mountain 

Brook, Alabama and the State of Alabama about screening and prevention services; and 

WHEREAS, it is also crucial that a11 women in the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama and thc 

Shte  of Alabama taIte an active role in learning the symptoms and risk factors associated with gyn 

cancers, developing healthy habits, and undergoing regular medical examinations so that any occurrence of 

these diseases may be detected in their earIy and treatilble stages; 

NOWf THEREFORE, I, Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor of the C i b  of the City of Mountain BrooIt, 

Alabama, Alabama, do hereby proclaim September 2016, as 

GYNECOLOGIC CANCER AWmENESS MONTJ3 

throughout the City and encourage all residents of the City of Mountain BrooIt, Alabama to work together 

to raise awareness of gynecoIogic cancers and do commend this observance to aII our residents. 

IN m S S  WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 

caused the Seal oE the City of Mountain Brook to be affixed the 

12th day of ~ e ~ t e m b e r  of the year of our Lord 2016 and of the 

Independence ol  the United States of America, the 240th. 

Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 



~YLWLU ~ t )  Lory or Mountan a r m  Mall - lnvlang you to raruclpaw - H atate OT I= - ,a IO urrr Lancer ~wareness Lampalgn 

Steve Boone <boones@mtnbrook.org> 

Inviting you to Participate - A State of Teal - 2016 GYN Cancer Awareness Campaign 
1 message 

Doris Moody <d.moody@thinkoflaura.org, 
To: boones@mtnbrook.org 
Cc: ma.ki.ng@thinkoflaura.org 

Mon, Aug 29,2016 at 8;44 AM 

Steve, 

I am sending this information along this morning pursuant to our brief conversation this morning. Mary Anne King has 
been working to get Mountain Brook on board with a visual presence in Memory Triangle and has been working with Sam 
Gaston and others in this effort. 

The month of September is GYNlOvarian Cancer Awareness Month. Since the awareness ribbon color for gynecologic 
cancer is teal, lighting prominent buildings and landmarks across the State of Alabama in teal is a very effective and 
noticeable way to raise awareness. This effort began in 2012 with the lighting of the State Capitol in Montgomery and the 
issuance of a proclamation by the governor declaring September as GYN Cancer Awareness month. Since that time, the 
effort has grown to include lighting of buildings across the state and in the panhandle of Florida. 

A couple of years ago, a formal initiative was formed and is now known as "A Stale of Teal." Ovarian and GYN cancer 
support groups have joined in this effort to ensure that local communities are made aware of the need to know more 
about the symptoms of GYN cancers. Because of this work, municipalities across the State of Alabama have issued 
proclamations declaring September as GYN Cancer Awareness Month. In 2015, over 110 buildings were lit and nearly 40 
municipalities issued proclamations in an effort to raise awareness to the symptoms of these diseases. 

How can you be a part of this campaign? 

The primary purpose of my e-mail to you is to request that you issue a proclamation in the city of Mountain Brook 
declaring September as GYN Cancer Awareness Month. Mountain Brook has participated in this initiative over the past 
few years. A sample proclamation is attached to this message. I am also attaching our flyer and other materials relative 
to this campaign along with our logo. If you have a newsletter or publication, or a FacebooklTwitter page, we would 
appreciate a mention if possible. 

2015 Lighting participants included Regions Field, State Capitol Building, BJCC, Alabama Theatre, Alabama Power, 
Auburn University, Alabama Fire College, Energen, Birmingham Zoo, Huntsville Botanical Gardens, Mobile Infirmary 
Medical Centers, Harbert Realty Services, Sloss Furnaces, UAB, Alys Beach, ACIPCO, Calhoun Community 
College, Brookwood Medical Center, Huntsville Hospital, Retirement Systems of Alabama, USA's Mitchell Cancer 
Institute. Also participating were the Cities of Alabaster, Birmingham, Auburn, Gardendale, Columbiana, Vestavia, 
Hoover, Helena, Pelham, Mountain Brook, Homewood, Montgomery, Chelsea, Huntsville. Athens, Lafayette, Opelika, 
Sylacauga, Madison, Florence, Jasper, Montevallo, Scottsboro, Russellville. Cordova, and lrondale 

This yeah effort will officially be kicked off on Thursday, September 1, with a Spirit Night sponsored by Newk's Eatery 
and hosted at Newk's locations around the state. Local survivors, patients, family and friends will host at each location. 



CVLYILU 1b LIIY 01 Mwntilln MOOK Mala - lnvlung yw to raruclpale- A amwar leal - rum r r r ~  Lancer Awareness Larnwgn 

For more information visit our website at www.AStateOfTeal.org. 

Feel free to contact me if you need additional information. Do respond and let me know if you will indeed be a part of this 
so that we can give you the proper recognition on our websile and in our social media campaign. We will also attempt to 
have a representative present to accept the proclamation if issued. 

Kind regards, 

Doris S. Moody 

Board Member 

Laura Crandall Brown Ovarian Cancer Foundation 

www.ThinkOfLaura.org 

Committee Member 

A State of Teal 

www.AStateoFreal.org 

3 attachments 

2016 ASOT info flyer revised 71416.pdf 
8 671, 

2016 Proclamation Example.docx 
16K 

ASOT Getlnvolved.pdf 
98K 



A State Of Teal 
An Alabama GYN Cancer Awareness Campaign 

Raising Awareness One Building at a Time 

Why Teal? 
- 

The month of September is  Gynecologic (GYN) Cancer 

rwareness Month. Since the awareness ribbon color for 
gynecologic cancer is teal, lighting prominent buildings 

and landmarks across the state of Alabama in teal is a 

very effective and noticeable way to raise awareness. 
I 

Sponsored by: 

Contact us at: 
www.astateofteal.org 

Iindsayg@thinkoflaura.org 

Why is awareness needed? 
Alabama is one of the top five states 
with the highest rate of death from 
cervical cancer. (source: CDC/NCI) 

Alabama is tied as second in the US 

with the highest rate of death from 
ovarian cancer. (source: CDC/NCI) 

There are no early detectionlscreening 
tests for four of the five gynecologic cancers. 

Cervical cancer is 100% preventable 
and curable when detected early. 

Women need to know the signs and 
symptoms of all GYN cancers. 

Groundbreaking research is being 
conducted throughout Alabama. 

tate Cap~to l  



Alabama Statistics 
In 2016 approximately 

213 diagnosed with cervical cancer 

353 diagnosed with ovarian cancer 

561 diagnosed with uterine cancer 

80 wilt die from cervical cancer 

263 will die from ovarian cancer 
107 will die from uterine cancer 

(source: CDCfNCI) 

ASOT is pleased to have Newk's Eatery as a partner for our 2016 

campaign. This September we will work together to further our common 

mission to raise awareness for ovarian and gynecologic cancers. We will 
@ kick off the month with a Spirit Night held on September 1st  at all 

Birmingham area Newk's locations. Show your support by visiting any 

location to meet local survivors, patients, family and friends. "Everyone 

at Newk's Eatery is committed to supporting ovarian cancer research 
and awareness, and with your support, we can give every woman a 
fighting chance." (newkscar~s.corn) 

In 2015, over 110 buildings were lit and almost 40 municipalities issued proclamations. Lighting participants 

include: Regions Field, State Capitol Building, BJCC, Alabama Theatre, Alabama Power, Auburn University, 

Alabama Fire College, Energen, Birmingham Zoo, Huntsville Botanical Gardens, Mobile Infirmary Medical 

Centers, Harbert Realty Services, Sloss Furnaces, UAB, Alys Beach, ACIPCO, Calhoun Community College, 

Brookwood Medical Center, Huntsville Hospital, Retirement Systems of Alabama, USA's Mitchell Cancer 

Institute and the Cities of: Alabaster, Birmingham, Auburn, Gardendale, Columbiana, Vestavia, Hoover, 

Helena, Pelham, Mountain Brook, Homewood, Montgomery, Chelsea, Huntsville, Athens, Lafayette, Opelika, 

Sylacauga, Madison, Florence, Jasper, Montevallo, Scottsboro, Russellville, Cordova, and Irondale. 



What is A State of Teal? 
A statewide campaign to promote awareness 
of gynecologic (GYN) cancers during 
September. GYN cancers include ovarian, 
cervical, uterine, vaginal, and vulvar cancers. 

Why should I get involved? 
In the US., a woman is diagnosed with a GYN cancer every 6 minutes, and 
Alabama is top 5 in the U.S. for cervical and ovarian cancer deaths. There is no 
early detectionkcreening test for four out of five GYN cancers. 

Someone you know will likely be affected. In honor of the loved ladies in your life, 
help us promote critical awareness messages! 

How do I participate? 
Participants are asked to: 

Light your building/premises teal during September. Gel filters and/or strand lights 
are available depending on your needs. We ask that you cover the cost of lighting 
materials. If you cannot do so, ask us about our limited lighting assistance fund. 
Post/distribute awareness information on site (ex: yard sign, flyers, poster) 
Help promote the campaign through web and social media. 

LCBF provides: 

A staff or volunteer liaison to coordinate all details with you, including seamless 
ordering and delivery of your lighting and awareness materials. 
Promotion of your business/organization as a participant through LCBF printed 
materials, media relations efforts, web site, social media platforms, etc. 
Awareness information for your employees, customers, and other stakeholders. 

201 5 Results: 
11 0+ buildings lit teal 
30+ municipalities issued proclamations 
Thousands of Alabamians reached & 

I 
Jordan Hare Stadium 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-115 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Kelly 
Hulsey is hereby appointed as a member of the Tree Commission of the City of Mountain Brook, to serve 
without compensation, with the term of office to end September 12,201 9. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I ,  Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Kelly Hulscy Appointed to the Tree Commission 



Kelly Hulsey was born and raised in Birmingham, Alabama. She attended Wake Forest 
University, Auburn University and did her graduate work at The University of Virginia obtaining a 
Masters in Education in Counseling. In her young career Iife, Keiry worked as a Primary 
Counselor at UAB's Addiction Recovery Program. 
Kelly Is married to Duncan Hulsey, who Is a PsytMloglst and Business Consultant in the 
Birmingham area. They have 2 children, Lily(14) and Duncan(l2) who attend MBJH. 
In 2000, Kelly returned to school at Jefferson State Community College to study Landscape 
Design and in 2004 she officially opened her doors in the Landscape Design Business. Most of 
her business is in residential dasfgn and she enjays most the collaboration between the 
craftsmen when bullding a home. 
Kelly Is an actkre member of the Garden Club of America and has spent lime in the UK studylng 
National Trust Gardens and homes. 
Kelly has made it important in her work to plant for !he next generation of trees In this city. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-116 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Elizabeth 
Poynor is hereby appointed as a member of the Tree Commission of the City of Mountain Brook, to serve 
without compensation, with the term of office to end September 12,2019. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I , Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby cedi@ the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at 
its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes or record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Elizabeth Poynor Appointed to the Tree Commission 



Elizabeth Poynor was born and raised in Mountain Brook, Alabama. Married to Wilmer 
Poynor with Ray and Poynor Properties. They have three children, Will and Florence 
have graduated college and live out of state and Virginia is a freshman at the University 
of Georgia. 

Elizabeth received a Bachelor of Landscape Architecture degree from Auburn University 
and studied Historical Preservation in Siena, Italy. After receiving her degree she 
worked for the Birmingham Historical Society researching the work of Olmsted, Warren 
Manning and the Jemmison family's impact in the Birmingham area. 

She spent three years working for Laubmann - Reed and Associates in Atlanta. Her 
work consisted of land planning studies and developing design guidelines for planned 
communities. Providing plans and guidelines for landscaping, hardscape, pedestrian 
and vehicular traffic, site furnishings, color schemes and zoning for future development 
within these communities. 

Elizabeth currently works for Lagniappe Designs in Mountain Brook and is a volunteer in 
the community. 

Elizabeth chaired the Birmingham Museum Sculpture Gardens landscape and lighting 
renovation. Chaired the Glorious Gardens fund raiser for the Birmingham Botanical 
Gardens and currently chairs the Facilities and Landscaping committee for Camp Merrie 
Woode in Sapphire, NC. 



RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-1 17 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Penny 
Page is hereby reappointed to The Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to serve without compensation through 
October 30,2020. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certi& the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Penny Page Reappointed to the Library Board 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-118 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that Max 
Pulliam is hereby reappointed to The Emmet O'Neal Library Board, to serve without compensation 
through October 30,2020. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certitjl the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

I City Clerk 

Max Pulliam Reappointed to the Librnry Board 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-120 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby rejects all bids received with respect to the construction of a public safety training building 
(#B-20 160804- 132) opened July 28,20 16. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifjr the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Reject All Bids for the Construction of a Public Safety Training Building 2016-120 



Joint Training Facility for Fire & Police 
- ---- 
lnbox 2 . . .I . a .  . 

Christopher Mullins 2:03 PM (4 
minutes ago) 

Steve - 
Attached you will find the bid tabulations for the Police and Fire training building. We would like 
to reject all of the bids that were submitted and rebid the project. All of the bids were well in 
excess of what we had budgeted for the project. 

Thanks, 

--- Forwarded message - 
From: Bill Whittaker <~ill@billwarch.com* 
Date: Mon, Aug 22,2016 at 529 PM 
Subject: RE: Joint Training Facility for Fire B Police 
To: Christopher Mullins <rnullinsc@rntnbrook.orq> 

Chris, 

Attached are the following: 

Mandatory Prebid sign in sheet (handwritten) 
Typed list contractor at mandatory prebid 
Certified bid tabulation 
Proof of Advertisement for bids. 

Please let me know if you need anything else. 

Thank you, 

-Bill 
tel: 256.689.0238 
fax: 205.278.8731 



CERTIFIED TABUMTION OF BIDS PROJECT NO. 15109 
AS TABULATED BELOW. BlDS WERE RECEIVED 

PROJECT: JOINT TRAINING FACILITY FOR DATE: OBIC4/2016 TIME; 2100 PM CST 

FIRE AND POLICE DEPARTMENTS PLACE: OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
56 CHURCH STREET. 

MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA MOUNTAIN BROOK. ALABAMA 35213 

> 

I certify that the above bids were received seated and were publicly opened and read aloud at the time and place 
indicztcd and that this is a true and correct tabulation of all bids received for this project. 

Sv~orn and subscribed before me this !& day ( ~ z ~ ~ b Y :  ~ ~ & v \  h 4 ~ 1 7 7 j U ~ k L -  
Typed or prfnted Name and Title of Architect or Engineer 

Commlssi~n &pireS 
August 6 . 2 0 1 ~ ~ .  

Notary P;lbl-c Stgnature 



3ary C Wyatt Inc 
245 Riverchase Pkwy E, Hoover, AL 35244 
Phone: (205) 985-0 12 1 
?lick Miele 
~miele@gcwyatt.con~ 

Steven Vaughn Constniction 
4296 Fowlers Feny Rd N, Gadsden, AL 35907 
Phone: (256) 413-0586 
Jim Robinson 
iimrobinson 1 5@gmail.com 

I.F. Morgan Contractors, Inc. 
1 1 10 Jones Rd, Anniston, AL 36207 
Phone: (256) 83 1-5284 
lohn Morgan 
nfinorgangc@aol.com 

Construction Services Group, LLC 
402 Office Park Drive, Suite 208 
.Mountain Brook, Alabama 35223 
205.966.3807 
rricia Taylor 
;taylor.csg@gmail.com 

Maxus Construction Co 
700 Southgate Dr, Pelham, AL 35 124 
Phone: (205) 733-1214 
Bentley Windle 
~entIeywindIe@maxusinc.com 

Hurst Construction 
1636 Hillycr Robinson Pkwy S, Oxford, AL 36203 
Phone: (256) 835-7745 
Brian Cairo 
~rian@hurstconstruction.com 

Forsyth Building Co 1nc 
456 Jones Rd, Anniston, AL 36207 
'256) 835-0033 
~ a r o l d  Forsytl~ 
narold@forsythbuiIding.com 

3 1 Construction 
34 Cedar Ln, Trussville, AL 35 173 
Phone: (205) 661-3 102 
Cheryl Sides 
:heryl@thirtyoneinc.com 



Birmingham News 
LEGAL AFFlDAVff 

INW 0002724754 

Remit P~yment to: 
Alabmr Mcdb Gmup 
Dtpt 77571 
P.O. B ~ X  now 
Debit, MI 48277MI 

BILL WITTAER ARCHITECTURE 
2956 OW W S M N  HIGHWAY 
ANNISTON, AL 36206 

wYf b mcehnd by Iha City of Mounbin Brwk, 
.d 5.  -. .W) 1." ".mh....Y- ..- + a  + 

S t ~ H u d l n ~ m a n , u y l h l r h . I t b D d d r n p r  
ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS Owner may deckwe the mntract VCM ~f the 

d ~ h m N m n w h l c h p ~ m n n n p l p a r h t h s  
cert(f0bM b false 

Sealed ~roposbb wdl be received bY the c l t ~  In order to assure that Bidders receive dl ad- 
of MOuntaln Brook, 01ti Of thc City MaMS- denda a d  or dar~ftcatlm to the bld dacu. 
er. 56 Church Uret.  Mountan Brook AL ments m a t~mdy marner. It k kghy r m -  
352U until 2 00 pm CST July a h  2016 for rnemleci that all bidders obtan at  least one 
a new 3.000 91 ft Mnt T f a l f ~ t ~  FabjltY f~ coinme st of M Pduments drr- horn 
Fire and Pol- Qe~artments at time tk ~rchitett  E n f ~ t i ~  that do not pbtan Ed 
and pbce they wdl be PublMv o w e d  and Obciiments from this source wlll not recave 
reaU A cam~er's chsck or bid bond wabie adderda and or clw~frcatons to t h  bd 
to City of Mountam Brook In an amount not d&~hents diredly from the Archtect W- 
less than five (5) prcerY of the amount of ders.relying on plan rooms OI other servtces 
the bd, but n no event mote than S?J3.000. to & a n  t h  M Doalrnents rather than 
must accomww the blddef's progosal w- otJainnq t h  cLrecMy born the source are 
form- and Payment W s  and evldsnce doing &their owp nsk. 
at, WnUrm I ~ U U U P ~  in the.hddSdUm= Or- a M ~ f ~ ~ ~ r w y . b o  m r .  
w~ll be tequrred at the sanw of the Con- med at the Mice of BIII Whittaker ~rehitec. 
tract ture, 2956 Old Gadvlen Highway. Annisto~ 
A bndatorv Pre-Bid CanCre~e a xkd- ~ ~ ' 3 6 %  l&. 25bte9.0238 and appo. 

FOR QUESTIONS CONCERNING TnW AFFICAW. uled lor &ly 19th 2016 at 200Pm l ocdd  piair $an rdom Bd Documents may be 
PLEASE CAU STEPHANIE HARMN AT (20s) 3 2 ~ s ~ .  adlacent to the p r w d  Yte 3579 M St. ottaineti hMi, t$:Aj~hltea uwn deDO~t of 

Mountain Braok. AL 35213. All potentid SEO per &, wluch mli be rduunded #I full on 
gewral contractor bidders are r ~ u t r e d  to the first 2 iwed to ach general cow 
a M  ths conference. tract bider subittrig a bonaltde brd, w n  
Alabama law (Ject~on 4W-1%. code of Ala- return 01 documents ~wgood c~ndrtlon with- 
bama R75) provldes thet every bd submrt- (n ten days of M M e .  
ted and m W X t  executed shall Contain a EMS must. be submitted on proposal forms 
certrlkatrm that the vendor. mntractor, furnished by the Arcfiltect or copies thereof 
and 11 of its affiliates that make sales for AII bidders wtq h amounts exWrq 
dellvery into Alabama or h e s  for use in that &&istied by thr! State mmng 
Al%ba%8 are reglstnd, collectmw, and re- *id for *nerd $ntraQws must te II- 
m~ttlng AbbaM state a d  local sdeS use, c m  under tk @ov~sipm 01 T~tle 34, 
a d o r  lease tax on all tau&@ sak  W Chapter 8, code of A M ! ,  1975, and must 
k56es 111 Alabama. By subm~ttir~ a rapanse show evideke of llcmse kfore Wmg or 
to lhis solotahon, the In& 6 haeby cer- bid will not be received or ccmidwed by the 
hbing that the are In full COmphae wth Arcfiitect; the bidder shdl show such evl. 
Ad No ~06.!3?7, they are not baed  horn d m e  b~ w l y  dsplwiw hk or h. current 
btdd~r~ or entenrrg into a mWraCt ~UfSudnt Iceme wrnber on the outside of the seded 
In AI-A.lH a114 w k r n d d r u x  t b t  t b  --.-a=-- ,.. .,-L&-L A- t ;. A.I..-.-~ 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-121 

BE 1T RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, tf~at the City 
Council hereby ratifies the engagement of Richard Riley Simpson under the supervision of Brasfield & 
Gorrie (Resolution No. 2016-095) to perform moisture abatement exploration services at the Emmet 
O'Neal Library building in relation to the ongoing service agreement previously authorized (Resolution 
NOS. 20 16-058). 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Richard Simpson Moisture Abatement Exploration at the Library 2016-121 



Date: August 8,1016 

Robert McElroy 
Bras field % Gon-ie 
7'" Ave S 
Birmingham, AL  35205 

Robert; 

Simpson Plastering, Ilc will provide the following rates per man hour: 

Field Labor: $40) hr 
Superintendent (oversight): $501 hr 
Senior level PM or Estimator: S70i hr 

All scaffold and materials will be marked up lo%. 

The entire bill will be marked up 10% for overhead and 5% for profit, 

Thank you for the opportunity. 

Richard Riley 
Simpson. 
205-229-33G4(~) 
105-994-2801(0) 

P.O. BOX 321275-BIRMINGHAM, AL. 35232-1275 PHONE 800-994-2801 FAX 205 591-2505 
Interior & Exterior Walls & Ceilings * Plaster & Stucco Systems * ElFS Systems * Spray Applied Fireproofing 



Robed BenUey 
GOVERNOR 

ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 

SUITE 450 
HOOVER, AL 35242 

P.O. BOX 382348 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 35238-2348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 327-4962 

John R. Cooper 
TRANSPORTATION OlRECTOR 

August 24,2016 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Project No. STPBH-3716( ) 
Proj. Ref. No. 100066111 
Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for 
Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek and Canterbury Road 
Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Right-of-way Agreement (and one copy) between the State of Alabama and 
the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal affixed to both to this 
office for further handing. A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
aftixed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as well as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any point contained herein, please feel free 
to contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

DeJarvis Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

LAT/t rs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File w/encl. 

BY :P 
Lance Taylor, P.E. 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGlREEMENT 
FOR 

RIGHT-OF-WAY ACQUISITION 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
AND 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project STPBH-3716 ( ) 
Project Reference Number 100066111 

Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, 

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as 

STATE; and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY; in 

cooperation with the United States Department of Transporlation, Federal Highway 

Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FHWA, and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the 

Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward 

the implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and CITY desire to cooperate in a right-of-way acquisition 

program for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) 

over Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BM #002873) over Watkins Creek in 

the City of Mountain Brook. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 



(1) This Agreement will cover only the right-of-way acquisition phase of the work. 

The right-of-way purchased under terms of this Agreement will be acquired by the CITY, 

in the name of the CITY for the CITY, and in accordance with current regulations of the 

STATE and FHWA. The CITY will adhere to all STATE and FHWA regulations 

pertaining to the acquisition of ROW and will coordinate their activities with the Region 

Acquisition Manager for guidance. The property will be acquired in the name of the 

CITY with any condemnation or other legal proceedings being performed by the CITY. 

(2) The CITY shall follow ail Federal regulations related to the Management, Leasing, and 

Disposal of right-of-way, uneconomic remnants and excess right-of-way as found in CFR 

23 9 71 0 Subpart D. Any change in access control, disposal of excess right-of-way, and 

uneconomic remnants shall be approved by ALDOT. Proceeds from Leases and 

disposals shall be credited to the Project or to the Title 23 Collector Account. 

(3) Funding for this Agreement is subject to availability of Federal Aid funds at the time of 

authorization by FHWA. 

(4) This Project will be administered by the CITY and all cost will be financed, when eligible 

for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 percent Federal funds and 20 percent CITY 

funds. The estimated cost and participation by the various parties are as follows: 

Total Estimated Estimated 
Estimated Federal CITY 

Cost - - Funds Funds 
Right-of-way acquisition 

TOTAL $1 00,000 $80,000 $20,000 

It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds 

the estimated cost, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share of the final 

cost. 



( 5 )  Any cost for work not eligible for Federal reimbursement will be financed 100 percent by 

the CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit. 

(6) The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, due to rules and/or regulations 

of FHWA (including but not limited to delay of the projects, or delay of projects 

contemplated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the current projects) that 

Federal funds expended on this Project must be rehnded to the FHWA, the CITY will 

reimburse and pay to the STATE a sum of money equal to the total amount of STATE 

and Federal h d s  expended under this Agreement. 

(7) The CITY will invoice the STATE for the Federal share of right-of-way cost not more 

frequently than monthly. Requests for reimbursement will be made on forms provided by 

the STATE and submitted through the East Central Region Engineer for payment. 

(8) Invoices for any phase of work performed by the CITY under the terms of this 

Agreement will be submitted within twelve (1 2) months after the completion and 

acceptance by the STATE of the work. Any invoices submitted after this twelve month 

period will not be eligible for payment. 

(9) The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

(10) The STATE will assist the CITY, if necessary, in any public involvement actions that 

may be required. 

(1 1) The STATE will provide without cost to the CITY, information available from its records 

that will facilitate the performance of the work. 



(12) It is clearly understood by both parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or 

Federal funds beyond those mentioned herein and that a separate Agreement will be 

required for the construction of the proposed improvement. 

(I 3) The terms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed 

by the parties hereto. 

(14) A final audit will be made of all Project records after completion of the Project and a 

copy will be furnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance 

with Act 1994, No. 94-414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties 

as reflected by the audit and this Agreement. 

(1 5 )  Subject to the limitations on damages applicable to municipal corporations under Ala. 

Code 5 1 1-47-1 90 (1 979, the CITY shall indemniq, and hold harmless the State of 

Alabama, the Alabama Department of Transportation, its officers, officials, agents, 

servants, and employees from and against (1) claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 

including but not limited to attorney's fees arising out of, connected with, resulting from 

or related to the work performed by the CITY, or its ogcers, employees, contracts, 

agents or assigns; (2) the provision of any services or expenditure of funds required, 

authorized, or undertaken by the CITY pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; or (3) 

any damage, loss, expense, bodily injury, or death, or injury or destruction of tangible 

property (other than the work itself), including loss of use therefiom, and including but 

not limited to attorney's fees, caused by the negligent, careless or unskillhl acts of the 

CITY, its agents, servants, representatives or employees, or the misuse, misappropriation, 

misapplication, or misexpenditure of any source of hnding, compensation or 



reimbursement by the CITY, its agents, servahts, representatives or employees, or anyone 

for whose acts the CITY may be liable. 

By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of the STATE, its officers, 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity fiom the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties. 

By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, 

that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for 

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 

Fwtherrnore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be 

deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting 

therefrom. 

This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon 

the delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination. 

Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or the CITY 

that will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama (7i24" Law). 

Exhibits M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of approval of the Governor of Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY: 
City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN LEGALLY 
REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
CONTENT: 

BY: 
Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Region Engineer, DeJarvis Leonard, P. E. 

Multimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert J. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Don T. Arkle, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Transportation Director, John R. Cooper 

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama this 
day of ,20 

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY 



Exhibit M 
CERTIFICATION 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participantlrecipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective participantlrecipient each respectively certi@ that to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient, that: 

( I )  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective participanUrecipient or the person signing on behaif of the participanthecipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an oficer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, the prospective participant/recipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shalI be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $1 0,000 and not more than $ J 00,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participant/recipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, that the prospective participantlrecipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $1 00,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 



EXHIBIT N 

CONSULTANT 211 5l95 
REVISED 5130/02 
REVISED 611611 1 
REVISED 10!28115 

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 11, Section 213 of the Constitution of Alabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is further agreed that if any provision of this 
AGREEMENT shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either 
now in effect or which may, during the course of this AGREEMENT, be enacted, then the 
conflicting provision in the AGREEMENT shall be deemed null and void. 

When considering settlement of controversies arising from or related to the work covered by this 
AGREEMENT, the parties may agree to use appropriate forms of non-binding alternative 
dispute resolution. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

a. If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject 
to termination in the event that funds should not be appropriated for the continued 
payment of the agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

b. In the event of proration of the find from which payment under this AGREEMENT is to 
be made, agreement will be subject to termination. 

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS 

The STATE and CONSULTANT acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence 
by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations of or liabilities to the STATE, 
CONSULTANT, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any 
matter resulting from the underlying contract. 

The CONSULTANT agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided to FHWA. It is fiuther agreed that the clause shall not 
be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 



RESOLUTION NUMBER' Za (6 -1 2b 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Right-of-way acquisition program for Project STPBH-37 1 6 ( ), Project Reference 
Number 1000661 11 for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for Old Brook 
Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road 
Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek in the City of Mountain Brook; which 
Agreement is before this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf. 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted and approved this day of ,20  

ATTESTED: 

1 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, do hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of ,20 , and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on the day of ,20 

City Clerk 



Robert BenUey 
GOVERNOR 

ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OFTRANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 

SUITE 450 
HOOVER, AL 35242 
P.O. BOX 382348 

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35238-2348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 3274962 

John R. Cooper 
TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR 

August 24,2016 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Project No. STPBH-3716( ) 
Proj. Ref. No. 100066110 
Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for 
Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek and Canterbury Road 
Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Preliminary Engineering Agreement (and one copy) between the State of 
Alabama and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal affixed to both to this 
office for further handing. A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
affixed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as well as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any point contained herein, please feel free 
to contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

DeJarvis Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

LAT/trs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File wlencl. 

By: e 
'L--- 

Lance Taylor, P.E. 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
AND 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project STPBH-3716 ( ) 
Project Reference Number 100066110 

Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, 

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as 

STATE; and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY; in 

cooperation with the United States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway 

Administration, hereinafter referred to as the FHWA; and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the 

Birmingham Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed 

therein; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward 

the implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and the CITY desire to cooperate in a preliminary design 

engineering program for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge 

(BIN #012869) over Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002873) over 

Watkins Creek in the City of Mountain Brook. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 

(1) The CITY will perform or have performed all services required to fulfill the purposes of 

this Agreement. The East Central Region of the Department of Transportation will be the 



lead agency for the STATE relative to the work under this Agreement and will be point 

of contact for the CITY. 

(2) This Agreement will cover only the preliminary engineering phase of the work. 

(3)  The preliminary engineering phase is hereby defined as that work necessary to advance 

the development of the Project through construction authorization by the FHWA. The 

preliminary engineering will be performed by or for the CITY and will include all 

environmental studies and documentation required by FHWA. 

(4) Funding for this Agreement is subject to availability of Federal Aid hnds at the time of 

authorization by FNWA. 

( 5 )  The project will be financed, when eligible for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 

percent Federal hnds and 20 percent CITY funds. The estimated cost and participation 

by the various parties is as follows: 

Total Estimated Estimated 
Estimated Federal CITY 

Cost - - Funds Funds 
Preliminary Engineering 

TOTAL $250,000 $200,000 $50,000 

It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds 

the estimate, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share of the final cost. 

(6) The STATE will assist the CITY in any public involvement action that may be required. 

(7) The CITY will invoice the STATE for the Federal share of the preliminary engineering 

costs not more fiequently than monthly. Requests for reimbursements will be made on - 

forms provided by the STATE and submitted through the East Central Region Engineer 

for payment. 



Invoices for any phase of work performed by the CITY under the terms of this 

Agreement will be submitted within twelve (12) months after the completion and 

acceptance by the STATE of the work. Any invoices submitted after this twelve-month 

period will not be eligible for payment. 

Any cost for work not eligible for Federal participation will be financed 100 percent by 

the CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit. 

The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, due to rules and/or regulations 

of FHWA (including but not limited to delay of the projects, or delay of projects 

contemplated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the current projects) that 

the Federal h d s  expended on this Project must be refunded to the FHWA, the CITY 

will reimburse and pay to the STATE a sum of money equal to the total amount of 

STATE and Federal funds expended under this Agreement. 

Any services of the STATE necessary to cany out the intent of this Agreement will be 

paid as provided for herein. 

The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

The STATE will provide without cost to the CITY information available from its records 

that will facilitate the performance of the work. 

It is clearly understood by both parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or 

Federal funds beyond those mentioned herein and that a separate agreement will be 

required for the construction of the proposed improvement. 

A final audit will be made of all project records after the completion of the project and a 

copy will be fwnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance 

with ~ c t '  1994, No. 94-414. A final financial settlement will be made between the parties 

as reflected by the final audit and this Agreement. 

3 



(16) Subject to the limitations on damages applicable to municipal corporations under Ala. 

Code § 11-47-190 (1975), the CITY shall indemnify, and hold hannless the State of 

Alabama, the Alabama Department of Transportation, its officers, officials, agents, 

servants, and employees from and against (1) claims, damages, losses, and expenses, 

including but not limited to attorney's fees arising out of, connected with, resulting from 

or related to the work performed by the CITY, or its officers, employees, contracts, 

agents or assigns; (2) the provision of any services or expenditure of funds required, 

authorized, or undertaken by the CITY pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; or (3) 

any damage, loss, expense, bodily injury, or death, or injury or destruction of tangible 

property (other than the work itself), including loss of use therefrom, and including but 

not limited to attorney's fees, caused by the negligent, careless or unskillhl acts of the 

CITY, its agents, servants, representatives or employees, or the misuse, misappropriation, 

misapplication, or misexpenditure of any source of funding, compensation or 

reimbursemept by the CITY, its agents, servants, representatives or employees, or anyone 

for whose acts the CITY may be liable. 

(1 7) By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of the STATE, its officers, ' 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties. 

(1 8) By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, 

that they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingIy employ, hire for 

employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. 

Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be 

deemed in breach of the Agreement and shall be responsible for all damages resulting 

therefrom. 



(1 9) The terms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed 

by the parties hereto. 

(20) This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon 

the delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination. 

(2 1) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or the CITY 

that will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama ( 7 ~ 4 '  Law). 

(22) Exhibits M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of the approval of the Governor of 
Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY: . + 

City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN LEGALLY REVIEWED 
AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Regional Engineer, DeJarvis Leonard, P. E. 

Multimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert J. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Don T. Arkle, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

~rans~ortation Director, John R. Cooper 

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama 
this day of ,20 _-- 

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY 

6 



7/18/90 Exhibit M 

CERTIFICATION 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participantlrecipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective participant/recipient each respectively certiq that to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient or the person signing on behalf of the participantlrecipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an oficer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated f h d s  have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, the prospective participantlrecipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participantlrecipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, that the prospective participantlrecipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 



EXHIBIT N 

CONSULTANT Dl 5D5 ' 

REVISED 5t30!02 
REVISED 611'16t11 
REVISED 101'28t15 

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terns and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 11, Section 213 of the Constitution of Alabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is firrther agreed that if any provision of this 
AGREEMENT shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either 
now in effect or which may, during the course of this AGREEMENT, be enacted, then the 
conflicting provision in the AGREEMENT shall be deemed null and void. 

When considering settlement of controversies arising from or related to the work covered by this 
AGREEMENT, the parties may agree to use appropriate forms of non-binding alternative 
dispute resolution. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

a. If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject 
to termination in the event that finds should not be appropriated for the continued 
payment of the agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

b. In the event of proration of the fund fiom which payment under this AGREEMENT is to 
be made, agreement will be subject to termination. 

NO GOVlERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS 

The STATE and CONSULTANT acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence 
by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations of or liabilities to the STATE, 
CONSULTANT, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any 
matter resulting fiom the underlying contract. 

The CONSULTANT agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided to FHWA. It is fbrther agreed that the clause shall not 
be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 



RESOLUTION NUMBER Z o  16 - 1  L3 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

I .  That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Preliminary engineering program for Project STPBH-3716 ( ), Project Reference 
Number 100066 1 10 for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for Old Brook 
Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road 
Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek in the City of Mountain Brook; which 
Agreement is before this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf. 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted and approved this day of ,20  . 
I 

ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, do hereby certifi that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of ,20 , and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

lN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on this day of ,20 

City Clerk 



Robett &flf/ey 
GOVERNOR 

ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 

SUITE 450 
HOOVER, AL 35242 

P.O. BOX 382348 
BIRMINGHAM, AL 352382348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 327-4962 

August 24,2016 

John R. Cooper 
TRANSPORTATION DIRECTOR 

The Honorable Lawrence T. Oden 
Mayor, City of Mountain Brook 
City Hall 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 

RE: Jefferson County 
Project No. STPBH-3716( ) 
Proj. Ref. No. 100066112 
Proj. Ref. No. 100066113 
Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for 
Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek and Canterbuty Road 
Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

I have enclosed the original Utility and Construction Agreement (and one copy) between the State of 
Alabama and the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama for the above referenced project. 

This Agreement is submitted to the City for approval. After execution by the City Council, please return 
the original document and the copy, with original signature and the City Seal affixed to both to this 
office for further handing. A certified resolution, which authorizes the Mayor to sign the Agreement, 
affixed with the City Seal should be included with the original Agreement, as well as with the copy. 

If I can supply you with any additional information or clarify any point contained herein, please feel free 
to contact me at your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

DeJarvis Leonard, P.E. 
East Central Region Engineer 

LAT/trs 
Enclosure 
C: Mrs. Sandra F. P. Bonner 

File w/encl. 

By: %& 
Lance Taylor, P.E. 
Asst. Region Engineer, Pre-Construction 



AGREEMENT 
FOR 

UTILITY AND CONSTRUCTION 

BETWEEN THE STATE OF ALABAMA 
AND 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

Project STPBH-3716 ( ) 
Project Reference Number 1000661 12 
Project Reference Number 1000661 13 

Bridge Reconstruction and Rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over 
Little Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek 

in the City of Mountain Brook 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, acting 

by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as STATE; and the 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereinafter referred to as CITY; in cooperation with the United 

States Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, hereinafter referred to as the 

FHWA; and 

WHEREAS, a Transportation Improvement Program has been developed for the Birmingham 

Urbanized Area and certain transportation improvements and priorities are listed therein; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest for the STATE and the CITY to cooperate toward the 

implementation of the Transportation Improvement Program; and 

WHEREAS, the STATE and CITY desire to cooperate in a utility and construction program 

for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BIN #012869) over Little 

Shades Creek, and Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002873) over Watkins Creek in the City of 

Mountain Brook. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto, for, and in consideration of the premises stated 

herein do hereby mutually promise, stipulate, and agree as follows: 



( I )  This Agreement will cover utilities and all aspects of construction for the proposed 

improvements, including construction engineering and inspection during the course of the 

work, all in accordance with plans approved by the STATE. 

(2) Funding for this Agreement is subject to availability of Federal Aid funds at the time of 

authorization by FHWA. Any deficiency in Federal Aid, or overrun in construction costs will 

be borne by the CITY. In the event of an under run in construction costs, the amount of 

Federal Aid funds will be 80 percent of eligible costs. 

(3) The Project will be administered by the STATE and all cost will be financed, when eligible 

for Federal participation, on the basis of 80 percent Federal hnds and 20 percent CITY funds. 

The estimated cost and participation by the various parties are as follows: 

Estimated Estimated 
Total Federal CITY 

Estimated Funds - Funds 
Utilities $100,000.00 $80,000.00 $20,000.00 
construction, including engineering 
and inspection $1.100.000.00 $880.000.00 $220,000.00 

TOTAL $1,200,000.00 $960,000.00 $220,000.00 

It is understood that the above is an estimate only, and in the event the final cost exceeds the 

estimate, the CITY will be responsible for its proportional share as above noted and the CITY 

agrees to pay same to STATE; or in the event the cost is less than the estimate, the CITY will 

receive a refund accordingly from the STATE. 

(4) Any cost for work not eligible for Federal reimbursement will be financed 100 percent by the 

CITY, which payment will be reflected in the final audit. 

( 5 )  The CITY will coordinate any required adjustments to utilities with the utility company 

involved in accordance with usual STATE procedures. Any utility expenses involved which 

are eligible for STATE reimbursement or payment under state law will be considered as a part 



of the Project cost and will be paid as provided herein, with the CITY paying its proportional 

share. The STATE will not be liable for utility expenses which are not eligible for STATE 

reimbursement or payment under state law. 

(6) The performance of the work covered by this Agreement will be in accordance with the 

current regulations and requirements of the STATE and FHWA. 

(7) The construction of the improvements will be by contract and the STATE will be responsible 

for advertisement and receipt of bids and for the award of the contract. Following receipt of 

bids and prior to the award of the contract, the STATE will invoice the CITY for its prorata 

share of the estimated construction cost as reflected by the bid of the successful bidder plus 

engineering and inspection cost, and the ClTY will promptly pay this estimated cost before 

award of the contract. The STATE will not award the contract until it is in receipt of the 

estimated cost payable by the ClTY as reflected by the bid of the successful bidder, plus the 

engineering and inspection cost. All required off-site testing shall be the responsibility of the 

Alabama Department of Transportation. All on-site engineering, inspection, and testing 

(including obtaining and delivery of test specimens to the Alabama Department of 

Transportation testing facility) shall be the responsibility of the CITY or its designated 

representative. 

(8) Upon completion and acceptance of the work by the STATE, the CITY will assume full 

responsibility for maintenance of that part of the facility which is not part of the State 

Highway Maintenance System. 

(9) It is clearly understood by the parties that the STATE does not commit any STATE or Federal 

f b d s  beyond those mentioned herein. 



(10) The CITY agrees that in the event the FHWA determines, under its rules and/or regulations 

that Federal finds expended on this Project (including but not limited to delay of the projects, 

or delay of projects contemplated to be developed and accomplished in sequence to the 

current projects) must be refunded to the FHWA, the CITY shall reimburse and pay to the 

STATE for and on behalf of FHWA, a sum of money equal to the total amount of STATE and 

Federal. 

(1 1) A final audit will be made of all Project records after completion of the Project and a copy 

will be furnished to the Department of Examiners of Public Accounts, in accordance with Act 

1994, No. 94-414. A final financial settlement will .be made between the parties as reflected 

by the audit and this Agreement. 

(12) Subject to the limitations on damages applicable to municipal corporations under Ala. Code 5 

11-47-190 (1975), the CITY shall indemnifl, and hold harmless the State of Alabama, the 

Alabama Department of Transportation, its officers, officials, agents, servants, and employees 

from and against (1) claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to 

attorney's fees arising out of, connected with, resulting from or related to the work performed 

by the CITY, or its officers, employees, contracts, agents or assigns; (2) the provision of any 

services or expenditure of funds required, authorized, or undertaken by the CITY pursuant to 

the terms of this Agreement; or (3) any damage, loss, expense, bodily injury, or death, or 

injury or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself), including loss of use 

therefrom, and including but not limited to attorney's fees, caused by the negligent, careless 

or unskillful acts of the CITY, its agents, servants, representatives or employees, or the 

misuse, misappropriation, misapplication, or misexpenditure of any source of funding, 



compensation or reimbursement by the CITY, its agents, servants, representatives or 

employees, or anyone for whose acts the CITY may be liable. 

(13) By entering into this Agreement, the CITY is not an agent of the STATE, its officers, 

employees, agents or assigns. The CITY is an independent entity from the STATE and 

nothing in this Agreement creates an agency relationship between the parties. 

(14) By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the Agreement, that 

they will not violate Federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or 

continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a 

contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the 

Agreement and shall be responsible for a11 damages resulting therefrom. 

(1 5 )  The terms of this Agreement may be modified by supplemental agreement duly executed by 

the parties hereto. 

(1 6) This Agreement will remain in effect, unless otherwise terminated by either party upon the 

delivery of a thirty (30) day notice of termination. 

(1 7) Nothing will be construed under the terms of this Agreement by the STATE or the CITY that 

will cause any conflict with Section 23-1-63, Code of Alabama (7124" Law). 

(1 8) Exhibits.M and N are attached and hereby made a part of this Agreement. 



M WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto cause this Agreement to be executed by those 
officers, officials, and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the Agreement is deemed to be dated 
and to be effective on the date stated hereinafter as the date of approval of the Governor of Alabama. 

SEAL 

ATTEST: CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

BY: 
City Clerk (Signature) Mayor (Signature) 

Type name of Clerk Type name of Mayor 

THIS AGREEMENT HAS BEEN LEGALLY REVIEWED 
AND APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

BY: 
Chief Counsel, Jim R. Ippolito, Jr. 

l 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL: 

East Central Region Engineer, DeJarvis Leonard, P. E. 

Multimodal Transportation Engineer, 
Robert J. Jilla 

Chief Engineer, Don T. Arkle, P. E. STATE OF ALABAMA 
ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE 
ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

%sportation Director, John R. Cooper 

The foregoing Agreement is hereby approved by the Governor of the State of Alabama this 
day of ,20 -- 

GOVERNOR OF ALABAMA, ROBERT BENTLEY 



Exhibit M 
CERTIFICATION 

This certification is applicable to the instrument to which it is attached whether attached 
directly or indirectly with other attachments to such instrument. 

The prospective participant/recipient, by causing the signing of and the submission of this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable 
under Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, and the person signing same for and on behalf of the 
prospective participant/recipient each respectively certify that to the best of the knowledge and 
belief of the prospective participant or recipient and of the person signing for and on behalf of 
the prospective participantlrecipient, that: 

( I )  No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the prospective participant/recipient or the person signing on behalf of the participant/recipient as 
mentioned above, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an 
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the 
making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any hnds other than Federal appropriated hnds have been paid or will be paid 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 3 1, U. S. Code, the prospective participantlrecipient shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its 
instructions. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reIiance was placed 
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $1 00,000 for each such failure. 

The prospective participantlrecipient also agrees by submitting this Federal contract, 
grant, loan, cooperative agreement, or other instrument as might be applicable under 
Section 1352, Title 31, U. S. Code, that the prospective participantlrecipient shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 
and that all such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 



EXHIBIT N 

CONSULTANT 21 5/95 
REVISED 5130t02 
REVISED 6!16t11 
REVISED 10/28(15 

FUNDS SHALL NOT BE CONSTITUTED AS A DEBT 

It is agreed that the terms and commitments contained herein shall not be constituted as a debt of 
the State of Alabama in violation of Article 11, Section 213 of the Constitution of Alabama, 
1901, as amended by Amendment Number 26. It is further agreed that if any provision of this 
AGREEMENT shall contravene any statute or Constitutional provision of amendment, either 
now in effect or which may, during the course of this AGREEMENT, be enacted, then the 
conflicting provision in the AGREEMENT shall be deemed null and void. 

When considering settlement of controversies arising from or related to the work covered by this 
AGREEMENT, the parties may agree to use appropriate forms of non-binding alternative 
dispute resolution. 

TERMINATION DUE TO INSUFFICIENT FUNDS 

1 

a. If the agreement term is to exceed more than one fiscal year, then said agreement is subject 
to termination in the event that funds should not be appropriated for the continued 
payment of the agreement in subsequent fiscal years. 

b. In the event of proration of the fund from which payment under this AGREEMENT is to 
be made, agreement will be subject to termination. 

NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACTORS 

The STATE and CONSULTANT acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any concurrence 
by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying contract, 
absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is not a 
party to this contract and shall not be subject to any obligations of or liabilities to the STATE, 
CONSULTANT, or any other party (whether or not a party to that contract) pertaining to any 
matter resulting from the underlying contract. 

The CONSULTANT agrees to include the above clause in each subcontract financed in whole or 
in part with Federal assistance provided to FHWA. It is further agreed that the clause shall not 
be modified, except to identify the subcontractor who will be subject to its provisions. 



RESOLUTION NUMBER 24 / L ' 1  zf 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama as 
follows: 

1. That the City enters into an Agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

Utility and construction program for Project STPBH-3716 ( ), Project Reference 
Numbers 1000661 1 2 and 1000661 1 3 for bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation 
for Old Brook Trail Bridge (BM #012869) over Little Shades Creek, and 
Canterbury Road Bridge (BIN #002#73) over Watkins Creek in the City of 
Mountain Brook; which Agreement is before this Council. 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on 
its behalf. 

3. That the Agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
thereto. I 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
Agreement by all parties, that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk. 

Passed, adopted, and approved this - day of , 20-: 

ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, 
~labarna, do hereby certif$ that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution 
passed and adopted by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of 
such Council held on the day of ,20  , and that such 
resolution is on file in the City Clerk's office. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on the day of 9 20 -- 

City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 20 16-1 25 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City .of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of an Agreement for Services between the City 
and Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham, in the form as attached hereto as 
Exhibit A subject to such minor changes as may be determined appropriate and review by legal 
counsel, with respect to an 80% APPLE-funded Mountain Brook Sidewalks Feasibility Study. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifjl the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham - APPLE 2016-125 



AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

This Agreement for Services (the "A~reement") is entered into as of the day 
of , 2016, by and between the Regional Planning Commission of 
Greater Birmingham, a regional planning and development commission organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Alabama ("RPCGB"), and the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation (the "Governmental Entity'' or "City"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  

WHEREAS, the Governmental Entity has applied to receive funding under the 
Advanced Planning Program and Logical Engineering (APPLE) program for a "Sidewalks Study" 
(the "Project"); 

WHEREAS, the Project has been selected for funding under the APPLE program; 

WHEREAS, the APPLE grant for the Project will fund 80% (or $ ) of the total 
Project cost of $ , and the Governmental Entity will provide a local match in the 
amount of $ (or 20%) of the total Project cost; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, RPCGB is being engaged by the 
City to perform the services contemplated for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the parties agree to work in good faith to complete the Project in a timely 
and professional manner. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants, 
agreements, representations and warranties hereinafter set forth, the RPCGB and the 
Governmental Entity agree as follows: 

1. En~a~ement  of RPCGB. The Governmental Entity hereby agrees to engage RPCGB 
to perform the Project and services which are identified and described in the "Scope of 
Work" set forth on Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
RPCGB, from time to time, may request changes in the Scope of services to be performed. 
Such changes shall be memorialized by written amendments to this A~reement that is  signed 
by both parties; these changes may include an increase or decrease in the amount of 
Governmental Entity's Local match. 

The Governmental Entity authorizes RPCGB to engage a third party consultant(s) that 
has been approved by the City to assist i n  performing the Scope of Work. The RPCGB is 
responsible for supervising, managing and paying any third party consultant for any services it 
performs so that the Project may be completed i n  the orderly flow of the work. 

2. compensation. The parties agree that the total Project cost is $ 
(including the local match), and that the RPCGB will receive that total amount i n  
consideration for its performance of the services contemplated herein. The payment of this 
amount shall constitute full and complete compensation for the services to be provided by 
RPCGB directly, by its consultants or otherwise secured by RPCGB for the Project, and 
includes all expenses arising from the performance of this Agreement. 



3. Payment by City. The City shall make payment to RPCGB for services in  one (1 ) 
lump sum installment of $ (the local match) within thirty (30) days after the receipt 
of invoice from the RPCGB. If this compensation i s  not paid when due, RPCGB shall not 
engage in the provision of the contemplated services nor shall RPCGB employ third party 
consuttant(s) for the Project until such time as payment i s  made. If after a period of sixty 
(60) days from the date of invoice the compensation is not paid, the Governmental Entity 
acknowledges that i t may forfeit all claims to the awarded amount for the Apple grant for the 
Project. 

Upon the successful completion of the Project and the generation of the contemplated 
grant funds, the City agrees to execute appropriate documents and otherwise cooperate with 
the RPCGB so it can receive those funds in consideration for the balance of the total Project 
costs payable to it for i t s  services. 

4. Time of Performance. The RPCGB shall commence i t s  performance of services 
immediately after the receipt of payment by the Governmental Entity, and the RPCGB shall 
complete Project in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A. 

5. Financial Records. RPCGB shall keep and maintain complete and accurate books, 
records, and procedures to account for all funds paid by the Governmental Entity in  
accordance with this Agreement. RPCGB shall allow the Governmental Entity to examine, 
copy, and audit all such books, records and procedures upon advance notice and during 
RPCGB's normal business hours. Any such examination or audit shall be conducted at the sole 
cost and expense of the requesting party. 

RPCGB shall retain all records with respect to the matters made the subject of this 
A~reement for three (3) years following the termination or completion of this Agreement. 
The obligations in this provision shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

6. Political Activitv. No portion of any funds to be paid by the Governmental Entity 
to RPCGB for the services contemplated herein shall be used for any partisan political 
activity, or to further the election or defeat of any candidate for public office. 

7, Qualified Personnel. RPCGB represents that it employs or will engage all 
personnel required to perform the services made the subject to this Agreement. Any such 
personnel shall not be employees of or have any contractual relationships with the 
Governmental Entity relative to the Project, and all such personnel shall be reasonably 
qualified to perform the services assigned to them. 

8. Cooperation. All information, data, reports, records and maps as are available, 
existing and necessary for performing the contemplated work shall be assembled for the 
Governmentat Entity by RPCGB or the third party consultant(s) employed by it. The 
Governmental Entity agrees to cooperate with RPCGB and the third party consultants(s) 
employed by RPCGB in all reasonable ways to allow them to conduct their planning and 
development work without undue delay. 

The RPCGB and Governmental Entity will ensure that all accident and traffic data provided by 
ALDOT or any agency or potitical subdivision of the State of Alabama and used for safety 
enhancement are kept confidential under 23 U.S.C. 5 409 and not disclosed to third parties 
without the express written permission of ALDOT. The data shall not be referenced, 
disclosed, discussed, or otherwise made public. The provision of this data shall not be 
considered as a waiver of the provision of 23 U.S.C. S 409. Upon execution of this Agreement, 



the RPCGB and Governmental Entity agree that their agents, servants, officers, officiab, and 
employees, in  both their official and individual capacities, shatl not discuss, disclose, use, 
publish, or release the data provided pursuant to the above referenced request without prior 
written consent of ALDOT. Furthermore, i f  the data should be released or published without 
the consent of ALDOT, or should an attempt be made to use the data in  an action for damages 
against the State of Alabama, ALDOT, i t s  officials or employees' access to data shall 
terminate immediately. The State of Alabama and ALDOT expressly reserve the right under 
23 U.S.C. 5 409 to object to the use of the data, any opinions drawn from the data, and to 
recover damages caused by the improper and unauthorized release of the data. 

9. Ownership of Data. The Governmental Entity shall retain tit le to and all ownership 
rights of all data and content provided by it to RPCGB for the Project, including but not 
limited to geographic information systems, databases, maps, multimedia or images (graphics, 
audio and video), text and the like provided by the Governmental Entity. The City grants 
RPCGB the right to access and use this content for the purpose of complying with its 
obligations under this Agreement. 

10. Ownership of Work Product. Upon completion of the work or elements thereof 
that are described in the attached Scope of Work, all reports, data, artwork, maps, stencils, 
negatives, plates and other supporting materials prepared by RPCGB as a part of such work 
shall become the exclusive property of Governmental Entity, and any reproduction or other 
uses of such materials shall be approved by appropriate officials of the Governmental Entity. 

11. Substantial Chanptes bv Citv i n  Final Work Product. If the City makes any 
substantial changes to the final work product after the Governmental Entity has taken 
delivery and accepted that product, those changes shall not be attributed by the City to the 
RPCGB. substantial changes are defined as changes to plan content, policy and physical 
development recommendations, regulations, codes, and ordinances that diminish the intent 
and ability of the plan document to achieve i t s  stated goals as agreed to and accepted by the 
Governmental Entity. 

12. Assi~nmentINo Third Party Beneficiaries. Neither party may assign this 
Agreement, or any of i t s  rights, benefits or obligations herein, without the prior written 
consent of the other party. Further, this Agreement does not confer, and i s  not intended to 
create, any rights or benefits for any third party that i s  not a signatory to this Agreement. 

13. Equal EmpIovment Opportunitv. In performing the work, RPCGB and i t s  third 
party consultant(s) shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, religion, national origin, sex, age or disability. 

14. Termination. If RPCGB fails to perform any of i t s  material obligations under this 
Agreement in a timely and proper manner, or i f  RPCGB shall violate any of the covenants, 
agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, the Governmental Entity may give written 
notice of that breach to RPCGB. In the event RPCGB fails to cure such breach to the 
reasonable satisfaction of Governmental Entity within thirty (30) days following RPCGB's 
receipt of such written notice, Governmental Entity may terminate this Agreement upon 
written notice to RPCGB. In the event of such termination, the Governmental Entity shall be 
entitled to a refund from RCPGB of any compensation paid by the City that i s  not earned by 
RCPGB for services that it did not perform by the effective date of termination. 

15. Relationship of the Parties. The RPCGB i s  an independent contractor of the City, 
and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any agency, joint 
venture, partnership or employer/employee relationship between them. Neither party shall 



have the right or power to commit, contract for or otherwise obligate the other party to any 
third person or entity. RPCGB shall be responsible for the collection, filing, and payment of 
social security and other federal, state or local taxes or withholdings for RPCGB's employees. 
Governmental Entity shall have no right to control or direct the details, manner or means by 
which RPCGB accomplishes the results of the services to be performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

16. Notices. Any notice to a party hereunder that is  contemplated in this Agreement 
shall be in writin2 and deemed given when it i s  either (a) personally delivered, or (b) sent by 
certified or resistered mail, return receipt requested, to 

If to RPCGB: 
Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham 
Center for Regional Planning and Design 
Two 20th Street North, Suite 1200 
Birmingham, Alabama 35203 
Attention: Michael Kaczorowski 

If to Governmental Entity: 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 35213 
Attention: Sam Gaston - City Manager 

or at such other address as either party may advise the other in writing. Any such notice shall 
be deemed delivered when placed in the mail, properly addressed, with postage prepaid. 

17. Entire Aqreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the parties with respect to the matters herein, and there are no agreements, understandings, 
restrictions, warranties or representations between the parties other than those set forth 
herein. The foregoing supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations and understandings 
relating to the subject matter hereof. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned, duly authorized representatives of the parties 
have executed this Agreement effective as of the date and year first above written. 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Its: 

Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham 

Charles E. Ball 

Its: Executive Director 



ADDENDUM T O  AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION OF GREATER BIRMINGHAM 
DATED SEPTEMBER 12,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("'the City") and Regional Planning Commission of Greater Birmingham. 
("the Contractor") dated September 1 2,20 1 6. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting o r  inconsistent terms o r  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are  provided herein o r  under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, o r  eliminate rights o r  remedies that would be available to the City under otherwise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, o r  supplement of o r  to the principnl agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowledged 
o r  incorporated therein. No agent, employee, or  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, o r  suspend the operation of the Addendum o r  any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

I .  Defilritiorrs. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. " T / I ~  (this) Agreen~etrt " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "The Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

2. Arbiirntion; Mediutiorr; Alter~tate Dispute Resolrrlion. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorrtey 's Fees; Court Costs; Litigation Expertses. The City shall not be 1 iable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Pnynte~tf Cltarges; Fees; Itiferesf. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

Ittderrtrt~jicafion; HoId-HnmtIess; Relense; Waiver; Lititifitfiotis of Liabilig or Rcntedies. The 
City shall not and does not indernnitjr, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Choice of Law; Cl~oice of Ve11rie or Foriinr. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Construction ofAddettd~int. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. AIabnrrta In~~itigrafion Law Conrplia~lce Colitr17ct. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-VerifL to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-VerifL 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemniFy and hold hannless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 12th day of September, 201 6. 

RegionaI Planning Commission of 
Greater Birmingham 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



Exhibit A -Scope of Work 

Mountain Brook Sidewalks 
FeaslbHlty Study: APPLE 

Project Summary 

The Mountain Brook Sidewalks Study will evaluate the feasibility of constructing proposed sidewalks. 
The study will develop conceptual drawings that illustrate recommended sidewalk locations, develop an 
estimate of probable construction costs, provide recommended phasing of projects, and identify 
potential funding sources for improvements. 

The potential sidewalks to be studied are identified in the City's Walkway Master Plan (see attached 
map). However, the City may choose to study other potential sidewalks that are not identified in the 
current plan. 

PROJECT TASKS 

The project tasks and subtasks required to address the scope of work shall include the following: 

Task 1: Existing Conditions 
A. Develop base maps using GIS data and aerial photography. 
0. Analyze and assess current conceptual plans and any proposed alignments if they exist. 
C. Conduct field reviews to assess the constraints and constructability. 
D. Perform property research to identify ownership and potential right-of-way acquisitions. 
E. Collect and analyze information of record from various agencies. 
F. Identify existing utilities in the area as necessary. 
G. Conduct additional field reviews as necessary. 

Task 2: Concept Plan Development and Evaluation 
A. Assess potential ROW, environmental, and ADA issues. 
0. Prepare recommendations on the phasing and priorities of sidewalks. 
C. Prepare a preliminary opinion of probable cost for the high priority sidewalks. 
D. Prepare for and attend a meeting with Client and Stakeholders to present findings and 

recommendations. 
E. Revise the plans to incorporate comments that may be received. 
F. Identify potential funding sources. 
G. Prepare a draft Advanced Planning Report document. 
H. Submit the draft document for review. 
1. Revise the Advanced Planning Report document based on comments that may be received. 
1. Submit the finat Advanced Planning Report document. 

Page 1 



Exhibit A - Scope of Work 

Project Schedule 

It is intended that the study will progress according to the schedule as shown in the figure below. 

Project Schedule 

Encluslons from Scope of Work 

The following services are not included in the scope of services: construction drawings, road or utility 
engineering designs, and any other services not specifically listed in the project scope. Any Government 
Entity directed changes to the final plan after the Government Entity's approval of the draft revisions 
shall be reimbursed in accordance with allocated bllling rates in effect at the time the services are 
performed. 

I 
I 

Task 
1. Existing Conditions 
2. Concept Plan Development and Evaluation 

Crash Data Restrictions 

The Alabama Department of Transportation has directed that accident, incident, crash, injury, or fatality 
locations not be shown or presented in association with descriptions of transportation projects, 
facilities, or locations within the State of Alabama. This prohibition extends to all formal planning 
documents (UPWP, Long Range Plan, TIP, Bicycle and Pedestrian Plans, Congestion Management Process 
or Plan), and other documents that include narrative or tabular project listings or descriptions. [See 
Article 8 of the Agreement.] 

Months 

Page 2 

- .  . -  - 
1 2 3 4 5 6 ,  

1 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-126 

WHEREAS, the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, has certain personal property that is no 
longer needed for public or municipal purposes; and 

WHEREAS, Section 11-43-56 of the Alabama Code of 1975 authorizes the municipal governing 
body to dispose of unneeded personal property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVE11 by the ~ i t ~ ' ~ o u n c i l  of the City of Mountain Brook, 
as follows: It is hereby declares that the following property owned by the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama is not needed for public or municipal purposes and is hereby declared surplus property: 

Item Asset Description Notes 
1 2 HP 4300 pc's: 2UA60307KB, 2UA628 1 PKX 

1 HP 7700 pc: 2UA73303IV 

3 HP 7900 pc's: MXL9 19 1 F83, ~ ~ ~ 9 2 8 0 7 4 ~ ,  MXL9234JT 

4 HP 4700 pc's: 2UA90 1 ODGG, 2UA90 I ODG8,2UA90 1 ODJH, 2UA90 f ODJG 

4 HP Procurve 24 port switches: CN820ZTOW0, CN820ZTOW5, CN820ZTOZ1, 
CN820ZTOUZ 
1 HP 3005 B/W printer: CNB IC01713 

2 I-IP flat screen Monitors: No S/N 

3 Dell Poweredge 2950 servers: 526266 1,72626G1,8PS3CFI 

2 Dell Poweredge 1950 servers: BXCY6Gl,6WCY6Gl 

4 Proliant DL380G5 servers: 2UX85008JU, 2UX85008JR, 2UX85008JP, 
2UX85008JD 
1 Panasonic CF30 Laptop: 9BKYA324 17 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that the property above shall be sold by way of public Internet auction or, if not sold at said auction, 
discarded. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Surplus Property 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-127 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby approves the lunchtime restaurant conditional use application for Ice 
House at 2708 Culver Road. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

. . -. . . - 
Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 12,201 6, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

2708 Culver Road Conditional Use Approval 



From: Tom Sheffer <tasheffer@amail.com, 
Date: Wed, Aug 24,2016 at 3:11 PM 
Subject: FYI: Tweaking of Concept for Mountain Brook Village 
To: Dana Hazen chazend@mtnbrook.orq> 

Dana: 

As a courlesy of sorts given that the city approved our operating during lunch hours at the litlle place on Culver 
Road known affectionately by some of the landlords as the Spitfire Building, and in light of all the existing and 
soon-to-come breakfast options in a small radius of that location, we are tweaking the Biscuit Boy concept to 
expand our operating hours into the evening but maintaining breakfast and lunch service as originally 
proposed. We wanted to inform you and the council of the change even though I am well aware all of you have 
much bigger fish to fry. 

While we have a fine product as the result of making biscuits at Dram for years and having served brunch since 
2006 in Homewood and since 2000 in Nashville, we know that with a new national biscuit chain in 
downtown Homewood, another breakfast option coming there, and with two breakfast concepts down the 
street on Culver and on the Hollywood flyover, respectively, there will be only so many breakfast dollars to go 
around. We would certainly gamer our share of such but in a much smaller footprint than our fellow egg-and- 
bacon peddlers which would limit revenues to a degree. 

The landlords, rooting obviously for our long-term success, have urged us for some time to take advantage of 
the chance to stay open longer, inlo the afternoon and early evening, as they have no problem with that, and 
we have agreed it is in the best interests of our business. We will open for breakfast and lunch as planned and 
as agreed - again, Ihe opportunity is greatly appreciated - but hope to serve food and some light drinks into 
the mid-evening hours, not wanting to compete too late in the evening with ourselves over at Avo and Dram. 

While we'll be doing breakfast tacos at the rechristened "Icehouse" instead of biscuits in the morning, and 
Texas barbecue instead of breakfast and sandwiches at lunch, we expect with such limited seating to remain 
an eatery with few people in the building at one time (littte option given the space!) and a goodly number of 
those in line merely to order sandwiches and plates and take their order to go. So pretty much the daytime as 
envisioned but with more business at night than in the morning or even lunch hours, so all the less pressure on 
village parking, which anyway is being augmented by the expansion of the village blocks into Lane Parke. 

While I realize enterprises need not come before the council for night business or business outside the hours of 
11-1 PM, since we worked through that with your office and the council, we felt it appropriate to let you all know 
of the change in name and the tweaking of business direction and overall operaling hours. We look fotward to 
contributing as we can to the life, flavor and economic health of Mountain Brook Village. 

Respectfully, 

Tom Sheffer 
Green Apple Restaurant Group 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016073 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby approves the lunchtime restaurant conditional use application for Biscuit 
Boy at 2708 Culver Road. 

ADOPTED: This 13th day of June, 20 16. 
l' y+ e, g.4 

Council resident 

APPROVED: This 13th day of June, 2016. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and comct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on June 13,20 16, as same appears in the minutes of 
record of said meeting. 

City Clerk / 

2708 Culver Road Conditional Use Approval 



CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

Dana 0. Hazen, AICF 
Dtrcetor of Planning, Building 
k Sustainability 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, Alabama 35213 
Telephone: 205/802-3821 
Fax 205.879.6913 
hszend@mtnbrook.org 
www.mtnbrook.ore 

DATE: May 5,2016 

TO: Mayor, City Council, City Manager, City Attorney 

FROM: Dana Hazen, City Planner 

RE: Conditional Use for Biscuit Boy (1 lam-lpm lunch service) 
2708 Culver Road (previous iRevive and Melanie Pounds Interiors) Mountain Brook Village 

Request for approval of a fast-casual restaurant in Mountain Brook Village. As may be seen in the attached 
letter of operational characteristics, although the restaurant is primarily a breakfast service, it is proposed to 
be open during the lunch peak hours of I I :00 a.m. to I :00 p.m., thereby requiring approval of a conditional 
use. 

The number of employees present between 1 1:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. will be four (4). There are two (2) on- 
site parking spaces along the alley which will be utilized by employees. Also, there is an agreement with 
Tom Sheffer of Avo-Dram to utilize the on-site parking at Avo-Dram for employee parking of this 
establsihrnent, so it is not expected that employees of this proposed establishment will have an impact on 
street parking. 

The applicant's letter indicates seating for up to 25 patrons; however, it not anticipated that this will create a 
dcrnand for 25 parking spaces, in that a portion of the patrons will already be parked in the Village as 
employees or patrons of other retail, ofiice and service establishments in the Village. 

As has been noted in past memos to council regarding parking on Montevallo, Petticoat and Culver, there is 
often ample parking along Petticoat and a fairly regular turnover of parking along Montevallo during the 
lunchtime hours. However, parking on the north end of Mountain Brook Village is on the cusp of change in 
the near future. Some of the Western parking lot will be lost in conjunction with the demolition of Western, 
Smith's and Ollie Irene and constmction of Jemison Lane and associated improvements on the south end of 
Lane Parke. This is anticipated to take place beginning as early as fall of 2016. So, some on the Another 
Broken Egg patrons that currently utilize the Western parking lot will be forced to find street parking in the 
vicinity of this section of the Village. Ultimately, when Lane Parke is completed there will be new street 
parking added to the north side of Culver (see attached excerpt from the Skipper Traffic Study for Lane 
Parke). 

The zoning ordinance requires council approval of a lunchtime conditional use, and slates that any proposed 
conditional use will be reviewed as to the following: 

Whether the use would disparately impact public parking in the area; 

Whether vehicular or pedestrian circulation would be impacted by the use; 

Whether the use is compatible with surrounding existing uses; 

Whether the hours of operation or peak traffic times would impact existing uses. 



4 May 2016 

Dear Ladies and Sirs: 

Thank you for the opportunity to present our proposal for operating hours from 11 AM to 1 
PM, described as lunch hours by the City of Mountain Brook. We are working with Spitfire 
Realty, the group that owns the little building at 2710 Culver, and architect Pete Pritchard, 
whose plans and renderings you should also have received, to develop a small biscuit concept 
offering mostly breakfast but also a light carryout lunch and (we hope) office catering business. 

We plan to operate from 7 AM to 2 PM, closing after lunch service, with the lion's share of the 
business to come from 7-10 AM. Biscuits mean breakfast, and while they are eaten at other 
times of day, they are tied tightly to breakfast in the minds of the public and the culture of the 
area. So well over half of our sales would come then. Still, since it's never cheap to open and 
operate a restaurant, additional revenue from what are thought of as lunch hours would be 
crucial to the success of the enterprise, not to mention to fully emptoy workers a t  enough 
daily hours to maintain an admittedly small staff. 

On that note, just 3-4 employees at a time would run the operation, as the space Is quite small 
at around 800-900 square feet, and some of the staff would come from Dram, where they 
would park in our spaces behind the Village Corners building at Montevallo and Cahaba roads 
or in the three spaces behind the Spitfire building, With such brief operating hours, some 
employees would have to get more hours a t  Dram to make their time worthwhile. Indeed, 
some of the preparation of items to be sold at Biscuit Boy would be done in the Avo*Dram 
kitchen itself. So we don't see employee parking having an impact on village spaces. 

In rudimentary midday parking counts over the past few weeks (and with an eye to the 
additional parking that is changing the realities of Mountain Brook Village), it's evident to us 
that there are always a good number spaces on Petticoat Lane and, despite past controversies 
over such, on Montevallo itself during the lunch hours in question, as no lunch- 
focused restaurant operates there. Avo and Dram are not open then, and Another Broken Egg, 
like the proposed Biscuit Boy, is a breakfast- and thus morning-centered place. Obviously (and 
for decades), Gilchrist is open for lunch nearby, but it's also a small space without a ton of 
seating, and the service is fast as the lunches themselves tend to be (I know from experience as 



I'm sure you all do better than I). So with our limited seating - in the 20-25 range, say - and 
what we expect to be the preponderance of to-go business, we don't see people lingering or 
parking long at all to enjoy our product. A biscuit sandwich, which represents the vast majority 
of our menu, is  a rapidly prepared item and one rapidly consumed or easily taken away as well. 
We will have no table service and no bar and thus no reason for guests to linger long. 

We expect the majority of our draw to be in the morning hours, when guests are grabbing 
breakfast and coffee to go or eating it quickly in the space, A community table proposed in 
front and a counter of sorts along the side would invite a quick sit-down at breakfast or lunch 
rather than a long meal as at Avo or Dram, for instance, or even as a t  Another Broken Egg, with 
a multitude of tables and table service to take food orders. And while we hope to be something 
of a destination, even a "drive-by" one, for breakfast, we don't see anyone coming from across 
Birmingham or nearby communities to grab a quick breakfast-oriented biscuit at lunch. True, 
we wilt offer a salad and a few more "lunchy" biscuit sandwiches, but grits and gravy aren't the 
stuff of business lunches. I see our lunch business coming mostly from the merchants and staff 
of the village itself, or people from the hotel and offices nearby. Indeed, we hope to sell pick-up 
biscuit platters for such groups on a regular basis during the week. 

I hope this gives you all some basis for our request and I look forward to discussing the matter 
with you further as a group or individually as you see fit. Thank you for your review. 

Respectfully, 

Tom Sheffer 



A rough but faidy detailed menu oulline for what we would offer at Biscuil Boy in the Spitfire Really-owned 
building on Culver: 

BISCUIT BOY 
Egg 8 Cheese 
Bacon 
Sausage 
Conecuh 
Country Ham 
Chicken 
Hot Chicken 
Hot B m n  
Cuban 
PBLT (on English MuMn) 
Burger Boy 
Sloppy Joe 
Pulled Pork (+slaw) 
Benedict Boy (on English muffin or biscuit) 
Earty Rber (egglmeaUcheeseltols) 
Po'Boy (wl comeback sauce) 
Border Boy (flout laco) 

GRAW 
Sausage 
Red-Eye 
Smoked Tomato 
Chocolate 
Gravy Flight (choice of three) 

SIDES 
Cheese Grils 
Tater Tots (loaded: wl cheese sauce) 

SALAD 
Kale Salad (cranbem'eslred-wina vinaigrettelbiscuit croutons) 

BREAKFAST PLATE 

POOCH 
Good Boy! (dog blscutt) 













Parking Observation 11:30 - 1:00, May 17 

'l'llis observation was contlucted on a Tuesday between 11:30 and 1:OO. Street parking was observed along three roads 
(Petticoat, Montevallo and Culver). The average, combined vacancy of parking spaces on these three roads during the 
study time period was 30 spaces. Observations were also made regarding the number of cars parking in the Western 
parking lot whose occupants crossed Culver to patronize Another Broken Egg and Sneaky Pete's. The total number of 
cars that utilized the parking lot; to patronize the restaurants across Culver were 6. Therefore, i t  appears that when the 
Western parking lot is no longer available for utilization by restaurant patrons there will be ample street parking (30 
vacancies vs. 6 in pnrking lot) for those currently parking in the Western parking lot. Also, given the number of vacant; 
street parking spaces in the vicinity of the proposed Biscuit Boy, there appears to be ample street parking to 
accommodate the proposed use. 



Parking observations from Tom Sheffer 

These are an average over a day from mid-May to two days this week, the latter admittedly 
when school is out and people's schedules are changing: 

Petticoat - 19 spaces average 

M0nte~l l0  - 13-14 spaces 

Culver - 6 spaces average 

Canterbury (the strip between Petticoat and the circle) -- 10 average 

Western -just 6-8 people using and going to Another Broken Egg or Sneaky Pete's (fewer than 
perhaps expected) 

That sums up three days' worth of constant checking between the ordinance lunch hours of 11- 
1. Thanks for including this amateur study. - Tom 



ALABAMA 
I-800B7S3S-3529 
Bi*, AL 
1-800-288-1735 
HunuviUe. AL 
1-800.858-3753 

Auburn. AL 
1*800-365-2329 

hton~gomuy, AL 

J.F. DAY & COMPANY, INC. 
Committed to Excellence Since 1936 

WWWJFDay.Com 
GULP COAST 
1-8W633.6B76 

Mob& AL 
ldOQ-m-4SOo 
Rnrtmlr, Fl. 
wmrn44oo 

Dulls. FL 

LOUISIANA 
1*8Q0-28&1954 
Mcrairic, tA 

I . B M ) ~ B ~ ~ I S  
Monroe, LA 

1*8W=137-4286 . .. . 

Baton Rouge. LA 
1-W97-3552 
Shmcporr. LA 
1-800.363-4897 
Ldaytac, LA 
1-8oo.1110-1954 
lrlc Chpler, LA 



Dana Hazen 

to Virginia, Billy, Jack, Al~ce, Lloyd, Terry, Sam, me, Whit 

19'1 rcprding the proposed Biscuit Boy and illarton Clay. 

Forwarded rnesmge -- 
From: Robert C. Field * & l d P 5 h I a h k m d ~ ~ >  
Date: Mon. Jun 13,2016 at 2:05 PM 
Subject: FW: Spitfire Bulldlng 2708 - 27 I 0  Culver Road 
To: "- c m m  tnbrook.orqr 
Cc: "Pete Pritchard (peteb~ete~ritchard.com)' ~peteb~ete~r i tchard .c~m~,  Thomas Sheffer 
clasheHerbholmail.com> 

Dana, 
Bob Hester in our office went to visit the owner of Barton Clay Jewelry. His summary is below. 
See you at 6: 15 tonight. 

Robcrt Field 
From: Robert Hestcr [mailto:Roberth~~~cldenfield.co~ 
Sent: Monday, Junc 13,2016 i2:20 PM 
To: Robert C. Field <-ye.co~nB 
Subject: Spitfire Buiiding 2708 - 2710 Culvcr Road 

Robcrt, I lnct with Eric McClain ( Owt~cr OF Barton Clay Jcwclry ) to discuss the busincss tliat is 
going in tlexl door to hitn cullecl Biscuit Boy. Eric had no objections to the proposed business . 
We showed him Ihc color rcnderings and Eric was positivc about thc ~~roposal. Wc discusscd thc 
following topics: 

1. Parking -We discussed parking. Eric did rrd appear concerned a h \  an impact as it related lo parking 
from Biscuit Boyz. He expressed an interest in the tree adjacent to his property being trimmed back to open up 
visibility to his business. 
2. Advertising - Eric wanled to know i f  he cwld place sales ads in the our business and he would do the 
same lor us, I did not see a problem with this+ 
3. Gas Service on sidewalk - Erii asked what something could done to cover up the meter, I would call the 
alagasco sales rep. to see what we could do . 
4. Schematics - I left Eric a set of schematim wilh floor plans and store front faqade ( Architect-PETE 
PRITCHARD Inc. ). He was posltive about the lay out. 
5. Future Plans - Still continued talking with dty about closhg alley for pedestrian walk way. Eric still likes 
that long range plan. 

All in all, 1 t l~ ink wc stlould have a positive relationship with Eric McClain und Barton Clay 
Jewclry. 1 f you necd anytlling else, please contact mc. 

Thanks, 

Robert Hcstcr 



RESOLUTION NO. 201 6-128 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of a settlement agreement, in the form as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the Alabama Furniture Market, LLC v. City of 
Alabaster, et.al Circuit Court of Shelby County, AL - CV 12-90033 1. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certitjr the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Alabama Furniture Market Settlement Agreement 



STARNES~ FLORIELLP DAVIS  

May 19,2016 

Alfred H. Perkins, Jr. 
P.O. Bos 5985 l Z 

Birmingham, A t  35239-85 12 
Direct Dial: (205) 868-6024 

Facsimile: (205) 868-6W 
E-mail: awrkins~starneslawcorn 

ATTORNEY-CLIENT PRIWLEGED & CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATION 

VIA E-MAIL 
Carl E. Johnson, Jr., Esq. 
Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent, LLC 
1910 1" Avenue North 
Birmingham, AL 35203 
cnrljolmsoi?@ bishopco fi~i~z.  cor)~ 

Re: Alaba~?za Fzn.rritzn.e Market LLC v. City ofAlabaste~., el al. 
Circuit Court of Shelby County, AL - CV 12-90033 1 
Our File No.: 26398 

Dear Carl: 

We have negotiated a settlement of this mattcr with the Plaintiff, The City is to 
refund 75% of the use lax amount at issue. In exchange, Plaintiff will dismiss its pending 
appeal. This amount for the City of Mountain Brook is $62 1.20. 

Plaintiff understands and has acknowledged that the negotiated settlement is not 
efrective unless and until it is approved by the City Council. A copy of a draR Settlement 
Agreement is attached. Please let me know if you desire any changes to the agreement. 
IT not, please take the necessary steps to have the agreement approved by the Council. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Sincerely. 

STARNES DAVIS FLORIE LtP 

~ @ f  
AIT d H. Perkins, J 

AkIP/j rn 
Enclosure 

(I322265 14) 

100 Brookwood Place I Seventh .moor I P.O. Box 598512 Birmingham, Alabama 35259-8512 205-866-6000 

11 North Water Street, Suite 20290 1 P.O. Box 1548 Mobile. Alabama 36633-1548 : 251-433-6049 1 starneslew.eom 



SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT & RELEASE 

The Parties to this Settlement Agreement and Release, made this the _, , day of 

May, 20 16, are: 

Alabama Furniture Market ("Plaintiff ') 

and 

The Cities of Alabaster, Gardendale, Helena, Hoinewood, Hueytown, Irondale, 

Leeds, Millbrook, Montevallo, Moody, Mountain Brook, Northport, Pelhatn, Pel1 City, 

Prattville, Trussville and Vestavia Hills, Alabama ("Cities" or "Defendants"). 

WHEREAS: 

1. Plaintiff was assessed and paid Use Taxes to each of the Cities for the time 

period of January 2006 through March 2008; and 

2. Plaintiff subsequently petitioned each City for a refund of said Use Taxes. 

Following the Cities' failure to refind said tax payments, Plaintiff filed a Notice of 

Appeal of Denial of Tax Refund in the Circuit Court of Shelby County, Alabama, Civil 

Action No. CV 2012-900331 (the "Action") naming each of the Cities as 

DefendantsjAppellees; and 

3. The parties have now come to an agreement to end the pending litigation 

and to compromise and settle their disputes. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of and reliance upon the truth of the foregoing 

recitals and the agreement contained herein, and other good and valuable considerations, 

and as a complete and final compromise, settlement, accord and satisfaction and release 

of all claims, the parties hereby agree to the following: 



1. Pavment and other consideration: In exchange for the execution of this 

Settlement Agreement and Release, each City shall each pay to the Plaintiff a sum equal 

to Seventy-five Percent (75%) of the amount of use taxes, penalties and interest Plaintiff 

paid that City for the time period of January 2006 through March 2008. Said amounts 

were the subject of Plaintiffs Petitions for Rehnd submitted to each City in December 

Specifically, the amount of the subject use taxes, penalties and interest paid by 

Plaintiff to each City is as follows: 

$9,528.79 - City of Alabaster 
$1,034.70 - City of Gardendale 
$4,988.83 - City of Helena 
$1,3 18.6 1 - City of Homewood 

$57 1.25 - City of Hueytown 
$1,325.28 - City of Irondale 
$1,541.85 - City of Leeds 

$28 1.48 - City of Millbrook 
$3,906.25 - City of Montevallo 

$508.89 - City of Moody 
$828.27 - City of Mountain Brook 
$2 13.89 - City of Northport 

$5,2 14.07 - City of Pelham 
$676.69 - City of Pel1 City 
$436.79 - City of Prattville 

$2,353.22 - City of Trussville 
$2,728.88 - City of Vestavia Hills 

The settlement payments to be paid by the Cities to the Plaintiff are as follows: 

$7,146.59 - City of Alabaster 
$776.03 - City of Gardendale 

$3,74 1.62 - City of Helena 
$988.96 - City of Homewood 
$428.44 - City of Hueytown 
$993.96 - City of Irondale 

$1,156.39 - City of Leeds 



$2 1 I. I 1 - City of Millbrook 
$2,929.69 - City of Montevallo 

$38 1.67 - City of Moody 
$62 1.20 - City of Mountain Brook 
$160.42 - City of Northport 

$3,910.55 - City of Pelham 
$507.52 - City of Pel1 City 
$327.59 - City of Prattville 

$1,764.92 - City of Trussville 
$2,046.66 - City of Vestavia Hills 

Said payments by the Cities are intended to fully compensate Plaintiff for all 

claims of every kind and nature, including any interest, attorney's fees, costs and 

expenses, against the Defendants in the Action. 

2. Release bv Plaintiff: Alabama Furniture Market hereby releases, acquits 

and forever discharges the following Cities: Alabaster, Gardendale, Helena, Homewood, 

Hueytown, Irondale, Leeds, Millbrook, Montevallo, Moody, Mountain Brook, Northport, 

Pelham, Pel1 City, Prattville, Trussville, and Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and their past, 

present and fbture officials, employees, agents, representatives, attorneys and insurers (all 

collectively hereinafier "Releasees"), of and from any and all claixns, demands, suits, 

causes of action, actions, rights, damages, costs, attorneys' fees, expenses, compensation 

and liability whatsoever, in law or in equity, known or unknown, asserted or unasserted, 

which Plaintiff had, has or may have hereafter in any way, directly or indirectly arising 

out of or relating to any tax payments, including penalties and interests, made to the 

Cities for time period of January 2006 through March 2008. Plaintiff covenants and 

promises never to sue or otherwise claim or demand against the Releasees in or before 



any court, administrative or executive agency or other forum with respect to any matter 

released under this settlement agreement. 

3. Distribution of Proceeds: Plaintiff and its attorneys acknowledge that 

they are solely responsible for the distribution of the proceeds under this settlement 

agreement. Releasees shall have no responsibility to direct in any manner the distribution 

of the settlement proceeds. No taxes are being withheld froin the settlement proceeds. 

Plaintiff shall be solely responsible for the payment of taxes resulting from the receipt of 

the settlement proceeds and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold l~amless Releasees 

concerning any tax liability. 

4. Non-Admission of Liabilitv: Plaintiff acknowledges that the settlement 

represents the compro~nise of doubtful and disputed claims and shall not in any way be 

construed as an admission by the Releasees that they have acted wrongfully with respect 

to Plaintiff or that Plaintiff has any claims or rights whatsoever against the Releasees. 

Plaintiff also acknowledges that the Releasees expressly disclai~n any and all liability and 

deny that they caused any injury or damage to Plaintiff as a result of any alleged act or 

omission by the Releasees. Plaintiff further acknowledges that the compromise and 

settlement of this case by the Defendants is intended solely to eliminate the burden and 

expense of continued and future litigation before the Court and neither the settlement 

agreement nor the disclosures leading up to its execution shall constitute an admission of 

liability by the Releasees. 

5. Approval bv each Citv Council. Plaintiff acknowledges and understands 

that this Agreement must be approved by the respective City Councils of the Cities, and 



this Agreement cannot and will not become effective as to a particular City until that 

City's City Council approves this Agreement. 

6. Governing Law: This Settlement Agreement and Release shall be 

governed in all respects, including the validity, interpretation and affect thereof, by the 

laws of the State of Alabama. The parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of the Circuit 

Court of Shelby County, Alabama for the purposes of enforcement and interpretation of 

this Settlement Agreement and Release. This Agreement contains the entire agreement 

among all parties with regard to the matters set forth herein. The parties to this 

Agreement hrther represent that they have completely read all tenns hereof and that such 

terms are fully understood and voluntarily accepted by them. All prior discussions and 

negotiations have been and are merged and integrated into and are superseded by this 

Settlement Agreement and Release. In the event that any provision of this Agreement 

shall be held to be void, voidable or unenforceable, the remaining portions hereof shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

8. Dismissal: Upon the execution of this Settlement Agreement and 

Release, Plaintiff consents to the Cities filing a Joint Stipulation of Dismissal with 

Prejudice of the Cities from the Action, the parties to bear their own costs. 

9, No Effect Clause: Nothing in this Agreement affects Plaintiffs tax burden 

for any time period other than January 2006 through March 2008. 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 



Alabama Furniture Market 

By: 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
COUNTY ) 

Before me, the undersigned Notary Public, personally appeared 
, who states under oath that he/she is 
of Alabama Furniture Market and acknowledged before 

me on this date that, being infonned of the contents of this Settlement Agreement and 
Release, he/she voluntarily and with full authority executes this Settlement Agreement 
and Release on behalf of and for Alabama Furniture Market. 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME this the - day of t 20 16. 

NOTARY PUBLIC 
Print Name: 
My Colnmission Expires: 

Reviewed by: 

Joshua B. Sullivan 
KNOWLES & SULLIVAN, LLC 
400 Broad Street, Suite 105 
Gadsden, AL 3590 1 
joslz@$kkslnwgro~p. co n z  
Attorney for Alabama Furniture Mart 



Alfred H .  Perkins, Jr. 
Attorney for tlze Cities of Alabaster; 
Gardendale, Helenn, Homewood, 11-orzrlnle, 
Leecis, Millbrook, Moiztevallo, Moody, 
Mozrtztairz Brook, Nortl~port, fell City, 
Prattville, Trlrssville, a~id  Vestavia Hills, 
Alabnrtza 

J. Bentley Owens, 111. 
Attorney for the City of Pellzml~, Alabattzn 

Jon B. Terry 
Attorizey for the City of Hzleytowrz, Alabama 



Give Fonn to the 
requester. DO not 
send to the lRS. 

w-9 form 
mev. ~ e c ~ n b e r  2014) 
Department of the Treasury 
Internal Revenue Semke 

3 Check appropriate box for fedaral tax chsslkation; check only one of the following sawn boxes: 

IndiiiduaVsok popletor or 0 C Cwporation S Corporatim Partnership Trustlestate 

• OUler (sea krstructianS)~ ~ m . ~ m n n r n k D k d m m d r m U S J  

5 Address {number, street, and apt..or suite M.) I Reqwsler's name and address (optha[) 

Request for Taxpayer 
Identification Number and Certification 

4 Exemptions (ccdes apply only to 
certain entities, not kldhrlduals; see 
instrudw on Dam 3): - 

slngle-member U C  
UrnNed ilabllt!y company. Enter the tax classHiition {C-C corporation. S S  corporation, P-partnershld W P 
Note. For a single-member U C  that is disregarded, do not check UC; check the appropriate box in the line above lot 
the tax dassHication of the single-member owner. . 

10 Commercial Park Drive 
6 City, state, and ZIP code 

hi 

ExBmpt any)- 
from FATCA 

C l - m a n ~ )  

Calera, Alabama 35040 
1 7 List a c m t  wmber(s) here (optional) 

1 Name (as shown on ywr income tax return). Name is raqufred on thk line; do not b v e  thls line blank. 

Alabama Furniture Market. LLC. 
2 Eusiness narneldiwagarded entlty name. if different from above 

2. 1 am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) 1 am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal Revenue 
Sewice (IRS) that I am subject to backup wtthholdlng as a resutt of a fallure to report all Interest or dividends. or (c) the IRS has notified me that I am 
no longer subject to backup withholding; and 

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid I Social murfty number 1 
backup withholding. For Individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a 
resident alian, sole proprietor, or disregarded mtii, see the Part I Instructions on page 3. For other 
entities. It is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number. see How to get a 
TIN on page 3. u n  or -m -mu 
Note. If the account 8s In mare than one name, see the instructions for line 1 and the charl on page 4 for 
guidelines on whose number to enter. 

Futum devdopments. In fmt lon about developmen!s aflectlng Form W-9 (such 
as leglstatlon enacted aflw we release It) Is at www.Lrs..gov/M. 

Em~Oyuidanlinea~on number 7 

2 0 - 4 8 8 5 2 9 5  

3. 1 am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and 
4. The FATCA codqs) entered on this form (If any) indicating that I am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct. 
Certincatlon instructions. You must cross out item 2 abave if you have been notlfied by the IRS that you are cunently subject to backup withholdyng 
because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your ¶ax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage 
interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt. contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), end 
generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the certification, but you must provide your correct TIN. See the 
instructions on page 3. H 

Purpose of Form 

Certification 
Under penalties of perjury. 1 cer t i i  that: 
1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and 

Sign 

An incttuidwl or entity (Form W-9 requester] who is requlred to file an infonnatian 
return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer Mentblian nunber (TIN) 
which may be your social security numbet (SSN). Individual taxpayw identifkatbn 
number (InN). adoption taxpayer MenWcaUon number (ATIN), or employer 
Menttfiitlon number WN), to report on an information return the amount paM to 
you, or ottw amount reportable on an hformatbn retum Examples of information 
returns include, but are not limited to. the followbg: 

Form 1099-INT (interest earned w pew 

Slgnaturm of 

Form 1099-DIV (dividends, Including those from stocks w mutual funds) 
F m  1WB-MISC (varlous types 01 incwne, prizes, awards, or gross proceeds) 
Form 1099-8 (stock or mutual fund sales and cerlajn other transactions by 

brokers) 
* Farm 1099-S (proceeds from real &la transactions) 

Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactkms) 

Here U.S. ps- F M.F 7/7//1) 
w Y 

General Instructions (tuition) ~ o r m  1098 m e  matgage h-ttcuest)!l WE-$ (student loan interest). 1098-T 

Section references are to the Internal Revenus Cpde unless otherwise noted. Farm 1099-C (canceled debt) 
Fwm 1099-A [aqukitbn or abandonment of secued praper(y) 

Use Form W.9 only If YOU are a U.S. person (imciuding a resident alien). to 
provide ywr coned TIN. 

If you do not mfwn F m  W-9 lo ihe requestef wlth a TIN, you might be s-t 
to backup WfthhaMing. See What 15 backup withhotding? an paw 2. 

By slgnhg the fil!ed-out form, you: 
1. Certify that h e  TIN you ere ghring is conect (a y w  am waHlng lor a number 

to be Issued), 
2. Certlfy that you are not subject to backup withhddhg, M 

3. Clah exemptbn frwn backup wilhholding H yw are a U.S. exempt payee, If 
appllcsM, you are also certifying that as a U.S. person. ywr allocable share of 
any parlnership Income from a U.S. trade or business k not subject to the 
wittlhdding tax on foreign partnets' share of effectively connected Income, and 

4. Cwtlfy that FATCA cade(s) entered on this fm C any) indit lng that yw are 
exempt from the FATCA reporting. Is correct. See What is FATCA fep~iThg? on 
page 2 for furher hiomatlon. 

Cat. NO. 10nlx Form W-9 (Rev. 12.2014) 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-129 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution an agreement between the City and Sain 
Associates, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, with respect to the Phase 9 sidewalk 
construction, engineering, and inspection services. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 12,20 16, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Phase 9 CEI Services - Sain Associates 



Robert Bentley 
Governor 

August 29,2016 

ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

EAST CENTRAL REGION 
OFFICE OF REGIONAL ENGINEER 

100 CORPORATE PARKWAY 
SUITE 450 

HOOVER. AL 35242 
P.O. BOX 382348 

BIRMINGHAM, AL 35238-2348 
TELEPHONE: (205) 327-4962 

John R. Cooper 
Transportation Director 

REVISED 

Mayor ~awrence '~.  Oden 
City of Mountain Brook 
P.O. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, A t  3521 3-0009 

Attn: Mr. Sam Gaston 

RE: Project No. CMAQ-NR13(908) 
Mountain Brook Sidewalks - Phase 9 
Jefferson County 

Dear Mayor Oden: 

Reference is made to your letter dated January 28,2016, in which you transmitted a request for the City of 
Mountain Brook to utilize a consultant for inspection services on the above-referenced project. 

After reviewing the information submitted, ALDOT concurs with your selection of Sain Associates. 

The limiting amount for this work is to be $21 1,200.60 based on the construction bid cost. The overhead 
rate and operating margin will be as previously approved by the Bureau of Finance and Audits, External 
Audit Section. 

The City of Mountain Brook may proceed to enter into a cost-plus agreement with Sain Associates using 
the aforementioned instructions. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

John R. Cooper 
Transportation Director 

By: -0 * 
Kenheth W. Couch, P.E. 
Birmingham Area County Transportation Engineer 

JRClDUGMBlKWClbm 
attachment 
cc: Mr. Ed Phillips 

file 



SAIN 

August 1 1,201 6 

Sam Gaston 
City of Mountain Brook 
56 Church Street 
Mountain Brook, AL 3521 3 
pastonsQmtnbrook.orq 

Re: Ph 9 CE & 1 Costs 
CMAQ-NRl3(908) 

Dear Mr. Gaston: 

After ALDOT review, I have revised our man-day estimate for CE & I services. The mileage rate has 
been changed and an additional $1 701 was cut to so that the estimate is at 15% of the contractors 
bid. 

I am copying the County Transportation section of ALDOT for their concurrence prior to Sain and the 
City entering into a contract. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at 205-263-2180 or at rnstoor>sQsain.com. 
We look forward to getting starting on this project for Mountain Brook. 

Sincerely, 

Matt Stoops, PE 
Project Engineer 

Cc: Ken Couch - ALDOT County Trans 
Richard Topping - ALDOT County Trans 
Brian McCollum - ALDOT County Trans 
Alicia Bailey - Sain 

Two Perimeter Park South Suite 500 East I Birmingham, Alabama 35243 1 p: 205.940.6420 1 f: 205.940.6433 ( sain.com 



CE & I Cost Estimate 
Mountain Brook 
Phase !3 Sidewalk Impmvemants 
Sain #I60014 

CMAQ-NR13(908] 
Engineeh construction cusl estimate (Nov 2015) = s 1,373.717 
Low Bid by Bulls Construction = 5 1.4m.004 

Inspectors Days (1.25 x wwking days) = 
Proj Manager Days (20% of inspector days) = 

# months = 
# w e k s =  35' 

% of Construclion Bid = 



811 112016 Alabama Department of Transportation 8:42 AM 

Project No. CMAQ-NR13(908) 
County Mountain Brook 

Descrlption Phase 9 Sidewalk Improvements 
Scope of Work CE&l 
Project Length 0.50 Miles 

Inginee 

Total 

Consultant Sain Associates 

Out-of-pock d Inspection) 
TRAVEL COST - 
Mileage Cost 7 rips I 

[postage Cost (overnight, stamps, etc.) 
Postage 

Other (provide descripUon on next line1 

*J 
Total 

Material Testing (borrow, backfill, density, hot mix, cylinders. etc) 1 $ 8,429.00 
Field Supplies (marker paint, stakes, tape, cylinder molds, etc) 1 $ 2,000.00 

Ins aily trips 4 3 pre construction + 5 final 146 20 - 
Ins - 
Prc 3ger - 2 weekly + 2 pre construction + 4 final 76 - 
Survey Team - project site andlor borrow pit 6 50 

I I I 

I Total Out-of-pocket Expenses $ i3,299.40 

Comments: 

***You must have ALDOT approval for ANY overnight trips of less than 100 miles. 

$0 540 
$0.540 
$0.540 
$0 540 

Form Revised 2-7-1 1 

$ 1,576 80 
$ 216 00 
$ 61560 - 
$ 162 00 

Total Mileage Cost $ 2,570.40 

Total 
Travel allowance (6 hour trips) 
Travel allowance (12 hour trips - meal provided by others) 
Travel allowance (12 hour trips) 
Travel allowance (overnight)"' 

- 
0 0 $11 25 $ - 
0 0 $20.00 $ - - 
0 

0 $75 00 $ - 
$ 

Total Subsistence Cost $ - 
Total Travel Cost $ 2,570.40 

PRINTING I REPRODUCT ION COST - 
Type of printinglreproduction 1tslSet T I3 - 

$ - 
$ - 
$ * 

Total Printi nglReproductIon Cost $ - 
Communication Cost (telephone, fax, etc.) 



A G R E E M E N T  

SAIN ASSOCIATES 

AND 

THE CITY OF MOUNTAM BROOK 

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES 



A G R E E M E N T  

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the City of Mountain Brook, 

hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and Sain Associates, which is qualified to do business in the State of 

Alabama, and has its principal Alabama office at 2 Perimeter Park South, #500E, Birmingham, AL, 

34243, Party of the Second Part, hereinafter referred to as the CONSULTANT. 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has agreed and by these present does agree with the CITY for 

the consideration hereinafter mentioned to provide on-call construction engineering and inspection, 

materials sampling and testing and contract administration on a statewide basis for the CITY. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stipulated, it is 

hereby agreed between the parties as follows: 

The CONSULTANT shall meet the requirements for conformance with the Standards adopted by 

AASHTO and approved by the Secretary of Transportation in cooperation with the CITY and shall 

ascertain the written practices of the CITY prior to beginning any work on this project. All work 

required under this AGREEMENT will be performed in accordance with these standard practices and 

any special requirements hereinafter set forth. All work perfonned by the CONSULTANT under this 

AGREEMENT shall be subject to the Review, Approval and Acceptance of the CITY and Federal 

Highway Administration, where applicable, before CONSULTANT will be paid for said work. 

"As a part of obligations of the CONSULTANT to the ClTY under this AGREEMENT, the 

CONSULTANT does hereby certify that CONSULTANT has no financial or other interest in the 

outcome of project proposed under this AGREEMENT". 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK 

The CONSULTANT will perform construction engineering and inspection, materials sampling 

and testing and contract administration services on-call for the CITY. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) P L I F C  12 



This will be a specific rate of pay AGREEMENT for a two year period. The CONSULTANT will 

provide services, personnel and equipment as required by the CITY. The work to be performed by the 

CONSULTANT will be as follows: 

SECTION 1 - CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERJNG AND INSPECTION SERWCES 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

This statement of work describes and defines services which are required for construction 

engineering, inspection, materials sampling and testing and contract administration for 

construction projects selected by the CITY. 

2.0 SCOPE: 

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all construction engineering and administrative 

functions as defined in this Scope of Work and referenced manuals and procedures. The 

CONSULTANT shall utilize effective control procedures to assure the construction of said project 

is performed in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and contract provisions for 

assigned project. 

The CONSULTANT shall provide professional, technical and administrative personnel, meeting 

requirements of the ClTY in appropriate numbers at proper times to ensure that responsibilities 

assigned under this AGREEMENT are effectively fulfilled. All services shall be performed in 

accordance with established standard procedures and practices of the CITY. Prior to furnishing 

any services, the CONSULTANT shall be familiar with ALDOT procedures, standard and 

informal, and practices, standard and informal, for construction, engineering and contract 

administration used by the ClTY. The ClTY shall endeavor to provide the CONSULTANT at 

least ten (10) calendar days advance notice of the execution date for each construction contract to 

allow sufficient time for the CONSULTANT to schedule its activities. In the event of emergency 

needs, for a short tenn basis (sickness, vacation, etc.), the CITY shall provide the CONSULTANT 

two days advance notice in order for the CONSULTANT to furnish required personnel. The 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) I1; lgc'  13 



CONSULTANT shall maintain close coordination with the CITY and the Contractor to minimize 

rescheduling of the CONSULTANT'S activities due to construction delays or changes in 

scheduling of the Contractor's activities. 

3.0 DEFINITIONS: 

A. Transportation Director: The chief executive officer of ALDOT. 

B. Chief Engineer: The individual appointed by the Transportation Director to administer 

technical phases of ALDOT. 

C. Construction Bureau: The Bureau of ALDOT charged with administering ALDOT'S 

construction program. 

D. State Construction Engineer: Administrative head of the Bureau of Construction of 

ALDOT. 

E. Project Manager, CONSULTANT: Qualified individual who has been assigned as the on- 

site person in charge of a construction contract. 

Project Manager, CITY: Qualified individual assigned by the CITY to manage 

Construction Engineering and lnspection contract formulated by this AGREEMENT and 

will be in responsible charge and direct control of project. 

F. FHWA: The Federal Highway Administration of the United States Department of 

Transportation. 

G. Construction Contract: Construction work let under separate contract(s) by ALDOT to 

contracting firm(s). 

H. Contractor: Contracting finn or its designated representatives awarded contract(s) to do 

construction work. 

I. Construction Contract Suspension: Cessation of construction activity on a construction 

contract. 

J. Region/Area Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Region. 

K. District Manager: Administrative head of one of ALDOTyS Districts. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) l k a y c  14 



L. State Bridge Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Bridge Bureau. 

M. State Design Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Design Bureau. 

N. Consultant: Consultant fim(s) retained by ALDOT to perform all construction engineering 

and administrative functions as defined in this AGREEMENT. 

0. State Materials and Tests Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Materials and Tests 

Bureau. 

P. RegiodArea Materials and Tests Engineer: Employee designated by ALDOT to administer 

policies on materials sampling and testing in ALDOT'S Region. 

Q. Consultant Design Engineer (when applicable): Consultant design engineer retained by 

ALDOT to design aforementioned project($. 

R RegiodArea Construction Engineer: Employee designated by ALDOT to administer 

policies and procedures of construction projects covered by this AGREEMENT in 

ALDOT'S Region. 

S. RegiodArea Consultant CE & I EngineerGManager (when applicable): Employee of 

ALDOT designated by RegiodArea Construction Enjjneer to be in charge of project(s) 

covered by this AGREEMENT. 

T. Area County Transportation Engineer (when applicable): Employee of ALDOT that 

administers policies and procedures of city and county construction projects let by ALDOT. 

U. County Engineer: Administrative head of the County Engineering Department. 

V. City Engineer: Administrative head of the Mayor's OfficdCity Engineering Department. 

4.0 ITEMS TO BE FURNISHED BY THE CITY TO CONSULTANT: 

A. The minimum Contract documents for each project shall be distributed to the 

CONSULTANT, via the RegionIArea Engineer, by ALDOT'S Office Engineer subsequent 

to award of construction contract for each project as follows: 

5 sets Construction Plans - Half scale 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(90#) 



3 sets Construction Plans - Full size (1 set to be used in preparation of as built 
plans) 

2 sets Standard Drawings 

1 copy of Executed Contract 

B. An adequate supply of all standard forms to be used in hlfilling technical services under 

this AGREEMENT, disposable type molds for casting concrete test cylinders, sample 

cartons, sample bags and other expendable-type testing supplies. The CONSULTANT may 

use computerized forms approved by ALDOT. Construction and Materials Management 

Software including CAMMS, SiteManager, Stormwater Tracking System and Concrete 

Management System will be used for contract administration on designated projects. 

C. 

4 . d  

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 





A. Document Compliance 

The requirements outlined within printed documents listed below are a condition of this 

contract. The CONSULTANT shall obtain, without cost to CITY, at least one copy of each 

document. One copy of each document shall be available at project office at all times. 

Compliance with these guides, manuals, procedures, and advisories shall be a requirement 

of this AGREEMENT. 

1. All active Construction Information Memorandums issued, prior to or after execution 

of this AGREEMENT, by ALDOT'S State Construction Engineer. These 

procedures convey certain practices and procedures of ALDOT relating to 

construction supervision and administration of contracts. A copy of each 

Memorandum issued on or subsequent to execution of this AGREEMENT shall be 

furnished to the CONSULTANT in a timely nianner by ALDOT'S RegiodArea 

Construction Engineer. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website) 

2. Guidelines for Operations issued by ALDOT. (Said manual is available on 

ALDOT'S website) 

3. All Technical Advisories and Memorandums issued, prior to or after execution of 

this AGREEMENT, by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests Engineer. The 

advisories convey certain practices and procedures of ALDOT relating to sampling 

and testing of materials used in construction projects. A copy of each advisory 

issued on or subsequent to execution of this AGREEMENT shall be furnished to the 

CONSULTANT in a timely manner by ALDOT'S Region/Area Materials and Tests 

Engineer. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website) 

4. ALDOT'S Testing Manual as issued by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests 

Engineer. This manual sets out test frequency of acceptance samples and tests, 

sampling point, sample size, sampling and test methods and appropriate report forms 

for materials to be incorporated into construction projects. This Manual also 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) ;! j: c 1 8 



contains Bureau of Materials and Tests (ALDOT) procedures referenced in the 

Manual and/or specifications and BMT worksheets and test report forms. (Said 

manual is available on ALDOT'S website) 

5. ALDOT'S Construction Manual. This rnanual describes in detail many of the 

procedures and practices of ALDOT relating to construction engineering and 

inspection. 

(Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website) 

6. A tabulation of required ALDOT'S technician certifications relating to construction 

engineering and inspection. 

7. Applicable ALDOT Standard Specifications for Highway Construction with one 

copy for each of the CONSULTANT'S personnel. 

8. The applicable Roadway and Traffic Design Standards. 

9. The applicable Alabama Regulations for Control of Radiation Chapter 420-3-26 

Radiation Control as issued by the State of Alabama Health Department. 

10. ALDOT'S manual of Materials, Sources and Devices with Special Acceptance 

Requirements as issued by the State Materials and Tests Engineer. (Said manual is 

available on ALDOT'S website) 

1 1. FHWA Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

12. One copy of the Radiological Safety Manual for use of Nuclear MoisturdDensity 

and Asphalt Content Gauges as issued by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests 

Engineer for each project on which there is a nuclear testing device. 

13. The AASHTO Standard Specifications for Transportation Materials and Methods of 

Sampling and Testing. 

14. Copies of all applicable ASTM Standards. 

B. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) f 3 u p . c  19 







6.0 LIAISON: 

The CONSULTANT shall be fully responsible for fulfilling all hnctions assigned to it by this 

AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT'S activities and decisions relating to project(s) shall be 

subject to review by the RegiodArea Engineer. The CONSULTANT shall provide coordination 

of all activities, correspondence, reports, and other communications related to its responsibilities 

under this AGREEMENT. No personnel shall be assigned until written notification by the 

RegiodArea Engineer has been issued. Construction engineering and inspection forces shall be 

required of the CONSULTANT at all times when required by the CITY. If construction contract 

is suspended, the CONSULTANT'S forces shall be adjusted at the direction of the Region/Area 

Engineer to correspond with type of suspension, either complete suspension or partial suspension. 

7.0 COOPERATION AND PERFORMANCE OF THE CONSULTANT: 

During the period of this AGREEMENT, the CITY shall conduct reviews of various phases of the 

CONSULTANT'S operations, such as construction inspection, materials sampling and testing and 

administrative activities. Reviews shall be conducted to determine compliance with this 

CE & 1 for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) f b n r c  112 



AGREEMENT and sufficiency with which procedures are being effectively applied. These 

reviews are to assure that construction work and administrative activities are performed in 

reasonable conformity with the CITY policies, plans, specifications and contract provisions. The 

CITY shall have complete access, at all times, to project site, project office, all project records 

and any other CONSULTANT items associated with said project or this AGREEMENT. The 

CONSULTANT shall cooperate and assist the CITY representatives in conducting said reviews. 

When deficiencies are indicated in a review, immediate remedial action shall be implemented by 

the CONSULTANT in conformance with the CITY'S recommendations. The CITY'S remedial 

recommendations and the CONSULTANT'S actions are to be properly documented by the 

RegiodArea Engineer. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for accuracy of its work and 

shall promptly implement policies and procedures reasonably necessary to prevent errors, 

omissions, or noncompliance with said contract terms. If the CONSULTANT'S services 

hereunder contain errors, omissions, or are not compliant with terms of said contract, the 

CONSULTANT, upon receipt of written notice of such defects from the CITY, shall correct such 

errors, omissions or noncompliance at its own expense. However, when the CONSULTANT is 

responsible for managing a project and where CONSULTANT errors, omissions or contractual 

lapses caused increased costs, delays, or other damages to the CITY, the RegiodArea Engineer 

shall prepare a written evaluation of the costs, delays or damages and circumstances that caused 

the increased costs, delays or damages. A copy shall be sent to the CONSULTANT. Said costs 

shall be deducted from the monthly payment or retainage due to the CONSULTANT. Remedial 

action shall be required commensurate with the degree and nature of deficiencies cited. 

Additional compensation to the CONSULTANT shall not be allowed for remedial action taken to 

correct deficiencies by the CONSULTANT. 

Federal Aid projects are subject to review by representatives of FHWA. Additional State 

personnel may make special reviews. The CONSULTANT shall fully cooperate with and assist in 

making such reviews. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NRI 3(908) I? s c  113 



8.0 REQUIREMErnS: 

A. General: 

It shall be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT to provide sewices as necessary for 

contract administration to produce construction in reasonable conformity with plans, 

specifications and contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall advise the RegionIArea 

Engineer and shall document any omissions, substitutions, defects, and deficiencies noted 

in the work of the Contractor and the corrective action taken. 

B. Survey Control: 

The CONSULTANT may be requested to reestablish project survey controls. The 

CONSULTANT may be requested to provide project surveying to fi~lfill project 

requirements. 

C. Proiect Inspection: The CONSULTANT shall provide sewices to monitor and document 

the Contractor's construction operations. The CONSULTANT shall test, inspect and 

document all construction material as required to assure quality of workmanship and 

materials are in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and other contract 

provisions. The CONSULTANT may be responsible for monitoring and approving asphalt 

production. The ClTY shall monitor all other off-site activities and fabrication (including 

pre-stress production). The CONSULTANT shall keep detailed, accurate records of the 

Contractor's daily operations and significant events that may affect the work. The standard 

procedures and practices of the ClTY for inspections of construction projects are set out in 

the CITY'S Construction Manual. The CONSULTANT shall have appropriate 

certifications for inspection of work being performed. The CONSULTANT shall in 

general, perform inspection services in accordance with these standard procedures and 

practices and other accepted practices as may be appropriate. 

D. Testing: 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



The CONSULTANT shall perform sampling and testing of component materials and 

completed work items to the extent that will assure materials and worlananship 

incorporated in each project is in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and 

contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall meet minimum sampling frequencies set out 

in the CITY'S Testing Manual. The ClTY reserves the right to require additional sampling 

and testing. The CONSULTANT shall be specifically responsible for securing job control 

samples and utilizing test results to determine acceptability of all materials and completed 

work items. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for verification of a certified test 

report as determined by the Bureau of Materials and Tests, DOT label, DOT stamp, etc., as 

appropriate. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for progress record sampling of 

reinforcing steel. The ClTY sllall monitor the effectiveness of the CONSULTANT'S 

testing procedures through surveillance and obtaining testing progress record samples and 

final record samples. Progress record sampling and testing is necessary to verify job control 

sampling frequencies and test procedures are adequate. The CONSULTANT shall inform 

the CITY of schedules for sampling and testing as work progresses on each construction 

contract so sampling can be accomplished by the CITY at the proper time. Sampling and 

testing shall be as required by the aforementioned ALDOT Testing Manual or as modified 

by contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for transporting samples 

to be tested to the appropriate State laboratory. Any testing performed at a laboratory other 

than the State laboratory shall be handled in a separate AGREEMENT. The 

CONSULTANT shall perform all required and necessary surveillance, inspection and 

documentation of project hot-mix asphalt operations. 

E. Manaeement Enrineerin~ Services: 

The CONSULTANT shall perform all management engineering services necessary to: 

assure proper coordination of activities of all parties involved in accomplishing completion 

of projects; maintain complete, accurate records of all activities and events relating to 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) [' ;I g e 1 15 



projects; properly document all significant changes to projects; provide interpretations of 

plans, specifications and contract provisions; make recommendations to the CITY to 

resolve disputes that may arise in relation to construction contracts; and to maintain an 

adequate level of surveillance of the Contractor's activities. The CONSULTANT shall 

perfom any other management engineering services normally assigned to a project that are 

required to fulfill the CONSULTANT'S responsibilities under this AGREEMENT. All 

recordation and documentation shall be in accordance with standard ALDOT procedures, 

fonnats and content. CONSULTANT services include, but are not limited to the following: 

1. Attending and participating in a pre-constnrction conference for each project. 

Record significant information revealed and decisions made at conference and if 

requested by the CITY, distribute copies of said minutes to appropriate parties. The 

CONSULTANT may be required to conduct the pre-construction conference. 

2. Complete and maintain a full and accurate daily record of all activities and events 

relating to project. Record all work completed by the Contractor, including 

quantities of pay items in conformity with Final Estimates preparation procedures 

and specifications. The CONSULTANT shall immediately report to the 

RegiodArea Engineer changes in pay items, project time or cost as soon as they 

become known to the CONSULTANT. 

3. Complete and maintain Project Diaries and Inspector's Daily Reports as requested by 

the CITY. Said diaries and reports shall be kept up-to-date on a daily basis. 

4. Maintain a project log of all materials entering into work with proper indication of 

basis of acceptance for each shipment of material. 

5. Maintain project records of all sampling and testing accomplished. Analyze such 

records to ascertain acceptability of materials and completed work items. The field 

reports shall be recorded in project records within three days. The CONSULTANT 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) Page 116 



shall verify, certify and document work items requiring performance periods (curing 

period, operational period, etc.). 

6. Prepare and submit monthly to the RegionlArea Engineer a comprehensive 

tabulation of the quantity of each pay item satisfactorily completed that includes 

appropriate test reports andlor materials certifications or materials stored to date. 

Quantities shall be based on daily records and calculations. Calculations shall be 

properly recorded. The tabulations shall be used for preparation of the Monthly 

Progress Estimate. 

7. Provide interpretations of plans, specifications and contract provisions. The 

CONSULTANT shall consult with the RegiodArea Engineer when an interpretation 

involves complex issues or may have an impact on cost or quality of performing said 

work. 

8. Field problems are difiiculties encountered during construction through 
1 

circumstance, which may or may not be under the control of the Contractor, 

requiring a degree of engineering evaluation and decision. Field problems might 

involve situations such as: out of place piling, out of tolerance work, out of 

specification materials, structural defects, accidental damage, underground 

obstructions, etc. These problems may have a significant impact upon the execution, 

progress, cost or quality of said project. Therefore, it is of paramount importance 

that problems be resolved expeditiously. The CONSULTANT shall ensure solutions 

are pursued and implemented as expeditiously as possible. Where a difficulty, 

problem, or defect of any nature is encountered during construction, the 

CONSULTANT shall assemble all relevant infonnation to include any proposals 

from the Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall document and evaluate the same in 

a concise and orderly manner, by reviewing all information and circumstances. The 

CONSILTANT shall make recommendations to the RegiodArea Engineer for the 

CE & 1 for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) ! ' a g e  l17 



most expeditious course of action to minimize delays and costs while achieving a 

structurally acceptable result. 

The Engineer of Record (Design Engineer) or State Construction Engineer, 

depending on the nature of proposal is responsible for structural engineering analysis 

of the Contractor's proposals, determining acceptability of proposals and meeting the 

requirements of said design. However, the CONSULTANT shall be responsible for 

ensuring that the RegionIArea Engineer is provided with all relevant information 

and, in addition, shall appraise and make recommendations to the RegiodArea 

Engineer of all project(s) related circumstances that may have an influence upon the 

solution. 

In particular, the CONSULTANT shall first utilize his own personnel and resources 

in order to assess the problem and its likely impacts on said project(s). By utilizing 

CONSULTANT personnel and resources, the CONSULTANT shall assess both 

technical and contractual implications upon said project(s) of any proposals 

presented by the Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall consider all likely impacts 

upon project(s) as regards to costs, delays, potential claims, contract administration, 

management, any justifiable financial adjustments (increases or decreases, including 

penalties) to be applied to Construction Contract, and feasibility of the Contractor 

successfully and expeditiously hlfilling his technical proposals. The 

CONSULTANT shall make these assessments in order to formulate his 

recommendations. The CONSULTANT shall then forward the said assessments and 

recommendations to the RegionlArea Engineer, together with any proposals from the 

Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall be a liaison and cooperate with the CITY in 

resolution of any problems. Upon resolution and approval of technical solution, the 

CONSULTANT shall ensure all approved remedial measures are completed in a 

technically competent and satisfactory manner. The CONSULTANT shall be 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 1 ' ~ y . c .  118 



responsible for any contract administration and management normally associated 

with implementing remedial measures. In situations where the CONSULTANT does 

not have direct responsibility for engineering inspection of the item that caused said 

problem, but where that item is now under his area of control, (example: defective 

precast components or fabricated steelwork made at a facility under engineering 

inspection of a different party and later delivered to site), the CONSUL,TANT shall 

formulate his assessment and recommendations and cooperate in resolving the 

problem. 

In all situations, the CONSULTANT shall ensure all proposals, reviews, 

assessments, studies, recommendations and decisions are executed expeditiously in 

order to minimize any delays and costs. 

9. The CONSULTANT shall analyze changes to plans, specifications or contract 

provisions and extra work that appear to be necessary to hlfill the intent of said 

contract. The CONSULTANT shall provide recommended changes to the 

RegionlArea Engineer for approval. Approval of the RegiodArea Engineer must be 

obtained prior to initiating any change or extra work. 

10. When a modification to the original contract for a project is required, due to a 

necessary change in character of work, the CONSULTANT, in conjunction with the 

ClTY Project manager, shall negotiate prices with the Contractor and prepare and 

submit a recommendation to the RegiodArea Engineer for approval. The 

RegiodArea Engineer shall prepare the required SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

and obtain all required approvals. 

11. In the case where the Contractor gives notice, either written or verbal, that certain 

work to be performed is beyond the scope of construction contract and intends to 

claim additional compensation, the CONSULTANT shall maintain accurate 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) l ' a g c  119 



documentation in accordance with project contract requirements, of the costs 

involved in such work. 

12. in the case where the Contractor for a project submits a claim for additional 

compensation, the CONSULTANT shall analyze submittal in conjunction with the 

RegionlArea Construction Engineer. The CONSULTANT may be required to 

provide recommendation on validity and reasonableness of the requested additional 

compensation andlor contract time extension. The CONSULTANT shall maintain 

complete and accurate documentation of work involved in claims. 

13. In the case where the Contractor for a project submits a request for an extension of 

allowable contract time, the CONSULTANT shall the analyze request and prepare a 

recommendation to the RegiodArea Engineer covering accuracy of statements and 

actual effect of delaying factors on completion of controlling work items. The 

CONSULTANT shall make recommendations weekly, or at other times as necessary, 

to the Region/Area Engineer on all delays. This recommendation is needed to justify 

a time extension. 

14. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit to the RegiodArea Engineer a final 

estimate with documentation and one (1) set of record as-built plans for each 

contract. All changes made to plans, which involve the CONSULTANT, shall be 

signed and sealed by the CONSULTANT and the RegionIArea Engineer. This task 

must be completed within a timely manner or in accordance with current ALDOT 

Standard Specifications from the earliest project acceptance date. 

15. At request of the CITY, the CONSULTANT shall assist appropriate ClTY offices in 

preparing for hearings or litigation that may occur during the tenn of this 

AGREEMENT in connection with a project covered by this AGREEMENT. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



16. The CONSULTANT shall monitor and document the Contractor's compliance with 

contract provisions in regard to payment of predetermined wage rates in accordance 

with State procedures. This includes sub-contractor compliance. 

17. The CONSULTANT shall review and document the Contractofs compliance with 

contract requirements concerning Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative 

Action; assist the CITY'S Equal Employment Opportunity Specialist as requested; 

and, review and document D.B.E. (Disadvantaged Business Enterprises) activities to 

insure compliance of contract goals. 

18. The CONSULTANT shall review and document each construction project to the 

extent necessary to determine whether construction activities violate requirements of 

any permits. The Project Manager shall notify the Contractor, in writing, of any 

violations or potential violations and require his immediate resolution of said 

problem. Violations shall be reported to the RegionIArea Engineer immediately. 

19. Shop drawindsample submittal and approvals shall be logged by the CITY. 

Tracking shall include maintaining a log book of the status of each submittal as it 

progresses through review and approval. The CONSULTANT shall actively 

encourage all reviewers to accomplish reviews promptly. 

20. The CONSULTANT shall assist the Contractor and utility companies in resolving 

conflicts so that any conflicting utilities are timely removed, adjusted or protected to 

minimize delays to construction operations. Documentation shall be maintained in 

accordance with the CITY'S procedures. 

21. The Project Manager and the CONSULTANT for each particular project shall 

conduct meetings as required with respective Contractor, sub-contractor andlor 

utility companies to review plans, schedules, problems or other areas of concern. 

The results of these meetings shall be recorded in project diary. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) E '  :t I?. c 121 



22. The CONSULTANT may be required to conduct and document field reviews of 

maintenance of traffic operations after normal working hours, weekends and 

holidays. 

23. The CONSULTANT may be required to respond to inquiries from various persons, 

i.e., public, media, property owners, local agencies, State agencies, Federal agencies, 

etc., and infonn the RegiodArea Engineer of these inquiries. 

24. The CONSULTANT may be required to provide field construction activities in areas 

of design engineering, vertical and horizontal control, typical sections, cross-sections 

for monthly estimates and other engineering required to complete construction 

project. 

9.0 PERSONNEL: 

A. General Reauirernents: 

The CONSULTANT shall provide a sufficient number of qualified personnel as directed by 

the CITY to effectively carry out its responsibilities under this AGREEMENT. 

B. Personnel Ouali fications: 

The CONSULTANT shall utilize only competent personnel who are qualified by 

experience and education. The CONSULTANT shall submit, in writing, to the 

RegiodArea Engineer the name of all personnel to be considered for assignment to said 

construction projects, together with a detailed resume of each person's qualifications and 

copies of current certifications with respect to salary, education and experience. The 

CONSULTANT'S personnel approval request shall be submitted at least two weeks prior to 

and approved by the RegiodArea Engineer prior to the date an individual is to report to 

work. Listed below are minimum qualifications and job descriptions for the 

CONSULTANT'S personnel that may be working on various projects under this 

AGREEMENT. 

PROJECT MANAGER: 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



Minimum Qualifications: 

Ten years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials 

testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering or 

Registered Professional Engineer with five years of experience in construction 

inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection. One or more of the 

following certifications may be required as approved by the RegionIArea Engineer. 

Certified Asphalt Technician Level I - Field Tester 

Certified Level I1 - Quality Management Technician 

Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician 

Work Zone Safety Certification 

Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT certification) 

Radiological Safety Course Certification 

Qualified Credentialed inspector (QCI) 

Job Description: 

This is administrative and technical work in Civil Engineering. The employees in 

said class shall act as the first contact between contractor and the CITY. The Project 

Manager shall be responsible for supervision of all employees assigned to the said 

project. The Project Manager shall ensure that a project is built in accordance with 

project plans and specifications under which contract was awarded. The Project 

Manager shall report directly to the District Manager's or the RegionlArea 

Engineer's designated representative. 

SENIOR INSPECTOR: 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Eight years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials 

testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering or 

Registered Professional Engineer with two years of experience in construction 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) ! I  a I! c 123 



inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection. One or more of the 

foflowing certifications as necessary and approved by the RegionfArea Engineer. 

Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be certified in said field. 

Certified Asphalt Technician Level I -Field Tester 

Certified Level I1 -Quality Management Technician 

Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT Certification) 

Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician 

Work Zone Safety Certification 

Radiological Safety Course Certification 

Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI) 

Job Description: 

This is skilled sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees 

in said class shall act as the Assistant Project Manager and be responsible for 

reviewing and directing inspection duties of all project inspectors. The Senior 

Inspector shall be capable of surveying and drafting, as they apply to documenting 

and inspection, of a construction project. The Senior Inspector shall report directly 

to Project Manager. 

CEVEI .I1 INSPECTOR: 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Five years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials 

testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering with one 

year of experience in construction inspection, surveying or materials testing and 

inspection. One or more of the following certifications as necessary and approved by 

the RegionlArea Engineer. Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be 

certified in said field. 

Certified Asphalt Technician Level I - Field Tester 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



Certified Concrete Technician (ACl and ALDOT Certification) 

Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician 

Work Zone Safety Certification 

Radiological Safety Course Certification 

Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI) 

Job Description: 

This is skilled sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees 

in said class shall foilow standard procedures in documenting construction projects 

and inspecting job activities to verify they are in compliance with project plans and 

specifications. The inspector shall be responsible for completing a daily report 

documenting labor and equipment used by contractor to include a description of 

work performed and any pertinent conversations with contractor. The inspector will 

assist with office work such as plotting cross-sections and computing earthwork 

quantities. The inspector shall report directly to Senior Inspector andlor Project 

Manager. 

LEVEL I INSPECTOR: 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Some experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and 

inspection is preferred. One or more of the following certifications as necessary and 

approved by the RegionIArea Engineer. Inspectors who are to perform a specific task 

shall be certified in that particular field, 

Certified Asphalt Technician Level I - Field Tester 

Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT Certification) 

Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician 

Work Zone Safety Certification 

Radiological Safety Course Certification 
CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



Job Description: 

This is sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees in said 

class shall follow standard procedures in documenting construction projects and 

inspecting job activities to verify they are in compliance with project plans and 

specifications. The inspector shall be responsible for completing a daily report 

documenting labor and equipment used by contractor to include a description of 

work performed and any pertinent conversations with contractor. The inspector shall 

assist with office work such as plotting cross-sections and computing earthwork 

quantities. The inspector shall report directly to Senior Inspector andlor Project 

Manager. 

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT 

Minimum Qualifications: 

A high school diploma or a GED certificate. 

Job Description: 

Employees in this class may perform a variety of clerical duties. These duties may 

include data entry, filing documents, sorting mail, typing documents, taking 

dictation, proofreading documents, making copies, greeting and directing the public, 

taking telephone messages, posting records, or making simple calculations. 

PROFESSiONAL CNlL ENGINEER 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Must possess a Professional Engineer's License as issued by the Alabama State Board 

of Licensure for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and must have at least one 

year of professional civil engineering experience. 

Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI) 

Job Description: 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



This is advanced professional work in the field of civil engineering. Employees in 

said class perform a variety of complex engineering duties associated with planning, 

geodetic surveys, location, design, construction or maintenance of roads, bridges, 

buildings, or other civil engineering projects. 

TARGET PERSON 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Six months experience in surveying. 

Job Description: 

This is sub-professional work in the field or office. Employees in said class follow 

standard procedures in carrying out field or office assignments related to surveying 

for construction projects. Limited instrument use for construction and right-of-way 

stakeout, obtaining quantity cross-sections, spot checking location and elevation of 

different construction activities such as form work, setting of girders, pipe grades 

and blue top elevations as well as cutting line constitute the main activities. 

INSTRUMENT PERSON 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Two years experience in surveying. 

Job Description: 

This is skilled sub-professional surveying work in the field or office. Employees in 

said class follow standard procedures in carrying out field or office assignments 

related to surveying for construction projects. Employees in said class may be in 

charge of checking of contractor's work, obtaining quantity cross-sections, and 

staking right-of-way. Said employee must be able to operate several types of 

surveying equipment. The ability to readlcomprehend contract plans, take and 

reduce field notes and complete daily reports is essential. The position shall report 

directly to Field Supervisor or Project Manager. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) Pc7:e 127 



FIELD SUPERVISOR 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Four years experience in surveying with at least one year of experience as a 

construction survey party chief. 

Job Description: 

This is supervisory and technical surveying work in the field or office. Employees in 

said class are in charge of making daily work assignments, interpreting and reading 

construction plans, and directing surveying activities involved with checking 

contractor's work, obtaining quantity cross-sections, and staking right-of-way. Work 

is performed with considerable independence, but is reviewed for conformance with 

established policies, procedures, and applicable State laws. The ability to calculate 

horizontal and vertical positions as well as quantities for payment, co~nmunicate in 

writing and orally, and instruct personnel in the use of equipment is essential. Said 

position shall report directly to Project Manager or Professional Land Surveyor 

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR 

Minimum Qualifications: 

Must possess a Professional Land Surveyor's License as issued by the Alabama State 

Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and have at least 

one year of experience as a Professional Land Surveyor. 

Job Description: 

This is supervisory professional surveying work in the field or office as required by 

Alabama State Law. Employees in said class shall insure compliance to standards of 

practice for surveying in the State of Alabama and conformance with established 

policies and procedures for surveys which involve the staking of right-of-way. 

C. STAFFING: 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NRi3(908) 



The CITY shall determine number and type of personnel needed to adequately staff and 

carry out responsibilities of said scope of service. The qualifications of each person 

proposed for assignment must be reviewed and approved in writing by the ReiodArea 

Engineer. An individual previously approved whose performance is later detennined by the 

CITY to be unsatisfactory shall be immediately removed and replaced by the 

CONSULTANT within one week after notification. The CONSULTANT shall maintain an 

appropriate staff, as approved by the Region/Area Engineer, after completion of 

construction to complete the final estimate. Qualified personnel, thoroughly familiar with 

all aspects of construction and final measurements of various pay items, shall be available 

to resolve disputed final pay quantities until appropriate contract is finalized. 

As the Contractor's operations on a contract diminish, the CONSULTANT shall reduce 

number of personnel assigned to said project as appropriate. Any adjustment of the 

CONSULTANT forces as directed by the RegiodArea Engineer shall be accomplished 

within one week after notification. The CONSULTANT shall, at ail times, provide project 

personnel to ensure proper staffing is maintained. Personnel on a specific project shall be 

rotated to keep overtime to a minimum. The Project Manager shall be responsible to 

schedule the CONSULTANT employee work hours to avoid overtime. This shall include 

varying employee work hours, or the use of shift work, or rescheduling employee normal 

work hours in advance of expected overtime. The method of schedule modification shall be 

approved by the RegionIArea Engineer. If overtime is not held to a minimum, then 

SECTION 1,7.0 (Cooperation and Performance of the CONSULTANT) of this 

AGREEMENT shall be enforced to replace personnel. If construction contract is 

suspended, the CONSULTANT'S forces shall be adjusted at the direction of the 

Regiodkea Engineer to correspond with type of suspension. In the event of a construction 

contract suspension which requires the removal of CONSULTANT forces from project, the 

CE & I for f hase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) I ' a g c  129 



CONSULTANT shall be allowed up to a maximum of five (5) days to demobilize, relocate 

or terminate such forces. 

Should the CITY determine a need for additional classifications not set forth in this 

AGREEMENT, the classifications and hourly pay ranges shall be established based on 

mutual AGREEMENT with the CONSULTANT. 

D. CERTIFICATION - Licensing for Equi~ment and Personnel: 

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for obtaining proper certification and licenses for 

equipment and personnel used on any project. Licensing of nuclear testing devices shall be 

obtained through the appropriate agencies. Only technicians approved by the CITY shall be 

authorized to operate nuclear testing devices. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for 

monitoring activity (i.e. film badgedradiation levels) of their technicians who operate 

nuclear testing devices. Other certifications for technicians such as concrete, Asphalt 

Roadway, Asphalt Plant, American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA) Worksite 

Supervisors and others if applicable shall be required. Construction Inspectors work 

qualifications shall be as shown in SECTION 1, Paragraph 9.0 B of this AGREEMENT. 

10.0 SUBCONSULTANT SERVICES: 

Upon written approval of the CITY and prior to performance of work, the CONSULTANT may 

subcontract for engineering surveys, materials testing, or specialized professional services. The 

RegioniArea Engineer shall verify qualifications of personnel used by sub-consultant. 

1 1.0 OTHER SERVICES: 

The CONSULTANT shall, upon written authorization by the Region/Area Engineer, perform any 

additional services not otherwise identified in this AGREEMENT as may be required by the CITY 

in connection with said Project(s). 

12.0 CLAIMS REVIEW: 

In the event the Contractor for said project submits a claim for additional compensation andtor 

time after the CONSULTANT shall, by written request from the CITY, analyze the claim, prepare 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(904) P o  g c  130 



recommendation to the RegionJArea Engineer covering validity and reasonableness of charges 

andlor assist in negotiations leading to the settlement of said claim. Compensation for these 

services shall be mutually agreed between the CITY and the CONSULTANT prior to performance 

of said Services. 

A. The CONSULTANT shall, upon written request by RegioniArea Engineer, assist appropriate 

CITY Offices in preparing for arbitration hearings or litigation that occur after the 

CONSULTANT'S contract time in connection with the project covered by diis AGREEMENT. 

The CONSULTANT shall, upon written request by RegionIArea Engineer, provide qualified 

Engineers andlor Engineering Technicians to serve as engineering witnesses, provide exhibits, and otherwise 

assist the CITY in any litigation or hearings in connection with said construction contract(s). 

ARTICLE I1 - TIME OF BEGINNING AND COMPLETION 

The CONSULTANT services for each on-call constcuction assignment shall begin after the 

CONSULTANT receives approved f urchase of Consultant Services for Construction Engineering and 

Inspection order (Form CPO -CE&I) from RegionlArea Engineer. The CPO shall constitute Notice 

to Proceed from the CITY. The maximum amount payable to the CONSULTANT for services on 

each on-call construction assignment shall not exceed the amount stated on said CPO. The length of 

services as herein established for each construction contract is based on the CONSULTANT 

beginning work when notified and continuing work until acceptance by the CITY of described 

services. 

This AGREEMENT shall be effective upon the date of approval by the Legislative Contract Review 

Oversight Committee, and signature of the Governor of Alabama, for a term of two years. Any 

requests for work by the CITY, made prior to the end of the two-year term shall be covered by this 

AGREEMENT. 

ARTICLE 111 - PAYMENT 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



SECTION 1 

Overhead shall be limited to the actual audited overhead rates. Increases in billable overhead and labor 

additives shall be limited to a maximum of five (5) percentage points. Profit shall be maintained at ten (10) 

percent of these costs. When RegionIArea requires the CONSULTANT to stay overnight at a project, the 

CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed for actual expenses up to the maximum allowable by State Law. 

Employees whose vehicles are used for work-related mileage (excluding mileage for commuting) shall be 

compensated at the prevailing Federal mileage rate as approved by the General Services Administration. Out- 

of-pocket expenses, not to exceed $100.00, shall be paid as direct cost plus ten (10) percent. Purchases over 

$100.00 shall require written authorization from appropriate Region. 

For pedonnance by the CONSULTANT of services provided for in this AGREEMENT, and as full 

and complete compensation therefore, including all approved expenditures and expenses incurred by the 

CONSULTANT in connection with this AGREEMENT, and subject to conformity with all provisions of this 

AGREEMENT, the CITY shali pay the CONSULTANT as follows: 

A. The total compensation to the CONSULTANT for work provided for when performed under 

this AGREEMENT will be as follows: 

1. Direct salary and wages - Actual salary and wages paid personnel while actually 

engaged in performance of work, all as determined by Finance Director of the Alabama 

Department of Transportation. Listed below are labor rate ranges for the 

CONSULTANT'S personnel that may be working on various projects under this 
' 

AGREEMENT. 

CLASSIFICATION HOURLY PAY RANGES 

Professional Civil Engineer $28.00 to $43.00 

Project Manager $21.00 to $37.00 

Senior Inspector $17.00 to $29.00 

Level I1 Inspector $13.00 to $24.00 

Level 1 Inspector $12.00 to $19.00 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 1 ' 3 ~ 1 '  132 



Professional Land Surveyor $20.00 to $37.00 

Field Supervisor $17.00 to $29.00 

Instrument Person $13.00 to $23.00 

Target Person $12.00 to $19.00 

Administrative Assistant $10.00 to $19.00 

2. All other related direct actual costs paid by the CONSULTANT, applicable to this 

AGREEMENT, such as printing and reproduction, and subsistence of personnel engaged 

on project at rates payable under state law, and for those supplies, communication 

equipment, etc. not included in the overhead rate. Vehicles reimbursed for work-related 

mileage (excluding mileage for commuting) at the prevailing Federal mileage rate as 

approved by the General Services Administration, see Attachment #1 for ALDOT 

Consultant Field Office Procedures, which Attachment 81 is made a part hereof. 

3. For work performed out of the CONSULTANT'S home or branch office, the 

CONSULTANT'S home office overhead and labor additive rate of 183.62 percent (for 

Fiscal Year Ending 2014) shall be applied to direct salary and wages. Any sub- 

consultant's overhead and labor additive rate shall not exceed prime consultant's rate. 

The CONSULTANT'S billable overhead and labor additive can only increase to a 

maximum of five (5) percentage points per year during the life of this AGREEMENT. 

4. For work performed out of CITY provided facility, the CONSULTANT'S field office 

and labor additive rate of 000.00 percent (for Fiscal Year Ending ) shall be 

applied to the direct salary and wages. Any sub-consultant's overhead and labor additive 

rate shall not exceed prime consultant's rate. The CONSULTANT'S billable overhead 

and labor additive can only increase to a maximum of five (5) percentage point per year 

during the life of this AGREEMENT. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



(NOTE: For CONSULTANTS titat Ilave 11ot proilided an mrditedjeld ofice overitead 

rare, tize billableJeld oflee rate sitall be 105.00per.ce1zt trrztilstrclt time as orte is 

provided ro rite STATE'S Btrrrait of Finance and Atrdirs, External Atldir Section.) 

5. Profit at the rate of ten (10) percent applied to direct salary, overhead, and approved 

expenses. 

6. The STATE'S Bureau of Finance and Audits, External Audit Section shall be furnished 

a Statement of Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead that is in compliance 

with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and an audited Statement of Indirect 

Cost developed in compliance with the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures stated 

in Volume I, Federal Acquisition Regulations, Part 3 1, and the audit standards contained 

in the Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United 

States by the end of the fifth month after the closing of the CONSULTANT'S fiscal 

year. 

7. Any paid overtime shall require prior authorization from the RegionIArea Engineer. 

Billable overtime is all time worked over Forty Hours each week or holidays observed by 

the CONSULTANT. 

For firms that include the premium portion of direct labor overtime in the Direct Labor 

Base of the Indirect Cost Rate Calculation: 

a. The hourly overtime rate will be 1.5 times the billable rate. 

b. Hours worked on holidays observed in the RegiodArea on the work that is being 

performed by the CONSULTANT will be billable at an hourly rate of 2 times the 

regular billing rate. 

For firms that do not include the premium portion of direct labor overtime in the Direct 

Labor Base of the Indirect Cost Rate Calculation: 

a. The hourly rate will be one 1 times the billable rate. 

CE & 1 for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



b. The premium portion of overtime will be billed in accordance with the 

CONSULTANT'S Indirect Cost Rate Calculation. 

8. The maximum amount payable, to the CONSULTANT for work provided for under this 

AGREEMENT, shall not exceed two hundred eleven thousand. two hundred dollars and 

no1100 ($21 1.200.00). 

SECTION 2 

A. Certified copies of daily payrolls for personnel actively engaged on work included in this 

specific Rate of Pay AGREEMENT shall be furnished monthly. 

B. Payments to the CONSULTANT shall be made not more often than monthly. Payment 

shall be subject to submission by the CONSULTANT of such vouchers or invoices, daily 

progress reports and such evidence of performance the CITY may deem necessary. The 

original invoice and (3) three copies shall be submitted by the CONSULTANT to the 

RegionlArea Office for review, approval and forwarding to the STATE'S Bureau of 

Finance and Audits, External Audit Section located in Montgomery, Alabama, for payment. 

C. The CONSULTANT shall correlate and coordinate accounting of CONSULTANT to 

comply with current audit system of the STATE and applicable Federal Acquisition 

Regulations. Since this is a cost reimbursable type of AGREEMENT, all direct job costs, 

and labor costs charged to the said project shall be the actual rate of pay at the time work is 

performed and shall be subjected to audit by the STATE. 

SECTION 3 

The acceptance by the CONSULTANT of the final payment shall constitute and operate as a 

release to the ClTY of all claims and of any and all liability of the CITY to the CONSULTANT, its 

representatives andlor assigns for all things done, furnished or relating to services rendered by the 

CONSULTANT under, or in connection with this AGREEMENT, or any part thereof, provided that no 

unpaid invoices exist because of extra work required at the request of the CITY. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) t la ;  c .'35 



SECTION 4 

During the period of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall not be employed and 

CONSULTANT'S employees shall not be employed by construction contractors performing work on 

state or federal-aid projects on which the CONSULTANT is assigned without approval in writing by the 

CITY. 

SECTION 5 

The work to be performed under this AGREEMENT shall not include any work payable to the 

CONSULTANT under any other AGREEMENT(S) with the CITY in effect at the time work is 

performed. 

ARTICLE IV - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Exhibits A, C, D, E, F, G, H, H-I, I, K, L, M, N, X, Y and Z attached hereto, are made a part of 

this AGREEMENT and the terms and provisions of such exhibits are binding on the parties respectively 

as fully and completely as they would bind the parties if such terns and provisions were set forth in 

writing in the AGREEMENT. 

By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the AGREEMENT, 

that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue 

to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to 

be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the AGREEMENT and shall be responsible 

for a11 damages resulting there from. 

CE & I for Phase 9 CMAQ-NR13(908) 



In WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed by 
those officers, officials and persons thereunto duly authorized, nnd the AGREEMENT is 
deemed to be effective on the date of approval by the Legislative Contract Review 
Oversight Committee and the approval of the Governor of Alabama. 

P/iase 9 CMA Q-NR 13(908) 
CE & I Cortrract Ar~~oitnt S211,200.00 

APPROVED BY CITY: 

Signature: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 

SAM ASSOCIATES, INC. 
DATED SEPTEMBER 12,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thetthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama ("the Cityii) and Sain Associates, Inc. ("the Contractor") dated September 
12,2016. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agrecmcnt, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting or  inconsistent terms or provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the cxtent 
the conflicting or  inconsistent terms or  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are provided herein o r  under othcnvise applicable taw, o r  to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or eliminate rights or  remedies that ~vould be available to the City under othenvise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and cffect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, or  supplement of or to the prineipat agreement, whether or  not expressly acknowlcdgcd 
o r  incorporatcd therein. No agent, employee, o r  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, or suspend the operation of the Addendum o r  any of its terms or provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

1. Dcfittitiotts. For purposes of this Addendum, the terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (tljis) Agreeaatt " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "Tlte Corztr.nctor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbirrariott; Mcdiutiori; Alterirate Disp~ite Rcsol~itiotr. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e-g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorrtey's Fees; Corrrt Costs; Litigatiurr Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Pope 1 of 3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Paytr~cirt Cltarges; Fees; Irtterest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

5. Irrderrtrrificntiorr; Hold-Harrrrless; Release; Waiver; Lirrritatiorrs of Liability or Re~r~cdies. The 
City shall not and does not indernnifj, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, fonn, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded from the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6, Clroicc of Law; Cltoice of VCIII~C or Foriirri. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue-of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7. Corrstriictior~ of Addertdtrrtr. Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of the Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8. Alabarrra Innrigration Law Corrtpliartce Corrtract. Contractor agrees that it will hlly comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hamrnon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawful for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify the eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shatl have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the fonn 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Veri& Program for Empioyment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
Immigration Refonn and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Sain Associates, Inc. 

Its : 

City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

By : 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-130 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that 
the City Council hereby authorizes the execution of Schedule No. 002 to the City/PReMA Corp 
Master Agreement (Resolution No. 2016-1 lo), in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A subject 
to such minor changes as may be recommended by the City Attorney, with respect to tax and 
license auditing services to be performed by PReMA. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama that the City Manager is further authorized to execute such other documents that may be 
determined necessary with respect to said engagement. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certifL the 
above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its regular meeting held on September 12,201 6, as same appears in the 
minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

PReMA Corp Tax and License Auditing Services Agreement 



AUDITING SERVICES SCHEDULE NO. 002 
Page 1 of 5 

SCHEDULE NO. 002 TO CITYPReMA CORP MASTER AGREEMENT 

This SCHEDULE NO. 002 (this "Schedule") to that certain Master Services Agreement 
effective as of September 12, 2016 (the "Master Agreement") is entered by and between 
PUBLIC RESOURCE MANAGEMENT ALLIANCE CORPORATION, a Colorado 
corporation ("PReMA Corp" or "PReMA"), and the CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAMA ("City" or "Client") on this 12th day of September, 2016 (the "Schedule Date"). 

W I T N E S S E T H :  

WHEREAS, PReMA Corp has the knowledge and experience to provide audit services 
to determine if businesses or franchisees operating in the City pursuant to a franchise agreement 
with the City (which collectively may be referenced herein as "Businesses," "Taxpayers" or 
"Franchisees") have paid the following amounts to the City: (i) amounts due for business 
licenses fees as provided in Chapter 26, Article VII of the City of Mountain Brook Code of 
Ordinances (the "City Code"); (ii) municipal sale and use taxes owed pursuant to Chapter 26, 
Articles IV & V of the City Code; (iii) rental, lodging, lease, and alcohoIic beverage tax revenue 
payable to the City pursuant to applicable codes and law; and (iv) franchise fees as set forth in 
franchise agreements with the City (such services being collectively referenced herein as "Audit 
Services"); 

WHEREAS, PReMA Corp and the City desire to enter into this Schedule whereby 
PReMA Corp will provide the Audit Services described herein; and 

WHEREAS, PReMA Corp and the Client desire that, effective as of the Schedule Date, 
this Schedule be annexed and made a part of the Master Agreement, and that this Schedule 
continue in effect as provided for in the Master Agreement or in this Schedule. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and promises contained herein, 
the City and PReMA Corp agree as follows: 

1. Terms of Master Agreement; Canitalizcd Terms. Unless otherwise provided 
in this Schedule, capitalized terms that are not defined herein shall have the same meanings as in 
the Master Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms of the Master Agreement and 
those in this Schedule, the terms of this ScheduIe shall control. 

2. Annlicable Fees & Taxes Subiect to Audit. The license fees, taxes and other 
payments owed to the City by Businesses for which PReMA Corp will provide the Audit 
Services are as follows (mark all that apply): 

4 Sales taxes J Business licenses fees 
J Consumers use taxes Vehicle use taxes 
4 Sellers use taxes Construction use taxes 
4 Lodging taxes J Franchise fees 
J Rental taxes Automobile ad valoren1 taxes 
J Lease taxes J Alcoholic beverage taxes 



AUDITlNG SERVICES SCHEDULE NO. 002 
Page 2 of 5 

Other fees or taxes to be audited include any listed below: 

(collectiveIy herein the "Applicable Taxes" or "Taxes"). 

3. Initiation of Audit. The initiation of Audit Services shall commence in either of 
two ways: 

(i) Request by City. The City may request that PReMA Corp perform Audit Services 
concerning a type(s) of Applicable Taxes for a Business(es) that the City designates; or 

(ii). Approval by City. On a quarterly basis once taxpayer history is established within its 
system, PReMA will provide the City with a list of potential Businesses, Taxpayers, 
and/or Franchisees and types of Applicable ~ & e s  payable by them that PReMA 
recommends be audited. The criteria used by PReMA for selection of those candidates 
and Taxes will be objective and include, but not be limited to, analysis of taxpayer 
reporting history and trends, significant variances and anomaIies in taxpayer reporting of 
gross receipts, deductions, exceptions, taxable amounts, etc. 

After receiving PReMA's list, the City will (i) timely review PReMAYs recommendations, (2) 
in the exercise of its sole discretion, determine whether it approves the audit of the Business(es) 
and type of Tax(es) recommended by PReMA, and (3) timely advise PReMA Corp in writing 
whether it approves an audit recommended by PReMA. 

In no event may PReMA Corp perform Audit Services concerning a Business, Taxpayer, 
and/or Franchisee and type(s) of Tax(es) unless those Services are either requested or approved 
by the City. 

4. Schedulin~ of Audits/Budaetin~ of Expenses. Afler the Business(es), Taxpayer, 
and/or Franchisee and type(s) of Tax(es) are selected and approved by the City, the parties will 
agree on a schedule for PReMA to perform the Audit Services for each audit, with 
consideration for taxpayer responsiveness. PReMA's project manager for the audits will 
consult or meet bi-weekly with designated City staff ensuring an open-line of communication 
to provide updates and address any concerns the City may have. PReMA Corp will provide 
monthly audit status reports in a manner acceptable to the City staff outlining all activities that 
occur during that month. The report will include audits assigned to PReMA Corp for that 



SCHEDULE NO. 002 
Page 3 of 5 

month, audits completed that month, status of all audits assigned including issues that require 
intervention or assistance by the City, audit hours spent on each audit assigned during the 
period, and engagement status to date. If the City wishes to terminate an audit prior to 
completion, the City shall notify PReMA Corp in writing of that intention using a designed 
form that directs the auditor to terminate the audit. The auditor will noti@ the Taxpayer and 
provide a written report of findings and actions to the City. Additional reporting is provided 
upon request and as is determined to be necessary in the day-to-day operations of the City's 
revenue stream for Taxes. 

5. Scone of Audit Services. The Audit Services concerning a Business(es), Taxpayer 
or Franchisee will be conducted in the following manner: 

a. Tax: Account Auditing of Returns or Reports to City. PReMA will conduct the audits 
of tax returns and reports filed with the City by audited Businesses, Taxpayers and/or 
Franchisees in a timely manner and in accordance with applicable State and local laws 
governing taxpayer audits (including, but not limited to, Title 40, Code of Alabama and the 
Taxpayer Bill of Rights), and consistent with the skill and diligence normally employed by 
professionaIs performing the same or similar services. The scope of PReMA's auditing 
services also include it recommending timely and appropriate assessments against Businesses 
based on its audit findings. 

b. Reports. Upon request, PReMA will provide the City Finance Department a complete 
report of its audit findings. 

c. Disputes with Businesses in Audit Process. The parties acknowledge, in the course of 
PReMA's Audit Services, those Businesses being audited may contest the amounts of 
Applicable Taxes (including interest and penalties) that are claimed to be owed (an "Audit 
Dispute"). PReMA Corp agrees that, in the event that an Audit Dispute arises, it wilI advise 
the City Finance Department of any such Dispute, and the City thereafter will attempt to 
resolve that Dispute with a Business in a manner that is acceptable to it. PReMA will have no 
authority to compromise the amount of Applicable Taxes that a Business may propose to pay to 
settle an Audit Dispute. Upon reasonable advance notice, PReMA agrees to provide 
documentation of its findings, meet with the Businesses if requested by the City and fbrnish 
other support reasonably requested by the City to assist it resolve any Audit Dispute. Any 
decisions to litigate or take formal administrative actions to collect Applicable Tax(es) owed by 
Businesses, Taxpayers andlor Franchisees shall be made by the City. 

d. Collection of Applicable T a e s  Generated by Audit Process. Any payments of 
Applicable Taxes by Businesses, Taxpayers andlor Franchisees that are generated by or arise 
from the performance of Audit Services wit1 be made directly by the subject Business to the 
City. 



AUDITING SERVICES SCHEDULE NO. 002 
Page 4 of 5 

6. Client Assistance: Services. Client shall promptly provide PReMA Corp with 
payment histories and other taxpayer information that may be pertinent to perform a thorough 
review of any Business, Taxpayer andlor Franchisee after those are approved for audit. 

7. - Fees. Client shall pay PReMA Corp the following fee (the "Fees") in connection 
with the performance of its Audit Services: 

Administrative/Clerical Staff $45.00 per hour 

Conditionally Certified Revenue Examiner $55.00 per hour 

Certified Revenue Examiner $70.00 per hour 

Invoicing for such Fees shall be submitted by PReMA and processed by the City as provided in 
Section 4 of the Master Agreement. 

8. Exnenses The City will reimburse PReMA Corp for the following expenses 
incurred by it in performing its Audit Services. 

Mileage ................................................................. Prevailing IRS rate per mile 

Air Fare, Lodging and Meals .................................. Exact Cost with no mark- up. NOTE: 
No Air Fare, Lodging or Meal 
Expenses will be paid by the City 
unless pre-authorized by the City's 
Finance Director. 

Printing and Photocopying Per taxpayer audit 
and in excess of 100 pages ...................................... $, 10 per copy 

Charges Incidental to Securing Needed 
Information (e.g., charges by third parties to Exact cost with no mark-up 

..... obtain information on Business being audited) 

................................. Postage and Delivery Costs Exact cost with no mark-up 

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, no other type of Reimbursable Expense will be paid by the 
City in connection with Audit Services. 

Invoicing for Reimbursable Expenses shall be submitted by PReMA and processed by the City 
as provided in Section 4 of the Master Agreement. 

9. No Minimum Level of Revenuemon-Exclusive Contractor. The City does not 
represent or covenant that PReMA Corp will receive any minimum level or amount of revenue in 
connection with its provision of Audit Services pursuant to this Schedule. Further, PReMA Corp 
is not designated by the City as the exclusive provider of such Audit Services. 



AUDITING SERVICES SCHEDULE NO. 002 
Page 5 of 5 

10. Termination of Schedule. The term of this Schedule shall commence on the 
Schedule Date and continue in effect during the term of the Master Agreement. 
Notwithstanding, except as provided immediately below, this Schedule may be terminated before 
its expiration as provided in Section 7.6 of the Master Agreement. Further, if Audit Services 
have been commenced with respect to a Licensed Business but not completed at the effective 
time of any termination other than one for cause, the parties agree that the Audit Services for that 
Licensed Business will be completed and that the terms herein shall continue to apply until those 
Services are completed. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, sealed, and delivered this 
Agreement through their duly authorized representatives, as of the day and year first written 
above. 

PReMA CORP: CLIENT: 

PUBLIC FUISOURCE MANAGEMENT CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALLIANCE CORPORATION ALABAMA 

By: By: 
Its Executive Vice-president Its 

Date: Date: 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-131 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes either the Mayor or City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, lease 
agreements with Armans, LLC and Redstone Holdings, LLC, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibits A 
and B, respectively, with respect to the two lease public parking lots located in English Village. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

English Village Parking Lot Lease@) Renewals 



I 0  LDAJL AGREE-VIENTS WILL I 
SEPARATLLY ONCE FINALIZE L 

Re: English Village parking leases 

Whit Colvin 10133 AM (37 
minutes ago) 

to me, Whit 

I-lave scnt to Keith and he is clearing with the Drehcrs. I expect to hear something sllortly. Thcy stan Oct. 1 so if there is  
a hang up, wc still liave ~ h c  second meeting where we could approve. But I think tlicy may bc ready for 
approval Monday ... 

Whit Colvin 
Bishop, Colvin, Johnson & Kent, LLC 
Phone: (205) 25 1-288 1 
Direct Line: j205) 224-4 195 
Mobile: (2051 222-6225 
wcolvin~bishopcolvin.com 
www.bishopcoIvin.com 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-132 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that the City 
Council hereby authorizes either the Mayor or City Manager to execute, for and on behalf of the City, to 
execute a professional services agreement between the City and Gresham, Smith & Partners with respect to 
the design and administration of the bridge reconstruction and rehabilitation for the Old Brook Trail bridge 
(#012869) over Little Shades Creek and Canterbury Road bridge (~$002873) over Watkins Creek. 

ADOPTED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook at its 
regular meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said meeting. 

City Clerk 

Gresham, Smith & Partners Bridge Reconstruction Services 



From: "Perry, Blair" cblair ~errv@as~net.com~ 
To: Sam Gaston ~gas~ons@mtnbrook.orq~, Ronald Vaughn <vauahnr~mtnbrook.oru> 
Cc: "Gurney, Bryan" cbrvan aurnev~asrtnet.com~, "Humphrey, Hal" chal hurn~hrevi@~s~net.com> 
Subject: Caldwelt Mill Road Bridge Replacement Proposal 

Sam and Ronnie, 

Attached is our proposal for the design of the Caldwell Mill Road Bridge Replacement. We will send the draft 
agreement tomorrow. 

A few things that added to the cost: 

1. The surveyor has to do some additional survey work (stream cross sections) for the required FEMA flood 
study. 

2. There is not any good horizontal and vertical survey control near the project. Accurate survey control to a 
national datum is necessary lor the required FEMA flood study. The closest good survey control points are at 
the Birmingham Water Works complex on Hwy 280. They can use GPS to "transfer" those control points for a 
ways, but once they get off of Hwy 280, the heavy tree cover will require conventional surveying to run the 
control down to the project location. This is a very time consuming process and added considerably to the cost 
of the survey. 

3. ALDOT advised that they will review the bridge plans at the 30% and final plan stage. I think that 
because they administer the federal bridge inspection program, they get to review all bridge plans, even for 
100% locally funded projects. They said that this would not be an extensive or time-consuming 
review. However, this did add some to the cost of the geotech work and bridge plans for coordinating with 
ALDOT and addressing any comments they have. 

4. FEMA Flood Study - Little Shades Creek is designated as a floodway in the National Flood Insurance 
Program (NFIP) flood maps. Therefore, we have to do the FEMA required flood studies for the new 
bridge. Our goal is to design the new bridge so that there is no rise in the flood elevation at the bridge. This 
will keep the City from having to incur the additional cost of getting a letter of map revision (LOMR) from FEMA. 

5. Additional detailing required for the stacked stone facing 

6. Biddinglconstruction contract documents and advertising and bidding services were added as requested 
in our recent scoping meeting. 

Let me know if you have any questions. 

Blair 

Blair C. Perry, P.E. 
Senior Transportation Engineer 

Gresham, Smith and Partners 
Architecture, Engineering, Interiors, Planning 

3595 Grandview Parkway, Suite 300 
Birmingham, AL 35243 
[PI 205.298.9232 
[MI 205.937.541 3 



ADDENDUM TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK AND 
GRESHAM, SMITH AND PARTNERS 

DATED SEPTEMBER 12,2016 

THIS ADDENDUM ("thelthis Addendum") to the principal agreement between the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama (''the City") and Gresham, Smith and Partners ("the Contractor") dated 
September 12,20 16. 

This Addendum is a part of the principal agreement, but supersedes and controls any 
conflicting o r  inconsistent terms o r  provisions in the principal agreement, particularly to the extent 
the conflicting o r  inconsistent terms o r  provisions purport either to (a) confer greater rights or 
remedies on the Contractor than are  provided herein or under otherwise applicable law, or to (b) 
reduce, restrict, or  eliminate rights o r  remedies that would be available to the City under othenvise 
applicable law. The addendum shall remain in full force and effect with respect to any amendment, 
extension, o r  supplement of o r  to the principal agreement, whether or not expressly acknowledged 
or incorporated therein. No agent, employee, o r  representative of the City is authorized to waive, 
modify, o r  suspend the operation of the Addendum o r  any of its terms o r  provisions without 
express approval of the Mountain Brook City Council. 

I .  Defiriitiotrs. For purposes of this Addendum, tlie terms below have the following meanings: 

A. "The City" refers to and includes the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, and its 
constituent departments, boards, and agencies. 

B. "The (this) Agreewent " refers to the principal contract, agreement, proposal, quotation, 
or other document that sets forth the basic terms and conditions under which the 
Contractor is engaged to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, including the 
payment or other consideration to be provided by the City in exchange therefor. 

C. "Tl~e Contractor" refers to the person, firm, or other legal entity that enters into an 
agreement with the City to provide goods, materials, or services to the City, and includes 
vendors and suppliers providing goods, materials, and services to the City with or without 
a formal contract as  well as the Contractor's vendors, suppliers, and subcontractors. 

Arbitration; Mediation; Alternnte Dispute Resolutiotr. The City agrees to arbitrate disputes or 
to engage in alternate dispute resolution (ADR) if arbitration or ADR is required by the 
agreement as a means of resolving disagreements arising thereunder or is a precondition to the 
pursuit of other legal remedies, but only to the extent (1) the rights and remedies available under 
such arbitration rules or processes do not afford the Contractor greater relief (e.g., attorney's fees, 
damages, etc.) than would be available under otherwise applicable law, (2) the venue for the 
arbitration or mediation proceeding is in Jefferson County, Alabama, and (3) the costs of such 
proceedings (including the fees of the arbitrator or mediator) are divided evenly between the 
parties. 

3. Attorney 's Fees; Court Costs; Litigntion Expenses. The City shall not be liable for attorney's 
fees, court costs, litigation expenses, and like charges except and to the extent such fees, costs, 

Page 1 of3 



and charges would be assessed against the City under applicable law in the absence of any 
contractual provision imposing or assigning liability therefor. 

4. Late Paynrettt Cliarges; Fees; Interest. The City shall not be liable for any late payment 
charges, interest, or fees on any delinquent bill for goods, materials, or services at a rate higher 
than two-thirds of one percent per month (eight percent per annum), but bills rendered to the City 
shall not be considered delinquent any earlier than thirty (30) days after rendition of a complete 
and accurate bill by the Contractor. Contested bills shall not be subject to late payment charges 
pending resolution of the dispute. 

Inderrrttijlcaiiotr; Hold-Hnmttfess; Release; Waiver; Lintitatiorrs of Linbifiv or Ret~zedies. The 
City shall not and does not indemnify, hold harmless, or release the Contractor or any other 
person, firm, or legal entity for, from, or with respect to any claim, cause of action, cost, charge, 
fee, expense, or liability whatsoever arising out of or relating to the subject matter of the 
agreement or the performance or nonperformance thereof; nor shall or does the City waive its 
right to assert or pursue any remedy or claim for relief of any kind that it may have against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity for any actual or alleged default or other breach of 
legal duty on the part of the Contractor or any person, firm, or entity in privity therewith or acting 
on Contractor's behalf. Any limitation or restriction regarding the type, nature, form, amount, or 
extent of any right, remedy, relief, or recovery that would otherwise be available to the City is 
expressly disavowed, excluded fiom the terms of the agreement, and void. 

6. Cltoice of Lnrv; Clroice of Vetrite or Forio?t. The meaning, legal effect, and enforcement of 
terms and provisions of the agreement and the resolution of any disputes arising thereunder or 
relating thereto shalt be governed by the laws of the State of Alabama except to the extent 
otherwise required by applicable conflict-of-law principles. The venue of any suit, action, or 
legal proceeding brought to enforce or secure relief by reason of any asserted breach of duty 
arising out of or relating to the performance or nonperformance of the agreement shall be 
Jefferson County, Alabama except to the extent otherwise required by applicable principles of 
law. 

7, Constructiotr ofAdderidiittr, Nothing in this Addendum shall be construed to create or impose 
any duty or liability on the City, to create a right or remedy in favor of tlie Contractor against the 
City, or to restrict or abrogate any right or remedy that is available to the City against the 
Contractor or any other person, firm, or entity under either the principal agreement or as a matter 
of law. 

8, Aiabnlrra Initttigrafion Law Conrpliatrce Contract. Contractor agrees that it will fully comply 
with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 
1990, and the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act, which makes it 
unlawfbl for an employer in Alabama to knowingly hire or continue to employ an alien who is or 
has become unauthorized with respect to such employment or to fail to comply with the 1-9 
requirements or fails to use E-Verify to verify tlie eligibility to legally work in the United States 
for all of its new hires who are employed to work in the State of Alabama. Without limiting the 
foregoing, Contractor shall not knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ 
an unauthorized alien, and shall have an officer or other managerial employee who is personally 
familiar with the Contractor's hiring practices to execute an affidavit to this effect on the form 
supplied by the Board and return the same to the City. Contractor shall also enroll in the E-Verify 

Page 2 of 3 



Program prior to performing any work, or continuing to perform any ongoing work, and shall 
remain enrolled throughout the entire course of its performance hereunder, and shall attach to its 
affidavit the E-Verify Program for Employment Verification and Memorandum of Understanding 
and such other documentation as the Board may require to confirm Contractor's enrollment in the 
E-Verify Program. Contractor agrees not to knowingly allow any of its subcontractors, or any 
other party with whom it has a contract, to employ in the State of Alabama any illegal or 
undocumented aliens to perform any work in connection with the Project, and shall include in all 
of its contracts a provision substantially similar to this paragraph. If Contractor receives actual 
knowledge of the unauthorized status of one of its employees in the State of Alabama, it will 
remove that employee from the project, jobsite or premises of the City and shall comply with the 
lmmigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, as amended by the Immigration Act of 1990, and 
the Beason-Hammon Alabama Taxpayer and Citizen Protection Act. Contractor shall require 
each of its subcontractors, or other parties with whom it has a contract, to act in a similar fashion. 
If Contractor violates any term of this provision, this Agreement will be subject to immediate 
termination by the City. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 
indemniFy and hold harmless the City from any and all losses, consequential damages, expenses 
(including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees), claims, suits, liabilities, fines, penalties, and any 
other costs arising out of or in any way related to Contractor's failure to fulfill its obligations 
contained in this paragraph. 

DATED this 12th day of September, 2016. 

Gresham, Smith and Partners City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 

Its : 

Page 3 of 3 



,ORDINANCE NO. 1957 - AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 1693 AND TO _ - - { ~ o n n a t t c d ~ ~ ~ ~ t ~ ~ m e ~ ~ ~ e w ~ ~ o m a n  1 
PROHIBIT SMOKING IN CERTAIN ENCLOSED PLACES AND CERTAIN OUTDOOR 

PUBLIC PLACES IN THE ClTY 

WHEREAS, the City Council o f  thecity o f  Mountain Brook. Alabama is aware that studies show 
that (I) second+hand smoke exposure can cause disease and premature death in children and adults who 
do not smoke; (2) children exposed to second-hand smoke are at an increased risk for sudden infant death 
syndrome (SIDS), acute respiratory problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks; (3) even occasional 
exposure o f  adults to second-hand smoke can have immediate adverse effects on the cardiovascular 
system and can cause coronary heart disease and lung cancer; (4) there is no risk-free level o f  exposure to 
second-hand smoke; (5) establishing smoke-free public places and places o f  employment are the only 
effective ways to ensure that second-hand smoke exposure does not occur in  such places because 
ventilation and other air cleaning technologies cannot completely control exposure o f  non+smokers to 
second-hand smoke; and (6) evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smoke-free policies and 
laws do not have an adverse economic impact on the hospitality industry; 

WHEREAS, the Council is aware that studies have shown that (I) residual tobacco 
contamination, or "third-hand smoke," from cigarettes, cigars, and other tobacco products is lefi behind 
aner smokin~ occurs and builds up on surfaces and furnishings; (2) tobacco residue can linger in spaces 
long aner smoking has ceased and continue to expose people to tobacco toxins; (3) sticky, highly toxic 
particulate matter, including nicotine, can cling to walls and ceilings; (4) gases can bc absorbed into 
carpet?, draperies, and other upholsteries, and then be reemitted (off-gassed) back into the air and 
recombine to form harmrul compounds; and (5) even the rapid absorption and persistence o f  high levels 
of residual nicotine from tobacco smoke on indoor surfaces, including clothing and human skin, exposure 
to "third-hand smoke" can represent an unappreciated health hazard through dermal exposure, dust 
inhalation, and ingestion; 

WHEREAS. the Council finds that unregulated electronic smoking devices, commonly referred 
to as electronic cigarettes, or "e-cigarettes," closely resemble and purposefully mimic the act o f  smoking 
by having users inhale vaporized liquid nicotine created by heat through an clectmnic ignition system, 
and that their use in workplaces and public places where smoking of traditional tobacco products is 
prohibited creates concern and confusion and leads to difficulties in enforcing the smoking prohibitions; 

WHEREAS, the City Council o f  the City o f  Mountain Brook, Alabama is concerned about the 
health hazards induced by breathing second-hand smoke which include lung cancer, heart disease, 
respiratory infection, and decreased respiratory function, including bronchospasm; 

WHEREAS, the City Council o f  the City o f  Mountain Brook, Alabama finds and declares that the 
purposes of this ordinance arc ( I )  to protect the public health and welfare by pmhibitingsmoking in 
certain enclosed public places, enclosed places of employment, and certain outdoor public places; (1) to 
regulate the use of eledronic smoking devices like other traditional f o m  o f  smoking; (3) to promote the 
right of non-smokers to breathe smoke-free air, and to remgnize that the need to breathe smoke-free air 
sholl have priority in certain places over the desire to snoke; and (4) reasonably balance the interests and 
rights of all its citizens regarding smoking in certain public places. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City o f  Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as follows: 

I. Definitions. As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the following 
meanings: 



BAR. An establishment that is licensed by the City for the serving o f  alcoholic beverages 
that are intended for consumption by guests on the premises. In addition to the 
consumption of those beverage!, operations at a bar may include serving of food to the 
public. The term "bar" may include a tavern, nightclub or cocktail lounge. 
CIGAR BAR. A licensed establishment in which the primary activity is the sale, 
manufacture or promotion o f  cigars or cigar acce~*ories, and in which the sale of the 
other produc& is merely incidental. 
CITY. The term "City" means the City o f  Mountain Bmok, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation 
CITY PROPERTY. Any real property within the City that is owned, leased or contmlled 
by the City or any agencies or boards thereof. The term "City Property" does not include 
any property that is leased to the City by the Mountain Brook Board of Education, 
ELECTRONIC SMOKING DEVICE. Any product containing or delivering nicotine or 
any other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a person to 
simulate smoking through inhalation of vapor or aemol from the pmduct. The tern 
includes any such device. whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or mld as an e- 
cigarette, c-cigar, e-pipe, e-hookah, or vape pen, or under any other product name or 
descriptor. 
ENCLOSED AREA. All area or space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded on 
at least two sides by walls, doonvayq or windows, whether open or closcd. A wall 
includes any retractable divider, garage door. or other physical barrier, whether 
temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings o f  any kind. 
GOVERNMENT BUILDING. Any building operated or occupied by state, county or 
city government, or any agencies thereof, or any other separate corporate inshumentality 
or unit o f  aatc, county or city government. 
GOVERNMENT PROPERTY. Any real property that is owned, leased or otherwise 
controlled or utilized by state, county or city government, orany agencies thereof, or any 
other separate corporate instrumentality or unit of state, county or city government. 
HEALTH CARE FACILITY. "Health Care Facility" means an office or institution pmriding 
care or htment of diseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical, 
physiological. or psychological mnditions, including but not limited to, hospitals, rehabilitation 
hospitals or othaclinics, including weight control clinics, nursing homes. long-letm care facilities. 
homes for the aging orchronkally ill, laboratories, and ofices ofsurgeons, chiropractors, physical 
thuapists,physicians, psychiatrists, dentists, and all specialists within these pmfessions. Thrs 
definition shall includeall ~ait ing moms, hallways, prikate moms, semipriwte rooms, and wards 
wihn health cm facilities. 
LICENSED BUSINESS. A person, organization or entity required to obtain a license 
from the City in order to engage in business or conduct business in thecity. 
OUTDOOR PRIVATE PROPERTY. Outdoor private property is any outside area, land, 
space or place that is owncd, leased or otherwise controlled by a private person, including 
any privately-contmlled place outside an enclosed place o f  employment, outside an 
enclosed public place where the public may congregate or in the outside common area of 
a residential, business or commercial development. 
OUTDOOR PUBLIC PLACE. An outdoor public place is any outside area. land, or 
space on government property where the public is invited or m y  use, including, but not 
limited to, any recreational area. athletic field. stadium, amphitheater, arena. bleachers, 

- - - - - - - . -- 1 
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 3 ,  Hanging: . 
0 F, Numbered c Lew!: I + Numbwtng Style: i 
I, 2,3, . + Start at; 1 + Alipnment: Left + ; 

Alignedat: 0.2F + Indent at; 0.5" - , - -- 



stage, grandstand, temporary seating area, playground equipment, pavilion, shelter, 
concession stand, picnic table, bench, sidewalk, path or other structure, improvement or 
facility on that place, 

3 PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT. An area under the control of apublic or private employer, 
including. but not limited to, work areas, private ofiiccs, employee lounges, reatmoms, 
conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee cafeterias. hallways, interior 
construction sites, temporary ofiices and  vehicle^. A "place of employment" does not 
include either (a) the space or area outside an enclosed place of employment if that area is 
an outdoor private property, or (b) a private residence (single family or multifamily) that 
Is not used in conjunction with a home occupation involving the employment of persons 
other ttran those residing in the private residence. 

(14) PRIVATE CLUB. A premise operated by an organization which is not available to and 
mot cuztomarily used by the general public and entry and privileges thereto are 
establislled by regulations o f  that organization. 

[IS] PUBLIC PLACE. An areaon public or pri\ate pmperty to which the public is invited, 
including but not limited to liccnsed businese bars, restaurants, hotela, motels. health 
care facilities. government buildings, government property, recreational areas, athletic 
facilitieh and public transportation shelters. 

(16) RECREATIONAL AREA. Any- in the City that is open to the public and primarily 
intendcd for rccrcatioml purposes, whether or not any fce for admission is charged, including but 
not limited to pa&, athletic fields, piaygmundq gardens, plfcoursa, and trait% 

(17) RESTAURANT. An eating establislimcnt (including but not limited to, coffee shops, 
cafeterias, sndwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias) which gives or 
offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as kitchens and cater in^ 
facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for sewing elsewhere. The tenn 
"Restaurant" shall include a bar area within the restaurant. 

(18) RETAIL TOBACCO STORE: A retail store whose primary business is the sale o f  
tobacco products and accessories and in which the sale of  other products is merely 
incidental. 

(19) SMOKING: The inhaling, chiding, burning, or carrying any lighted or heated cigar, cigarette, 
pipe, hookah or any otlwr lighted or heated tobacco or plant pmduct intended for inhalation. whether 
~tural  or synthcti~ in any mannaor in any fonn; the ur ofan electmnic rmokingdc\.ia which 
mates an anosol or vapor, in any manner or in any Ionn; or the use of any oral smoking device for 
the purpose of cimmvmting the pmhibition of smoking in this Odinancc. 

Prohibition. Except as othenvisc provided in this subsection, no person shall smoke in any 
enclosed area in a public place, in any enclosed area at a place of employment or in an outdoor 
public place within the City. This pmhibiiiondoes not apply to any o f  the following: 

( I )  Smoking in private residences (single family or multifamily), unless used in conjunction 
with a home occupation involving the employment of pemns other than those residing 
therc 

(2) Cigar Bars or retail tobacco gores 
(3) Private club% 
(4) Smoking on outdoor private property; and 
(5) Smoliingpt an outdoor public placepn City pmperty i f  aamoker is not within twenty (20) 

feet of# nonsmoker. If a person commences smoking putridc on such a place and that 



smoker and a nonsmoker subsequently come within the game twenty (20) loot area, the , , ; -(~dct~d: MUM 1 , . 
smoker shall not violate this ordinance if they walk tlimugh or away from that area or 

' 

otherwise remove tliemrelf from it followinfi Ihe request orthe nonsmoker, 

Fine for Smoking Violation. A person who violates the provisionsof this ordinance by smoking 
in an area or place prohibited by this ordinance shall be guilty o f  a violation ofthis ordinance that 
is punishable by a fine ofat least twenwfive dollars (525.00), but not to exceed one hundred 
dollars (S 1 W.00). 

Signs. (1) The owner, operator, manager, orother pemn in charge o f  an encloacd area at n public 
place or an enclosed area at a place o f  employment within the City ha l l  clearly and 
conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the international "No Smoking" ryrnbot~wliich . . { Ddetcd: in those pIacer. 

consists o f  a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclmed in a red circle with a red bar 
1 

Fine for Person in Charge. The owner, operator, manager, or other prson in charge of an 
enclosed area in a public place or an enclosed area at a place of employment within the City who 
fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance shall be guilty of an ordinance violation that 
is punilable by; 

across itJ at those places near all entrances tofhem. . . 
I _  

(2) The~anage~orplficial who is in chargeof an outdwrjecreationat area on City property shall ,,I - ;. 
clearly and conspicuously post signs near all regular entrances to any sucharea stating "No '7,. \ 

, 
Smoking within Twenty (20) Feet o f  a Nonsmoker"; provided that no obligation exists to post , - , \ 
such signs at or along sidewalks, streets, alleys,,ways, tnils, or public parking lorn orputside ., ', buildings on Citkproperiy. 

, ': , 
, ,' 

Obligation o f  Person in Charge. The person in charge o f  an enclosed area in a public place or an I,'. 

( I )  A fine not exteeding one hundred dollas (5100) for a first violation; 
(2) A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars (5200) for asecond violation within a one ( I  ) 

year period; 

(3) A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars (S500) for third or sub~equent violations within : 
a one (I) year period. 

Deleterl: , 
Ddctcd: thaw plxcs 

w e e  o,,.nrr,cFeralor, 

WetEd:, 

BeletEd: o~her person 

Deleted: public place svi~hin the 

Deleted: placc 

ri~h'mr'va~* 

enclosed area at place o f  employment within the City shall not knowingly permit, cause, suffer or ' Del-tnilsin ~ e a l i ~ n a l a t e a s ~ ~ i t h i n t h t  

allow any person to violate the provisions o f  this ordinance in those plnces. It shall be an Dckmk. 

affirmative defense to nn alleged violation o f  this subsection that the person having control of 
such a place has a ~ k d  that the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, other tob;lcco product or electmnic 
smoking device be extinguished or use o f  same cease, and has asked tlie smoker to leave the 
tstablist~ment if that person ha5 failed or refused to extinguish tlie lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe or 
other tobacco products or cease use o f  an electmnic smoking device. 



7. Separate Violations. Each day on which a violation o f  this ordinance occurs shall be a separate 
and distinct violation. 

8. Enforcement. Jurisdiction for biolations of this ordinance shall be with the municipal court of the 
City. A charge of a violation shall be treated in the same manner as a tnffic citation. Any law 
enforcement officer may issue a citation pursuant to this section. 

9. Repealer. City Ordinance Number 1693 is hereby amended by this ordinance by repealing such 
ordinance and adopting this ordinance in its place. All ordinances or parts o f  ordinances 
heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City ofMountain Brook, Alabama that are 
inconsistent with the pmvisions o f  this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 

LO. Sevenbility. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unmnstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to inwlida~e or impair the remainder 
o f  this ordrnance, which shall continue in full force and e k t  notwithstanding such holding 

I I. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective November 1.2016. 

ADOPTED: This -day o f  ____+ 201 6. 

Council President 

ADOPTED: T h i s  day o f  ,2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

1, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy o f  an ordinance adopted by the City Council o f  the City o f  Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on , 2016, as same appears in  ttre minutes o f  record o f  said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on , 2016, at the following public places, 
which copies remainal posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



ORDlNANCE NO. 1957 - AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 1693 AND TO 
PROHLBIT SMOKLNG IN CERTAIN ENCLOSED PLACES AND CERTAIN OUTDOOR 

PUBLIC PLACES IN THE CITY 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is aware that studies show 
that ( I )  second-hand smoke exposure can cause disease and premature death in children and adults who 
do not smoke; (2) children exposed to second-hand smoke are at an increased risk for sudden infant death 
syndrome (SIDS), acute respiratory problems, ear infections, and asthma attacks; (3) even occasional 
exposure of adults to second-hand smoke can have immediate adverse effects on the cardiovascular 
system and can cause coronary heart disease and lung cancer; (4) there is no risk-free level of exposure to 
second-hand smoke; (5) establishing smoke-free public places and places of employment are the only 
effective ways to ensure that second-hand smoke exposure does not occur in such places because 
ventilation and other air cleaning technologies cannot completely control exposure of non-smokers to 
second-hand smoke; and (6) evidence from peer-reviewed studies shows that smoke-free policies and 
laws do not have an adverse economic impact on the hospitality industry; 

WHEREAS, the Council is aware that studies have shown that (1) residual tobacco 
contamination, or "third-hand smoke," from cigarettes, cigars, and other tobacco products is left behind 
after smoking occurs and builds up on surfaces and furnishings; (2) tobacco residue can linger in spaces 
long after smoking has ceased and continue to expose people to tobacco toxins; (3) sticky, highly toxic 
particulate matter, including nicotine, can cling to walls and ceilings; (4) gases can be absorbed into 
carpets, draperies, and other upholsteries, and then be reemitted (off-gassed) back into the air and 
recombine to form harmfbl compounds; and (5) even the rapid absorption and persistence of high levels 
of residual nicotine from tobacco smoke on indoor surfaces, including clothing and human skin, exposure 
to "third-hand smoke'' can represent an unappreciated health hazard through dermal exposure, dust 
inhalation, and ingestion; 

WHEREAS, the Council finds that unregulated electronic smoking devices, commonly referred 
to as electronic cigarettes, or "e-cigarettes," closely resemble and purposefuIly mimic the act of smoking 
by having users inhale vaporized liquid nicotine created by heat through an electronic ignition system, 
and that their use in workplaces and public places where smoking of traditional tobacco products is 
prohibited creates concern and conhsion and leads to difftculties in enforcing the smoking prohibitions; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama is concerned about the 
health hazards induced by breathing second-hand smoke which include lung cancer, heart disease, 
respiratory infection, and decreased respiratory hnction, including bronchospasm; 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama finds and declares that the 
purposes of this ordinance are (1) to protect the public health and welfare by prohibiting smoking in 
certain enclosed public places, enclosed pIaces of employment, and certain outdoor public places; (2) to 
regulate the use of electronic smoking devices like other traditional fonns of smoking; (3) to promote the 
right of non-smokers to breathe smoke-free air, and to recognize that the need to breathe smoke-free air 
shall have priority in certain places over the desire to smoke; and (4) reasonably balance the interests and 
rights of all its citizens regarding smoking in certain public places. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as follows: 

I .  Definitions. As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the following 
meanings: 



BAR. An establishment that is licensed by the City for the serving of alcoholic beverages 
that are intended for consumption by guests on the premises. In addition to the 
consumption of those beverages, operations at a bar may include serving of food to the 
public. The term "bar" may include a tavern, nightclub or cocktail lounge. 
CIGAR BAR. A licensed establishment in which the primary activity is the sale, 
manufacture or promotion of cigars or cigar accessories, and in which the sale of the 
other products is merely incidental. 
CITY. The term "City" means the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, a municipal 
corporation. 
CITY PROPERTY. Any real property within the City that is owned, leased or controlled 
by the City or any agencies or boards thereof. The term "City Property" does not include 
any property that is leased to the City by the Mountain Brook Board of Education. 
ELECTRONIC SMOKING DEVICE. Any product containing or delivering nicotine or 
any other substance intended for human consumption that can be used by a person to 
simulate smoking through inhalation of vapor or aerosol from the product. The term 
includes any such device, whether manufactured, distributed, marketed, or sold as an e- 
cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, e-hookah, or vape pen, or under any other product name or 
descriptor. 
ENCLOSED AREA. All area or space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded on 
at least two sides by walls, doorways, or windows, whether open or closed. A wall 
includes any retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, whether 
temporary or permanent and whether or not containing openings of any kind. 
GOVERNMENT BUILDING. Any building operated or occupied by state, county or 
city government, or any agencies thereof? or any other separate corporate instrumentality 
or unit of state, county or city government. 
GOVERNMENT PROPERTY. Any real property that is owned, leased or otherwise 
controlled or utilized by state, county or city government, or any agencies thereof, or any 
other separate corporate instrumentality or unit of state, county or city government. 
HEALTH CARE FACILITY. "Health Care Facility" means an office or institution providing 
care or treatment of diseases, whether physical, mental, or emotional, or other medical, 
physiological, or psychological conditions, including but not limited to, hospitals, rehabilitation 
hospitals or otherclinics, including weight control clinics, nwsing homes, long-term care facilities, 
homes for the aging or chronically ill, laboratories, and offices of surgeons, chiropractors, physical 
therapists, physicians, psychiatrists, dentists, and all specialists within these professions. This 
definition shall include all waiting moms, hallways, private rooms, semiprivate rooms, and wards 
within health care facilities. 
LICENSED BUSINESS. A person, organization or entity required to obtain a license 
from the City in order to engage in business or conduct business in the City. 
OUTDOOR PRIVATE PROPERTY. Outdoor private property is any outside area, land, 
space or place that is owned, leased or otherwise controlled by a private person, including 
any privately-controlled place outside an enclosed place of employment, outside an 
enclosed public place where the public may congregate or in the outside common area of 
a residential, business or commercial development, 
OUTDOOR PUBLIC PLACE. An outdoor public place is any outside area, land, or 
space on government property where the public is invited or may use, including, but not 
limited to, any recreational area, athletic field, stadium, amphitheater, arena, bleachers, 



stage, grandstand, temporary seating area, playground equipment, pavilion, shelter, 
concession stand, picnic table, bench, sidewalk, path or other structure, improvement or 
facility on that place. 

(1 3) PLACE OF EMPLOYMENT. An area under the control of a public or private employer, 
including, but not limited to, work areas, private oflices, employee lounges, restrooms, 
conference rooms, meeting rooms, classrooms, employee cafeterias, hallways, interior 
construction sites, temporary offices and vehicles. A "place of employment" does not 
include either (a) the space or area outside an enclosed place of employment if that area is 
on outdoor private property, or (b) a private residence (single family or multifamily) that 
is not used in conjunction with a home occupation involving the employment of persons 
other than those residing in the private residence. 

(14) PRIVATE CLUB. A premise operated by an organization which is not available to and 
not customarily used by the general public and entry and privileges thereto are 
established by regulations of that organization. 

(1 5) PUBLIC PLACE. An area on public or private property to which the public is invited, 
including but not limited to licensed businesses, bars, restaurants, hotels, motels, health 
care facilities, govenunent buildings, government property, recreational areas, athletic 
facilities, and public transportation shelters. 

(1 6) RECREATIONAL AREA. Any area in the City that is open to the public and primarily 
intended for recreational purposes, whether or not any fee for admission is charged, including but 
not limited to parks, athletic fields, playgrounds, gardens, golf courses, and trails. 

(17) RESTAURANT. An eating establishment (including but not limited to, coffee shops, 
cafeterias, sandwich stands, and private and public school cafeterias) which gives or 
offers for sale food to the public, guests, or employees, as well as kitchens and catering 
facilities in which food is prepared on the premises for serving elsewhere. The term 
"Restaurant" shall include a bar area within the restaurant. 

(1 8) RETAIL TOBACCO STOW. A retail store whose primary business is the sale of 
tobacco products and accessories and in which the sale of other products is merely 
incidental. 

(1 9) SMOKING: The inhaling, exhaling, burning, or canying my lighted or heated cigar, cigatette, 
pipe, hookah or any other lighted or heated tobacco or plant product intended for inhalation, whether 
natural or synthetic, in any manner or in any form; the use of an electronic smoking device which 
creates an amsol or vapor, in any manner or in any form; or the use of any oral smoking device for 
the purpose of circumventing the prohibition of smoking in this Ordinance. 

Prohibition. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, no person shall smoke in any 
enclosed area in a public place, in any enclosed area at a place of employment or in an outdoor 
public place within the City. This prohibition does not apply to any of the following: 

(1) Smoking in private residences (single family or multifamily), unless used in conjunction 
with a home occupation involving the employment of persons other than those residing 
there; 

(2) Cigar Bars or retail tobacco stores; 
(3) Private clubs; 
(4) Smoking on outdoor private property; and 
( 5 )  Smoking at an outdoor public place on City property if a smoker is not within twenty (20) 

feet of a nonsmoker. If a person commences smoking outside on such a place and that 



smoker and a nonsmoker subsequently come within the same twenty (20) foot area, the 
smoker shall not violate this ordinance if they walk through or away from that area or 
otherwise remove themself from it following the request of the nonsmoker. 

3. Signs. ( I )  The owner, operator, manager, or other person in charge of an enclosed area at a public 
place or an enclosed area at a place of employment within the City shall clearly and 
conspicuously post "No Smoking" signs or the international "No Smoking" symbol (which 
consists of a pictorial representation of a burning cigarette enclosed in a red circle with a red bar 
across it) at those places near all entrances to them. 

(2) The manager or official who is in charge of an outdoor recreational area on City property shall 
clearly and conspicuously post signs near all regular entrances to any such area stating "No 
Smoking within Twenty (20) Feet of a Nonsmoker"; provided that no obligation exists to post 
such signs at or along sidewalks, streets, alleys, ways, trails, or public parking lots or outside 
buildings on City property. 

4. Obligation of Person in Charge. The person in charge of an enclosed area in a public place or an 
enclosed area at place of employment within the City shall not knowingly permit, cause, suffer or 
allow any person to violate the provisions of this ordinance in those places. It shall be an 
affirmative defense to an alleged violation of this subsection that the person having control of 
such a place has asked that the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, other tobacco product or electronic 
smoking device be extinguished or use of same cease, and has asked the smoker to leave the 
establislunent if that person has failed or refused to extinguish the lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe or 
other tobacco products or cease use of an electronic smoking device. 

5. Fine for Smoking Violation. A person who violates the provisions of this ordinance by smoking 
in an area or place prohibited by this ordinance shalt be guilty of a violation of this ordinance that 
is punishable by a fine of at least twenty-five dollars ($25.00), but not to exceed one hundred 
dollars ($1 00.00). 

6. Fine for Person in Charge. The owner, operator, manager, or other person in charge of an 
enclosed area in a public place or an enclosed area at a place of employment within the City who 
fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance shall be guilty of an ordinance violation that 
is punishable by: 

(1) A fine not exceeding one hundred dollars ($100) for a first violation; 
(2 )  A fine not exceeding two hundred dollars ($200) for a second violation within a one (1) 

year period; 
(3) A fine not exceeding five hundred dollars ($500) for third or subsequent violations within 

a one (1 ) year period. 



7. Separate Violations. Each day on which a violation of this ordinance occurs shall be a separate 
and distinct violation. 

8. Enforcement. Jurisdiction for violations of this ordinance shall be with the municipal court of the 
City. A charge of a violation shall be treated in the same manner as a traffic citation. Any law 
enforcement officer may issue a citation pursuant to this section. 

9. Repealer. City Ordinance Number 1693 is hereby amended by this ordinance by repealing such 
ordinance and adopting this ordinance in its place. All ordinances or parts of ordinances 
heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are 
inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 

10. Severability. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional or 
invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder 
of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

1 1. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective November 1,201 6. 

ADOPTED: This - day of ,2016. 

Council President 

ADOPTED: This - day of ,2016. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on -9 2016, as same appears in the minutes of record o f  said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on , 2016, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE ClTY COUNCIL OF THE ClTY OF ItIOUNTAIN BROOK, 
ALABAhIA, AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING 

OCTOBER 1,2016 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2017 

BE I T  ORDAINED by thc City Council of the City o f  Mountain Brook Alabama, that thc following is the adopted budget Tor all 
major funds of the City for the fiscal year beginning October I. M I 6  and ending September 30,2017: 

General Park Library Cnpibl Other All 
Opcrntions Board Bonrd Projccts Covcrnmcntnl Other 

Funds Availahlc: (100) ( 1  15) (70X) (4 17Z478144 1) (5XW600) (131f14W153) 
Rcvenucs: 

Taxes S 30,660,989 S 0 S 0 S 0 5 391,300 5 0 
Licenses and pennits 4.5 1 1.900 0 0 0 0 0 
Intergorernmcntal 0 50,900 0 0 0 45,598 
Charges for services 541,300 92,800 8,000 0 388,000 45,600 
Finea and forfeitures 494.000 0 55,000 0 192,100 0 
Grants 0 0 11,138 1,621,200 0 0 
Investment Earnings 1 18,000 500 270 29,200 4,440 8,200 
Miscellaneous 3 13,400 3,000 1,500 25,000 175,000 0 
Proceeds from the issuance o f  debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Proceeds from the sale o f  property 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Intrafund transfers in; 
Gencnl OperationdCapital 0 0 0 3,408,416 725,205 0 
Park Board 0 0 0 165,000 0 0 
Library Board 0 11 0 105,000 0 0 
Other (14X1153) (45,599) 0 0 0 0 0 
E-911 0 0 0 0 0 0 

open tin^ tnnsftrs inamponent unit 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 
Donations 0 0 7 1,400 38,000 0 0 

(Surplus) dctid (7fi1)+lW] I) 2b.PPO 3.643.794 {?%-4'l?l (33.IW) 

Total Fund Avnilnhlc S 35.833.990 S 147.200 S 199.298 S 9.035.610 S 1.621.548 5 66.199 

Expcnditurcs: 
Legislation and management 
Planning, Building & Sustainability 
lntergovernrnenlal 
Unassigned benefits 
Finance 
Fire 
Inspection Services 
Police 
Street and Sanitation 
Parks and Recreation 
Library 
Debt service payments 
Operating transfers-out: 

General Fund 
Capital Projects 
Special Revenue 
Debt Service (Other) 
Other funds (Othcr) 
Park Board 
Library Board 

Total Expenditures S 35.833.990 S 147.200 S 199.298 S 9,035,610 S 1,621,548 S 66.199 



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED by the City Council o f  the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that tbe City Manager of the City 
is liereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf o f  the City, to disburse fund$ for the payment of budgeted expenditures including 
and not limited to salaries and benefits, payroll taxes, service and other contracts, debt service, utilities, supplies and such other 
obligations incurred by the City in the normal course o f  municipal, public safety, and recreational operations. 

ADOPTED: The 12th of September, 2016. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 12th o f  September, 1016. 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City o f  Mountain Brook. Alabama, hereby certify the above to be a tme and correct copy o f  an 
ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City oiMountain Brook at its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the 
minutes o f  record of said meeting, and published by posting copies thereon on September 13,2016, at the following public places as 
required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road 

Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 





Recreational 4% 

. . . , , . > . 

2017 General Fund Expense Budget 
Administration 5% Planning 

Debt Service 2% Intergovernmental 
2% 

Jinance 4% 

Fire 20% 

? 
Inspections 1% 



2017 General Fund Expense Budget 

Debt service (P + 1 1 4  
1% 

county services -I 
3% 7 

Garbage contract 7 

8% 

Retiree 2% medica- 



General Operations (Fund 100) Budget Summary 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

Revenues 6 
Expenses and lntrafund Transfers: 

General Government 
Legislation & Management 
Planning 
Intergovernmental 
Benefits (Unassigned) 
lntrafund Transfers-Park Board 
lnlrafund Transfers-Library Board 
lnlrafund Transfers-All Other 

Actual Budget Projected Budget 
2015 201 6 201 6 201 7 

Finance 
Administration 
Revenue 
Accounting 
Network Administration 

Public Safely 
Fire 

Administration 
f raining & Safety 
Prevention 
EMS Transportation 
Suppression 

Inspections 485,841 447.745 449,628 474,956 

Police 7,288,393 7,731 ,I 34 7,573,474 8,215,521 
Administration 2,388,224 2,455,488 2,363,277 2,526,532 
Training 11 9,637 1 38,500 128,500 155.000 
Patrol 3,724,088 3,954,635 3,962,654 4,339.296 
Detectives 875.556 977,754 925,911 989,529 
School Resource Officers 180,888 204,757 193,132 203,164 

Public Works 6,897,345 7.1 05,152 6,948,128 7,227,645 
Administration 1,359,015 1,417,332 1,386,223 1,448,826 
Gargage & Trash Contract 2,788,698 2,827,000 2,788,551 2,788,000 
Heavy Construction 1,056,519 1,072,399 1,076,011 1,064,390 
Traffic & Right-of-way 1,587.656 1,581,034 1,573,947 1,701,892 
Fleet Maintenance 105.457 207.387 123,396 224,537 

Total Expenses and Transfers 33.800.962 34,850,846 34.125.580 35.879.589 

Surplus (Deficit) $ 896,598 $ 633,954 $ 1,568,417 6 760,000 



Statement of Budgeted Revenues, Expenditures. and Changes in Fund Balance (fund Financial Statements) 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 
Other 

General Capital Governmental Total Governmental Funds 
Fund Projects Debt Service Funds Budget Budget Actual 

IXX, 7XX 4XX 6XX SXX 2017 201 6 201 5 

Revenues: 
Taxes $ 30,660,989 $ 0 $ 0 $ 391,300 $ 31,052,289 $ 29,863,300 $ 29,006,089 
Licenses and permils 4,511.900 0 0 0 4,511,900 4,588,700 4,525,166 
Intergovernmental 96,498 0 0 0 96,498 95,714 92,199 
Charges for services 687.700 0 0 388.000 1,075.700 1,158,248 1,133,897 
Fines and forfeitures 549.000 0 0 192,100 741,100 765,100 856,401 
Grants 11.138 1,621,200 0 0 1,632,338 1,054,138 123,157 
investment Earnings 126.970 29,200 1,000 3,440 160,610 138,610 21 3,762 
Miscellaneous 31 7,900 25.000 0 175,000 51 7.900 468.500 507.1 44 

Total Revenues 36,962,095 1,675.400 1,000 1,149,840 39,788,335 38,132,310 36,457,875 

Expenditures: 
General government 5,334,715 39,220 0 270.625 5,644,560 6,590,875 4,664.1 26 
Public safety 15,355,093 1,649,320 0 475.882 17,480.295 17,232,544 15,423,035 
Street & sanitation 6,675,645 6,859,570 0 875,041 14,410,256 13,7 15,971 7,666,361 
Recreational 1,291,478 41 8,500 0 0 1,709,978 1,643,398 1,540,750 
Library 3,231,734 69,000 0 0 3,300,731 3,235,345 3.1 62,203 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 0 3,746,641 357,350 

Total Expenditures 31,888,665 9,035,610 0 1,621,548 42,545,823 46,164,774 32,813,825 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 5,073,430 (7,360,210) 1,000 (471,708) (2,757,488) (8,032,464) 3,643,990 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers in 0 3,678,416 300,000 425,205 4,403,621 4,975,265 6,014,055 
Operating transfers (out) (4,403,621 ) 0 0 0 (4,403,621) (4,975.265) (6,014.055) 
Operating transfers in-component unit 25.000 0 0 0 25,000 25,000 144,450 
Donations 71,400 38,000 0 0 109,400 81,400 86,495 

Total Other Financing Sources (4,307,221) 3,716.416 300,000 425,205 134,400 106,400 230,945 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

hpendilures and other Financing Uses 766,209 (3,643,794) 301,000 (46,503) (2,623,088) (7,926,064) 3,874,935 
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,577.275 14,442,964 929.702 826.037 31,775,978 34,410,095 30,535,178 

FUND BAMNCES,ENDOFYEAR $ 16,343,484 $ 10,799,170 $ 1,230,702 S 779,534 S 29,152,890 S 26,484,031 $ 34,410,113 



Schedule of Historical General Fund Revenues by Source 
Clty of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended September 30. 

Taxes 
Real pmperty 
Sales and use 
Occupalional 
Utility 
Personal pmperly 
Roadandbridge 
Other 

Budget 
2008 2004 20tO 201 1 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 

5 13,619,181 
8.41 2.007 

0 
1,336,420 
1,130,239 
572.272 
985.588 

Total taxes 26,355,707 

Projected 
5 14,443,548 S 14,808,889 
10,362.653 11,141,000 

0 0 
1,283.444 1.283.400 
1,378,933 1,392,700 
595,991 596,000 

Ucenses and permits 
Business 1.994,039 1.998+980 2,130,822 2,165.612 2,223,912 2,492,623 2,531,307 2,879,512 2,771,000 2,851,921 2.909.000 
Construction permits 1.036,354 634,059 624,309 753.444 800.820 1,100,204 1,347,583 1,143,394 1,137,000 1,133,065 905,000 
Cable TV franchise fees 323,082 328,641 347,757 352.964 391,701 424.912 389,500 423,068 402.000 427,000 427,000 
Waterworks Board 167,341 157,794 159,242 207.939 216,090 216.839 192,875 215,518 216,000 208,099 208.000 
Other 63.382 57.966 64.720 60,310 61.92! - 62.115 65.1 54 63.674 62.700 62,839 62.900 

Totallicensesandpermils 3,584,198 3,177,440 3.326.850 3,540,269 3.694.451 4,296,693 4,526,419 4,525,166 4,588,700 4,682,924 4,511,900 

Charges for services 
Garbage lees 71.252 39,094 34,b82 32,436 39,235 35.589 34,086 33.890 36.700 28,030 28.000 
Olher 498.576 488,785 591,636 619,716 714,561 693.408 730.347 695.790 733.548 704.629 659,700 

Total charges for services 569,828 525,879 625,698 652,152 753,796 728.997 764,433 729,680 770,248 732,659 687,700 

Fines and forfeitures - court 470,020 443,400 514,542 529,522 446,682 559.465 577,844 643,492 573,000 544,247 549,000 

Grants 37.355 50,799 19.708 282,423 12.062 15.755 100.187 53.653 11.138 11,306 11.138 

Other operating revenue 
lnvestmenl earnings 428.304 271.788 207.21 4 131.706 19,888 138.162 69,522 150,669 104,970 11 8.379 126,970 
Olher 230,717 371.526 254,173 300,657 458.142 439.492 31 1.374 296,043 268.500 318,032 317.900 

Totat other operating 
revenue 659.021 643,314 461.387 432,363 478.030 577.654 380.896 446.712 373.470 436.41 1 444.870 

Total Revenues f 31.825.839 5 31.292.888 S 31,313,770 S 31.904.525 S 32.580.355 S 33,450.420 5 34.294.465 5 35,110,391 S 35,884.270 8 36,054,324 5 36.962.095 



Combining Statement of Budgeted General Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Clty of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year ended 

2017 Budget 

General General Park Drug Asset Community Emergency Phase 3 Court Ubary 
Fund Operations Board Forfeitures Fund Reserves Fields Cash Bonds Operating Books Endowment 

Total 100 115 132 142 146 I49 153 701 702 703 

Revenues: 
Taxes S 30,660,989 S 30,660,989 S 0 S 0 S 0 0 0 S 0 S 0 S 0 f 0 S 0 
Licenses and permits 4,511,900 4,511,900 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental 96,496 0 50,900 0 0 0 45,598 0 0 0 0 

Charges for sewices 687.700 541,300 92.800 0 0 0 45,600 0 8,000 0 0 

Fines and krfeilures 549.000 494,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 45.000 10.WO 0 

Grants 11,138 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11,138 0 0 

Investment Earnings 126.970 118,000 500 0 0 8.200 0 0 0 70 200 

Miscellaneous 317.900 313.400 3,000 o 0 0 o o 1,500 o 0 

Total Revenues 36,962,095 36,639,589 147,200 0 0 8,200 91,198 0 65,638 10,070 200 

Expenditures: 
General government 5,334,715 5,334,715 0 0 0 0 I) 0 P P 0 
Public safety 15,355,093 15,355,093 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Street & sanitalion 6,675,645 6.675.645 0 0 * 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 

Recreational 1.291.478 0 1,154,680 0 0 0 136.798 0 a a 0 
Library 3.231.734 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,843.074 388.660 0 

Debt service 0 0 0 0 0 0 I] 0 0 0 0 
Total Expenditures 31,888,665 27,365,453 1,154,650 0 0 0 136,798 0 2,843,074 388.660 0 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures 5.073.430 9,274,136 (1,007,480) 0 0 8,200 (45,600) 0 (2,777,436) (378,590) 200 

Other Financing Swrces (Uses): 
Proceeds from the issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers in 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers (out) (4,403,621) (8,514,136) 1,007,480 0 0 25,000 45,599 0 2,777.436 255,000 0 
Operating transfers incomponent unit 25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 
Donations 71,400 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 71,400 0 

Total Other Financing Sources (4,307,221) (8,514,136) 1,007,480 0 0 25,000 45,599 0 2.~1~436 351,400 0 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Flnanclng Swrces Over 

Expenditures and other Financing Uses 766,209 760,000 0 0 0 33,200 (1 1 0 0 (27,190) 200 
Fund balance, beginning of year 15,577,275 12,784,372 81,097 10.236 10,970 2.508.200 (1,403) 0 [I 129.604 54.199 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR S 16,343,484 S 13,!i44,372 S 81,097 S 10,236 S 10,970 5 2,541,400 5 (1,404) S 0 5 0 S 102,414 S 54,399 



Combining Statement of Budgeted Capital Project Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 Budget 

Capital Infrastructure Grant 
Prolects Projects Funded CapIlal 

Total 417 428 441 

Revenues: 
Taxes 5 0 S 0 5 0 Si 0 
licenses and permils 0 0 0 0 
Intergovernmental 0 0 0 0 
Charges for services 0 0 0 0 
Fines and forleitures 0 0 0 0 
Grants 1,621,200 115,200 1,506,000 0 
lnveslment Earnings 29,200 10.000 1,200 18,000 
Miscellaneous 25,Om 0 ID 25,000 

Total Revenues 1,675,400 125,200 1,507,200 43,000 

Expendllures: 
General government 39,220 D D 39,220 
Public safety 1,649,320 0 0 1,649,320 
Street 8 sanilalion 6,859,570 4.266.000 1.891.809 701,761 
Recreational 418,500 276.000 0 142.500 
Library 69,000 0 0 69, WO 
Debt service 0 0 0 0 

Total Expenditures 9,035.610 4.542.000 1,891,809 2,601,801 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over expenditures (7,360,210) (4,416,800) (386,609) (2,558,801) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds fmm Ihe issuance of debt 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers in 3,678,416 861,326 384,609 2,432,481 
Operating transfers (oul) 0 0 0 0 
Operaling transfen in-component unl  0 0 0 0 
Donations 38,000 38,000 0 0 

Total Other Financing Sources 3,716,416 899,326 384,609 2,432.481 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and other Financing Uses (3,643,794) (3,517,474) 0 (126,320) 
Fund balance, beginning of year 14,442,964 4,715,548 528,661 9,198,755 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR 510,799,170 5 1,198,074 S 528,661 S 9,072,435 



Combining Statement of Budgeted Other Governmental Funds Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama 
Year Ended 

2017 Budget 
Other 

Governmental Gasoline Tax Funds E.911 CorrecUons 
Funds * 74 4Q District 

2a 531 
Fund 

Total 521 522 523 524 554 

Revenues: 
Taxes S 391,300 S 59,000 S 206,000 S 121.000 S 5.300 5 0 S 0 
Licenses and pennits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
lnlergovemmental 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Charges for services 388,000 0 0 I) 0 388,000 0 
Fines and forfeitures 192.100 0 0 0 0 2.100 190,000 
Grants 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
investment Earnings 3,440 100 1,700 300 40 1,300 0 
Miscellaneous 175,000 0 175,000 0 0 0 0 

TotalRevenues t.149,840 59,100 382,700 121,300 5,340 391,400 t90,OOO 

Debt 
Service 

600 

Expenditures: 
General government 270.625 0 0 0 I) 0 270.625 B 
Public safely 475.882 0 0 0 0 331.302 144,580 0 
Street & sanitation 875,041 42,784 705,899 123.017 3,341 0 0 I] 

Recreational 0 0 P 0 0 0 0 0 
Library 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Debt service 0, 0 0 0 0 D 0 0 

Total Expenditures 1,621,548 42.784 705,899 123,017 3,341 331.302 415,205 0 

Excess (deflclency) of revenues 
over expenditures (471,708) 16,316 (323,199) (1,717) 1,999 60,098 (225,205) 1.000 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Proceeds fmm the issuance or debt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfers in 425.205 0 200,000 0 0 0 225.205 300,000 
Operating transfen (out) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Operating transfen In-component unit 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Donalions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total Other Financlng Sources 425,205 0 200,000 0 0 0 225,205 300,000 

Excess (Deffciency) of Revenues 
and Other Financing Sources Over 

Expenditures and other Financing Uses (46,503) 16.31 6 (123,199) (1.717) 1,999 60,098 0 301,000 
Fund balance, beginning of year 826,037 14.306 308,352 63.121 5,501 438.757 0 929,702 

FUND BALANCES, END OF YEAR S 779,534 S 30,622 $ 183,153 S 61A04 $ 7,500 S 496,855 S 0 S 1,230,702 
77% 65% 22% 3% 



Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Fund 
Year Ended September 30 

Actual Budget Projected Budget 
201 5 2016 201 6 2017 

ADDITIONS 
Contribulions 

21 5-3408-481 0 Employer 
21 5-3407-4231 Plan members 
21 5-3407-4400 Investment earnings 

TOTAL ADDITIONS 81 7,896 871,000 783,269 806,000 

DEDUCTIONS 
215-1 115-6130 Benefits 
21 5-1 100-6". Administrative expense 

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 489.000 553,000 454,000 486.000 

NET INCREASE 328,896 318,000 329,269 320.000 

Net position held in trust for other post-employment 
benefits, beginning of year 1,571,336 1,900,232 1,900.232 2,229,501 

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR OTHER 
POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, END OF YEAR $ 1,900,232 $ 2,218.232 $ 2,229.501 5 2.549.501 

201 7 Budgeted 
201 6 Projected 
201 5 
201 4 
201 3 
2012 
201 1 
201 0 
2009 

Note: 
Effective October I. 2006. GAS6 45 required local governments to account for their other post-employment benefit plans (OPEB) similar to its method of accounting for 
its defined benefit pension plans. The City's OPEB plan includes retiree medical insurance. On July 27.2009, the City Council authorlzed the creation of an Internal 
Revenue Code Section 115 trust (Resolution No. 09-101) and began depositing funds into the trust to offset its obligation for retiree medical benefits. Following is a 
summary of the City's deposits inlo the Sec. 115 trust since its creation, and trust balances, actuarial accrued liabifity (AAL) and unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) as of September 30 : 

September 30 
Net Total f rust 

Trust Deposit Premiums Expense Balance AAL UAAL 
$ 300,000 $ 354,000 $ 654.000 $ 2,549,501 $ (3,463.260) $ (913.759) 

300,000 335,000 635,000 2,229,504 (3,686,655) (1.457.354) 
300,000 358,063 658.063 1,900,232 (3,865,805) (1,965,573) 
300,000 359,756 659.756 1,571,336 (3,992,253) (2,420.91 7) 
320,000 350,923 670.923 1,260,448 (3,560,421) (2,299,973) 
300,000 354,828 654.828 925,335 (3,155.271) (2,229.936) 
200,000 364,016 564,016 61 3,573 (3,249,729) (2,636,156) 
200,000 322,671 522,671 403,024 (3,473,472) (3,070,448) 
180,000 35.118 215.118 196,320 (2,859,543) (2,663,223) 

$ 2.400.000 $ 2,834,375 $ 5,234,375 









ORDINANCE NO. 1959 

AN ORDINANCE TO INCREASE THE SALARY OF THE 
CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, as follows: 

Section 1. Effective October 4,201 6, the salary of the City Manager of the City of Mountain 
Brook shall be increased to six thousand two hundred thirty-nine and 3 liIO0 dollars ($6,239.3 1) bi- 
weekly. 

Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an [amended] employment agreement to 
reflect the revised base salary described in Section 1 above, in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
between the City and City Manager. 

Section 3. All ordinances and resolutions concerning the salary and employment agreement of 
the City Manager which have been adopted previously are hereby repealed. 

Section 4. This ordinance shall become effective when published by posting the same as required 
by law. 

ADOPTED: The 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTJPICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifjl the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on September 12,20 16, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on S e p t e m b e r ,  2016, at the following public 
places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 

City Manager Pay Increase 1959 



EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT made by and between SAM GASTON ("Gaston") and 
the ClTY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK, ALABAMA ("City"). 

WHEREAS, Gaston has satisfactorily served as City Manager for the City since June 1993; and 

WHEREAS, Gaston and the City have agreed that the terms and conditions of Gaston's continued 
employment should be memorialized and set forth in a formal contract of employment in order to 
promote clarity and avoid misunderstanding; 

PREMISES CONSIDERED, Gaston and the City agree to the following terms and conditions: 

1. A~~ointment as Citv Manager: Duties. Gaston shall serve as City Manager of the City of 
Mountain Brook, Alabama, and, in such capacity, shall perform such tasks and duties as may be 
prescribed anddor directed by the governing body or by applicable ordinance or statute. Gaston shall 
devote all of his productive time, ability and attention to the business of the City during the term of his 
appointment and shall not engage in any other employment or pursuit that would conflict or interfere 
with his duties and responsibilities as City Manager. 

2. Term of Amointment. The term of Gaston's appointment shall be as provided by law. 

3. Cancellation: Notice. Gaston's appointment and the City's obligations hereunder may be 
terminated by ( i )  operation of law; (ii) termination thereof by the governing body without cause during 
his term of appointment; (iii) termination thereof by the governing body for cause during his term of 
appointment; and (iv) Gaston's voluntary resignation. 

The City may at its option terminate Gaston's appointment at any time for cause. For purposes of 
this Agreement, termination "for cause" shall include, but not be limited to, viz: (i) any act of theft, 
embezzlement, immoral conduct, sexual harassment, use of illicit drugs, or intoxication while acting as 
an employee of the City; (ii) the conviction for any crime involving moral turpitude; (iii) the willful 
neglect by Gaston of his duties hereunder; or (iv) the continued breach of any material term or condition 
of this Agreement by Gaston after written notice. Upon any such termination by the City for cause, 
Gaston shall only be entitled to the compensation and benefits provided in this Agreement (including 
accrued but unused vacation and sick leave) computed on a prorated basis up to and including the date of 
such termination, and shall be entitled to no further compensation subsequent to said date except as may 
be required by law. Any tennination for cause by the City shall not prejudice its rights to seek any other 
redress or remedy to which it may be entitled under the law. 

The City may also, at its option, terminate this Agreement at any time without cause. In the 
event of any tennination by the City of this Agreement without cause prior to the expiration of Gaston's 
term as provided by law, the City shall be fully obligated to pay to Gaston his full salary and fringe 
benefits, including but not limited to any accrued but unused vacation and sick leave, only for the four 
(4) month period immediately following said date of termination. In exchange for said payments by the 
City, Gaston agrees to make himself available to provide consulting services to the City as may be 
reasonably requested during said four (4) month period. 



Gaston shall provide the City at least sixty (60) days' advance written notice of his resignation. 
Upon termination of his employment, Gaston shall be paid for any accrued but unused sick leave and/or 
unused vacation days in accordance with generally applicable city policy. 

4. Com~ensation and Benefits: Evaluation. Gaston shall receive as base compensation the 
sum of one hundred sixty-two thousand two hundred twenty-two and 06t100 dollars ($1 62,222.06) per 
annurn, which shall be paid in regular increments according to the payroll system and schedule then in 
effect for the City. Gaston shall also receive and be eligible for the same across-the-board raises and 
fringe benefits (including but not limited to health, dental, disability, and life insurance, longevity pay, 
vacation, and sick leave) as are accorded or made available to city employees generally; provided, 
however, that nothing herein shall be construed to confer merit or civil service status on Gaston. 
Gaston's job performance shall be evaluated periodically at the discretion of the City Council. Upon 
receipt of a satisfactory performance evaluation, Gaston shall be entitled to such increase in basic 
compensation for the duration of the term of his appointment as the governing body may deem 
appropriate. 

In addition to the foregoing, and in keeping with past practice, the City shall furnish to Gaston an 
automobile that may be used by Gaston for city-related functions, activities, and purposes, and for 
transportation between work location(s) and his personal residence. The City shall pay or provide for all 
gasoline, oil, maintenance, and insurance expenses associated with operation of the automobile. The 
City shall also pay for or reimburse Gaston for all actual and reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, dues, or 
fees incurred by Gaston in performing or attending city-related functions and activities, including but not 
limited to membership in and attendance at annual or semi-annual conferences sponsored by the 
ACCMA, the APA, and the ICMA. 

5. Notice. All notices, consents, requests, approvals, and other communications provided 
for herein shall be validly given, made, or served if in writing and delivered personally or sent by 
registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, as follows, viz: 

TO GASTON: Sam S. Gaston 
2028 Clearview Drive 
Birmingham, AL 35244 

TO CITY: City of Mountain Brook 
C/O The Mayor 
P. 0. Box 130009 
Mountain Brook, AL 352 13-0009 

6. Modification. This Agreement cannot be changed, modified, or amended in any respect 
except by a written instrument signed by both parties. 

7. Entire A~reement. This Agreement supersedes all other agreements previously made 
between the parties relating to its subject matter. There are no other understandings or agreements, as all 
prior agreements are hereby merged into this Agreement. 

8. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this Agreement shall be held invalid 
or unenforceable for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the remainder 
of this Agreement, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

Page 2 of 3 



9. Controlling Law. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and 
applicable state or federal law, said law(s) shall control, and this Agreement shall be construed with 
reference to and in accordance with applicable law. 

10. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective upon approval of an ordinance 
adopting or ratifying same. 

DATED this 12th day of September, 2016. 

CITY MANAGER CITY OF MOUNTAIN BROOK 

By: 
Sam Gaston Lawrence T. Oden, Mayor 

Page 3 of 3 



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-133 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, that effective 
October 4,2016, the salaries of all employees (classified and unclassified) of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, including employees of The Emmet O'Neal Library Board and Parks and Recreation Board, 
shall be increased by one and one-half of one percent (1-ln%) over the current salary schedule. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that effective October 4,2016, the compensation for contract security services for the City's Public 
Works facilities, as previously authorized upon the adoption of Resolution No. 2013-146 on October 14, 
201 3, shall also be increased by one and one-half of one percent (I-1/2%) 

ADOPTED: The 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify 
the above to be a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Mountain Brook at its meeting held on September 12,201 6, as same appears in the minutes of record of 
said meeting. 

City Clerk 

a 

1-112% Across-the-Board Pay Increase 



ORDINANCE NO. f 960 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 129-295 OF THE CITY CODE 
REGARDING OPEN HOUSES, HOME TOURS AND SPECIAL EVENTS 

IN RESIDENTIAL ZONING DISTRICTS 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, 
that Section 129-295 of the City Code is hereby amended to include subsection (c) as follows: 

"(c) Open Houses, Home Tours and Special Events. Open houses, home tours and other 
special events ("Special Events') wherein a residential premise or part thereof is made open 
to the general public for a fee, donation or other remuneration for commercial or charitable 
purposes may be conducted in the residential districts of the city under the conditions 
specified herein below. Such uses shall also be subject to the same monitoring and 
enforcement procedures set forth in article XXIII of this chapter (applicable to home 
occupation). 

(1) No more than one (1) such Special Event shall be conducted at any one residential 
premises during any one calendar year. 

(2) Such Special Event shall be limited in duration to a maximum of six (6) weekend 
days and eight (8) weekdays, which days must be within an eighteen (1 8) day period 
beginning with the first day of the event. For the purposes of this provision, weekend 
days shall mean Saturday and Sunday and weekday shall mean Monday through 
Friday. . , 

(3) Goods sold at the Special Event shall be limited to inside the premises or the rear 
yard, and may not be visible from any public street. 

(4) A permit shall be required for each Special Event for which a fee to help defray the 
cost of issuing the permit will be charged in accordance with article XXVII of this 
chapter. Application for such permit, in the form and with all information requested 
by the city, must be submitted to the City Manager at least thirty (30) days prior to the 
date upon which the Special Event is scheduled to begin. 

( 5 )  If, after review of the application, the City Manager determines that the parking or the 
public rights of way are insufficient to handle anticipated traffic volume for the 
Special Event, the City Manager may require the use of remote parking areas and 
shuttle buses or valet services, the engagement of law enforcement officers by the 
applicant to assist with vehicular trafic or other measures designed to reduce the 
impact on surrounding properties and the public rights of way in the area. 

(6) For the purposes of this section, an open house or home tour conducted for the sole 
purpose of marketing or sale of the residential premises themselves and for which a 
fee, donation or other remuneration is not collected shall be permitted and shall not be 
subject to the conditions in this subsection. 



2. Renealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City Council of the 
City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance are 
hereby expressly repealed. 

3. Severabilitv. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 
or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 
remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 
holding. 

4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 
publication as provided by law. 

ADOPTED: This the 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Council President 

APPROVED: This the 12th day of September, 201 6. 

Mayor 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certifi the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on S e p t e m b e r ,  20 16, at the following public 
places, which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road 
Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2850 Cahaba Road Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



ORDINANCE NO. 1961 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 14 OF TWE 
MOUNTAIN BROOK MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAIMlVG TO BUILDING PERMIT FEES 

WHEREAS, on June 3,201 5, Act 20 15-308 was enacted by the Alabama Legislature creating a 
Construction Industry Craft Training (CICT) program to be administered by the Alabama Craft Training 
Board for the purpose of funding training programs for the development of a quality workforce to support 
the construction industry in the State; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 2012-308, the CICT program shall be funded from fees collected 
from all political subdivisions of the state that issue construction building permits equal to one dollar 
($1.00) for every one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) of construction authorized on non-residential work. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as follows: 

Section 1. Chapter 14 of the Mountain Brook Municipal Code is amended to state as following: 

CHAPTER 109 

BUILDINGS AND BUILDING REGULATIONS 

Section 2. Repealer. All ordinances or parts of ordinances heretofore adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama that are inconsistent with the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby expressly repealed. 

Section of Code 
109-2(c) 

Section 3. Severability. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held 
unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 
remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such holding. 

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective October 1,2016 and 
publication as provided by law. 

Description 
Where the value of construction is $1,000.00 or more (per 
$1,000.00 or fraction thereof) 

Plus an issuance fee 
I 

Plus additional $1.00 fee per one thousand ($1,000.00) of value 
of non-residential construction as required by Ala. Act 2015-308 

ADOPTED: The 12th day of September, 20 16. 

Fee 
$8.00 

$50.00 

Council President 

APPROVED: The 12th day of September, 20 1 6. 

Mayor 



CERTIFICATION 

I, Steven Boone, City Clerk of the City of Mountain Brook, Alabama, hereby certify the above to 
be a true and correct copy of an ordinance adopted by the City Council of the City of Mountain Brook, 
Alabama, as its meeting held on September 12,2016, as same appears in the minutes of record of said 
meeting, and published by posting copies thereof on September 13,201 6, at the following public places, 
which copies remained posted for five (5) days as required by law. 

City Hall, 56 Church Street Gilchrist Pharmacy, 2805 Cahaba Road 
Overton Park, 3020 Overton Road Cahaba River Walk, 3503 Overton Road 

City Clerk 



STATE OF ALABAMA 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 

Division of Construction Management 
770 Wtwhfngton Avcnua, Suite 444 

P.0, Box 30 I I SO 
. ~obe%ntlc~ 

Oovemor 
Montgmery, Alabama 36130-1 IS0 

Tclcphonc; (3341 212-4082 Fax: (334) 2424182 

Bill NeNon 
Acting Qbmce DDlrcetor 

September 2,2016 

Frank Barnes 
Di~ctor 

TO: M A M A  COTmTIES AND MUNICIPALITIES 

FROM: KATHERINE LYNN, ASSISTANT J?INANCE DIRECT0 
E'RANX BARNES, DIRECTOR, CONSTRUCTION 

SUBJECT: ACT 2015-308 - CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY CRAFT TRAINING &S 

On June 3,2015, Governor Robert Bentley signed Act 2015-308 oreating a Construction Industry 
Craft Training (CICT) program to be administered by the Alabama Craft Training B o d  for the 
pwpose of funding training programs for the development of a quality workfotce to support the 
comtruotion industry in the State of Alabama. The full text o f  Act 2015-308 is available on the 
Secretary of State's website at http~/~c-sos.sl~e~d~us/l~AC~SOSA~DF.OO/A0010945.PDF . A 
summary of the act is provided below: 

The CICT program shall be fhnded fiom fees collected fiom any county, city, bwn or other 
political subdivision of the state that issues non-residential-comtion building permits. 

The fee shalI be equal to one dollar ($1.00) for every one thousand dollars ($1000.00) of 
wnstruction authorized; 

The fee shall apply to any non-residential building permit issued after October 1,2016. 

Specifically excluded from the colIection of fkes are any licensed home builder, as defined in 
Chapter 14A of Title 34, Code of AIabama 1975; any sybcontractor working on a residential 
construction site including renovations to any residential struchue; or my person or entity 
specifically exempt under Chapter 14A of Title 34, Code of Alabama 1975, except for 
subdivision (3) of Section 34-14A-6, Code of Alabama 1975. 

The fees shall be collected by the entity issuing the non-residential construction building permit 
and shall be remitted monthly to the Department of Fiance, Division of Construction 
Management The-fec: shall be based on the total sum of the construction cost of all non- 
residential building permits issued by the entity on or after the first day of the month and up to 
the last day of the month The fee shall be remitted to the Division of Construction Management 
by the 2 0 ~  day of the month following the issuance of the permits. 

The fees shall be remitted electronically. Checks and money orders will not be awqttd, A link 
for submitting the electronic payment will be available on the Division of Construction 
Management's website (www.bc.dabmn,~ov) a e r  October 31,201 6. 



Entities that do not issue nonresidential building pennits should complete the attached 
declaration and submit one original by mail to the Division of Construction Management, P.O. 
Box 301 150, Montgomery, AL 36130-1 150, before November 1, 2016. The original will be 
maintained on file for verification of compliance with the act. 

If you have any questions, please contact the Division of Construction Management at 334-242- 
4082. 



aRTIFICATION OF NON-APPLICABILJTY 

OF CONSTRUCMON INDUSTRY CRAFT TRAINING ZEE 

I ce* that shall not be ~Ilecting any fees 
Name of Municipality/Coun ty 

for non-residential permit fees h m  October 1,20 to September 30,20- and shall not be 

remitting any Construction Industry CrrtR Training fees to the Division of Construction Management 

for the b e  period specified. 

The entity also certifies that should any non-residential permits be issued during the time period 

specified that the entity understands t6at it is M y  responsible for complying with Act 201 5-305. 

Certified by: 
Signahve 

Oficial's Printed Name & Title 

Sworn and subscribed before me this day of , m-* 

N o w  Public 

Seal 


	2016-Sep-12 Agenda
	1   8/22/2016 minutes
	2   8/25/2016 minutes
	3   Constitution Week proclamation
	4   Gynocologic Cancer Awareness Month
	5   Tree Commission-Kelly Hulsey
	6   Tree Commission-Elizabeth Poynor
	7   Library Board-Penny Page
	8   Library Board-Max Pulliam
	9   Public Safety bldg bid rejection
	10 Library moisture abatement
	11a Right-of-Way agreement
	11b Preliminary Engineering agreement
	11c Utility and Construction agreement
	12 APPLE sidewalk study
	13 Surplus property
	14 Conditional use
	15 Settlement agreement
	16 Phase 9 CEI agreement
	17 Auditing services agreement
	18 English Village parking leases
	19 Bridge reconstruction agreement
	20 Smoking regulations
	21 2017 budget
	22 City Manager pay increase
	23 Employee pay increase
	24 Open houses, home tours, special events
	25 Building permit fee increase



